

ICME 2021 VIRTUAL CONFERENCE

PROCEEDING

Excellence in Health Profession Education: Through Globalization & Collaboration





April 01 - 04, 2021

www.icme-2021.com

Organizer:



With Support of :

5-111-11t-2











ICME 2021 VIRTUAL CONFERENCE

PROCEEDING

Excellence in Health Profession Education; Through Globalization & Collaboration





April 01 - 04, 2021

www.icme-2021.com

Organizer:



With Support of :

NUCHESITAS



Co-Organizer:







PROCEEDING ICME 2021 VIRTUAL CONFERENCE --- Excellence in Health Profession Education; Through Globalization & Collaboration, Universitas Islam Indonesia, Yogyakarta, Indonesia

e-ISBN: 978-623-6572-30-6 (PDF)

Cetakan Pertama : Pertama, Juni 2021 Publisher : UII Press Universitas Islam Indonesia Jl. Kaliurang Km. 14.5 Yogyakarta, Telp. (0274) 547865 Email: Uiipress@uii.ac.id

© 2021 All rights reserved. No part of this publication may be reproduced or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic or mechanical, including photocopying, recording, or any information storage and retrieval system, without permission in writing from the publisher and Faculty of Industrial Technology, Islam Indonesia.



Message From Chairman Organizing Committee, Icme 2021



The process of reforms in medical education was initiated in North America soon after the publication of Flexner's report a little more than a century ago. The reform process had started much earlier in Europe. It was Netherland that led the reform process by introducing competencybased medical education and other regulatory measures in 1865. Reforms spread throughout Europe and were incorporated in Bologna Process for the unification of higher education across Europe in 1999.

While a great treasure of experience and knowledge in reforming Medical, or more correctly Health Profession, education collected in Europe and North America but the developing countries were left alone. This resulted in a dichotomy of education in developed and developing worlds making it difficult for the graduates of later to compete with those of first. It was soon realized that developing countries must also enter the process of reforms to end this disparity. For this, most essential was to benefit from the experience and experimentations by the developed countries.

Riphah International University established the Riphah Academy of Research and Education in 2006 to achieve this objective. The Academy initiated a series of workshops and lectures conducted in Pakistan by world-renowned experts in medical education. International Conference of Medical Education was the brain-child of its Chancellor Mr. Hassan Muhammad Khan: The mission of ICME is "to provide a credible platform for bringing together World-leading Experts on Medical Education and Educators from all over the world to prepare them to adopt recent innovations and standards in medical education so that the product from Institutions in their countries matches and competes with the product from similar Institutions in the developed world". This mission is well conveyed in the theme of ICME 2021, "Excellence in health profession education through globalization and collaboration". The first ICME was organized in 2009 in Islamabad-Pakistan. It was a great success and its recommendations were implemented by the Government of Pakistan, Pakistan Medical and Dental Council, and Higher Education Commission of Pakistan.

It was then decided that ICME shall also be organized in other developing countries so that they can also benefit. Until now ICME has been organized in UAE, Mauritius, and Turkey. This is the 7th conference of the series being organized in Indonesia. It is unfortunate, that the conference has been converted to a virtual conference because of the Covid-19 outbreak. But we expect that we shall be able to organize a physical conference in the same place once conditions normalize.

Marrid Anuar

Prof. Dr. Masood Anwar Riphah International University

Message From The Chairman Of Local Organizing Committee Icme 2021



Alhamdulillahirabbill 'alamin, we could hold this International Conference on Medical Education (ICME) 2021 in the current pandemic situation. This conference is organized by Universitas Islam Indonesia, Riphah International University, and Forum Kedokteran Islam Indonesia (FOKI). Even though we meet virtually, we can still share our experience to strengthen medical education quality, such as the theme of the conference "Excellence in the health profession; through globalization and collaboration."

Approximately four hundred abstracts were submitted. Two hundred and ninety abstracts are selected to be presented at this conference. These abstracts derive from Health Education, Psychology, Science and other relevant fields. We encourage your very active and enthusiastic participation in this conference to learn much from each other.

We want to express our gratitude to all of the speakers for sharing their knowledge at this conference. We also would like to thank the participants for joining this conference. Our special thanks also go to the committee for the hard work to support this conference.

dr. Umatul Khoiriyah, MMedEd., PhD Faculty of Medicine, Universitas Islam Indonesia



Steering Committee Icme 2021

Members from Riphah International University Committee : Executive Committee : - Mr. Asadullah Khan - Prof. Dr. Azhar Rashid Organizing Committee : - Prof. Dr. Masood Anwar (Chairperson), - Prof. Dr. Rehan Ahmed Khan, - Prof. Dr. Rehan Ahmed Khan, - Prof. Dr. Yawar Hayat Khan Scientific Committee : - Prof. Dr. Rahila Yasmeen (Chairperson) - Prof. Dr. Fareesa Waqar - Dr. Tahira Sadiq

Members from Forum Kedokteran Islam Indonesia (FOKI) & Universitas Islam Indonesia

Committee :
Executive Committee : - Prof. Dr. Jurnalis Udin, PAK
- Prof. Dr. H. Syarifuddin Wahid
Organizing Committee : - dr. Umatul Khoiriyah, MMedEd., PhD
- dr. Linda Rosita, M.Kes, Sp.PK
- dr. Iwang Yusuf, MSi
Scientific Committee : - dr. Diani Puspa Wijaya, MMedEd
- dr. Shulhana Mokhtar, MMedEd
- dr. Zwasta Pribadi Mahardhika, MMedEd
- dr. Mia Kusmiati, MPd.Ked.,PhD



Table of Contents

Message From Chairman Organizing Committee, ICME 2021 v Message From The Chairman Of Local Organizing Committee
ICME 2021 vii
Steering Committee Icme 2021
Table of Contents XI
Awareness among Physicians and Medical Students of Pakistan Regarding COVID-19: A Questionnaire Based Online Survey Muhammad Shafeh Shehzad [*] , Saqib Jan Shah, Muhammad Usayd Khan, Muhammad Awais Sultan, Haris Khan, Anas Javed, Syed Musa Haider
Correlation Between Clerkship Program Grading and the Result of National Exam on Medical Student
Tunaniaa Katnasari, Suiistyani, 1in Ivovita Ivurniaayati Ivianmuaa11
Assessing the Perception of Undergraduate Dental Students Regarding Effectiveness of Online Small Group Discussion Sessions
Luiu Shukeel Abbusi, 1011 ya Safjaa2)
Students' Evaluation on Online Distance Learning in School of Medicine, Atma Jaya Catholic University of Indonesia Felicia Kurniawan, Yunisa Astiarani, Bryany Titi Santi, Laurentius Aswin Pramono, Kevin Kristian
Soma Siddique Anila Amin Khattak
Differences in Learning Outcomes Using the Cornell Method and the Non Cornell Method for Students at the Faculty of Medicine Universitas Baiturrahmah Yavolga Restiara Her. Resti Rahmadika Akbar, Mutiara Anissa
0 . , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
Perception of Medical Student on Learning Methods in Pandemic Era: A Qualitative Study
Evita Sarah Nasution, Nur Azizah, Siti Khodijah, Nur'Aini Jusuf57

Instrument for Assessing Dental Faculty Perception of E-Educational Environment: Modified E-Learning Educational Atmosphere Measure (M EEAM)
Falahat Nasir, Saima Zafar Khan, Rahila Yasmeen
Evaluation of Efficacy of "Student Support System" in a Medical University in Pakistan
Hafsa Shahid, Haris Iqbal, Shahzaib Ahmad75
COVID-19 and Final Year Medical Students' Learning Process in Oman: Exploring Knowledge, Consequences and Preparedness for Internship
Hatem Al-Saadi, Fatma Al-Busaidi, Marwa Al-Kalbani, Said Al-Abri, Haya Malallah, Jameela Al-Saadi, Ahlam Al-Saadi, Vittal Rao, Tariq Al-Saadi
Communication Assessment Tool (CAT) in "Bahasa" Indonesian Version
Sulistiawati Sudarso, Nur Khoma Fatmawati97
Evolving Perception Regarding Online Learning and Teaching in COVID-19 Era of Graduate Students With Diverse Educational Backgrounds Enrolled in 'Masters- 'Health Professional Education Program of a Pakistani University
Amina Nadeem, Azhar Rashid, Raheela Yasmin105
Impact on Mental Health of Undergraduates and The Ways to Cope Stress During Covid-19 Pandemic
Kiran Fatima Bana, Shaur Sarfaraz119
Preceptor-Learner Collaborative Learning at The Interprofessional Demonstration Case Discussion
Chia-Lun Lee, Jo-Chu Yen, Yu-Chih Lin133
Relationship Between Stress, Anxiety, and Depression with Learning Achievement in Medical Student During Online Learning in The COVID 10 Bandomic Fra
Ridha Fadhila, Budi Hernawan139

xii

Covid-19 The Pinnacle of Technology Enhanced Teaching-Faculty Needs Assessment
Maryam Barkat, Gulshan Ara Saeed151
Online Learning on Medical Students, Challenges and Strategies: Cross-Sectional Study in the UAE Farwa Kazmi, Priyadarshini Ray, Selva Prakash Damodharan, Jayadevan Sreedharan
Are Values Valuable? Role of Values in Clinical Decision Making Among Medical Students of A Public Sector Institute of A Developing Country
Mehwish Kaneez, Noman Ahmed Chaudhary, Syed Muhammad Jawad Zaidi, Hamza Waqar Bhatti169
The Covid-19 and Its Impact on Public's Mental Health <i>Fajar Fatima</i>
The Description of Screen Time and Dry Eye Symptoms in Students during the COVID-19 Pandemic
Gita Yustika, Ulfah Rimayanti, Muh. Yusuf Izzati1, Andi Muh. Faisal Ansar
Index 195



Awareness among Physicians and Medical Students of Pakistan Regarding COVID-19: A Questionnaire Based Online Survey

Ħ

Muhammad Shafeh Shehzad^{*}, Saqib Jan Shah, Muhammad Usayd Khan, Muhammad Awais Sultan, Haris Khan, Anas Javed, Syed Musa Haider.

FINAL YEAR MBBS ISLAMIC INTERNATIONAL MEDICAL COLLEGE. * Corresponding author. Email: *shafeh89@gmail.com*

ABSTRACT

Objective: The purpose of our study is to assess the awareness among healthcare professionals and medical students of Pakistan regarding COVID-19. Our data will be useful for the authorities to check if the medical students are ready to serve as a frontline force. Materials and Methods: In this cross-sectional study, physicians and medical students of government and private sector hospitals and universities across Pakistan were included. The questionnaire was distributed through an online forum. Convenience sampling was done. The Confidence level (CI) of 95% was set with 5% margin of error. Demographic data was noted. Data was evaluated using SPSS version 21. Chi-square statistics was utilized to evaluate the relations. A p-value of less than 0.05 was deemed statistically significant. Results: There was a total of 400 responses of our questionnaire. The number the physicians participating in our research was 200 (50%) and 200 (50%) students contributed in our study. The total response of 10 questions in our research is 4000 out of which 2730 (68.25%) are the correct responses. By evaluating the responses on the bases of profession, 1281 (46.9%) responses of the physicians while 1512 (55.3%) responses of medical students were correct. Conclusion: To face this pandemic, adequate amount of knowledge is needed specially of the frontline workers. Our study showed 68.25% awareness of the participants and more responsiveness is needed in this regard to tackle this pandemic efficiently.

Keywords: COVID-19, awareness, physicians, medical students.



INTRODUCTION Α.

COVID-19 is the biggest Public health problem faced by the entire world nowadays. In Pakistan, the first case of COVID-19 was reported on 26 February 2020. The number of confirmed cases is increasing with the increase in the number of days [1]. On 12 January 2020, the World Health Organization (WHO) affirmed that a novel COVID-19 was the reason for a respiratory disease in group of individuals in Wuhan City, Hubei Province, China, which was informed to the WHO on 31 December 2019. WHO on March 11 2020 declared COVID-19 a pandemic [2].

Coronaviruses are an important cause of common cold. In 2002, a new disease emerged as an atypical pneumonia called severe acute respiratory syndrome (SARS). This genome sequence of coronavirus was called CoV-SARS. Horseshoe bat appeared to be its natural reservoir and source of transmission to the humans [3]. In 2012-2013, another severe pneumonia appeared and was called Middle East respiratory syndrome (MERS), and the virus was called MERS-CoV. It was said to be transmitted from camels to human as camels were declared the natural reservoir [4]. COVID-19 is the genome sequence of the same family of virus known as coronavirus. This family of virus are transmitted by respiratory aerosol [5].

Physicians are the frontline force to tackle this pandemic as they have been in previous outbreaks also. They can also become a carrier and can serve as a major source of infection for the population. Sufficient awareness and knowledge are needed so that they can protect themselves from being a carrier and can correctly diagnose the patient of COVID-19. Similarly, as this pandemic is increasing day by day, Government of Pakistan has also ordered the medical students to be reserved as they can be called anytime in case of shortage of the physicians. Hence, it is important to evaluate and increase their knowledge because from knowledge comes the practice.

The purpose of our study is to assess the awareness among healthcare professionals and medical students of Pakistan regarding COVID-19. Our data will be useful for the authorities to check if the medical students are ready to serve as a frontline force. Null hypothesis is that our students and physicians doesn't have sufficient awareness.

MATERIAL AND METHODS Β.

In this cross-sectional study, physicians and medical students of government and private sector hospitals and universities across Pakistan were included. A structured questionnaire was used which is available on the official website of University of Health Sciences, Lahore. The questionnaire

was distributed through an online forum. This questionnaire was prepared from the guidelines of WHO to assess the awareness related to COVID-19. The first part of questionnaire contained socio-demographic questions after which in second part there were 10 questions concerning the diagnosis, management, prevention and counselling of the patients of COVID-19. The response of the questions was in the form of "true or false". Only those who answered the questions correctly were said to have knowledge and awareness. The link of the questionnaire is: https://docs.google.com/forms/ d/e/1FAIpQLSewPcPm1XMh2FMyqr-YTpgvgq9R6bOBw7dgoR75REU-JdgaiQ/viewform?vc=0&c=0&w=1

The duration of the research is two weeks from 1st April to 15th April. Convenience sampling was done. The participants were informed about the study and consent was taken beforehand. The sample size was calculated by using Raosoft [6]. The Confidence level (CI) of 95% was set with 5% margin of error. There are a total of 250000 physicians and students from different public and private sector hospitals and universities across Pakistan. Our sample size came out to be 384. Demographic data was noted. Data was evaluated using SPSS version 21. Chi-square statistics was utilized to evaluate the relations. A p-value of less than 0.05 was deemed statistically significant.

C. RESULTS

There was a total of 400 responses of our questionnaire. The number the physicians participating in our research was 200 (50%) and 200 (50%) students contributed in our study. Figure 1 corresponds to the demographic data. The number of male participants in our study was 276 (69%) and of female were 124 (31%). Among the age group of <30, there were 229 (57.3%) respondents and in the age group of 31-50 and 51-70, there were 73 (18.3%) and 98 (24.5%) respondents respectively.

The results were evaluated according to the profession also. The first three questions were regarding the diagnosis of COVID-19, The total correct responses to the question number 1 was 357 (89.2%) out of which 169 (47.3%) were from physicians and 188 (52.6%) were from medical students. The p-value for this question was 0.002 which is less than 0.05 (statistically significant) which means the variables (physicians and students) are well related regarding the awareness to this question concerning to the symptoms of COVID-19 and null hypothesis is rejected. Similarly, the correct responses of question 2 and 3 were 294 (73.5%) and 330 (82.5%) with a p-value of <0.05.

Question number 4 was regarding mask being a single most important protection against COVID-19, the correct responses were 219 (54.7%) among

which 90 (41%) physicians and 129 (58%) medical students gave correct response with a p-value <0.05. The question 5 enquired about isolation of the patients with a p-value of 0.2 (not statistically significant) which means that the variables are not connected. In question number 6, the participants were asked of the testing of COVID-19. Only 36 physicians (37.5%) and 60 (62.5%) medical students with a total 96 (24%) participants correctly responded with a p-value of 0.005 (0.05) which means that the variable (physicians and students) were mostly not aware regarding the testing of COVID-19.



Figure 1. Demographic data

Question number 7 and 8 were regarding the usage of the masks. The p-value for question number 7 was <0.05. There were 198 (49.5%) correct responses out of which 131 (66.1%) were from medical students and the remaining 67 (33.9%) were from the physicians. The answers to question number 8 were 92% correct.

The last two questions were relating the counselling of the self-isolated patients about visiting to the hospitals in case of emergencies. Question 9 was asked about coming to the hospital immediately which showed 116 (29%) correct responses consisting 93 (80%) responses of medical students and only 23 (20%) responses of physicians. The last question asked about the helpline of COVID-19 in case of emergencies and was 92% correctly responded. The

p-value of both the questions is <0.05. Table I shows the distribution of the correct responses.

The total response of 10 questions in our research is 4000 out of which 2730 (68.25%) are the correct responses. The graphical presentation of total and individual responses is shown in Figure 2.



Figure 2. Distribution of correct responses

By evaluating the responses on the bases of profession, 1281 (46.9%) responses of the physicians while 1512 (55.3%) responses of medical students were correct. This is shown in Figure 3.



Figure 3. Correct responses according to the profession



D. DISCUSSIONS

A person is diagnosed as a patient of COVID-19 when he has cough, sore throat, shortness of breath and fever along with a travel history or a contact with covid-19 patient. If he has sore throat, painful swallowing and painful glands in neck, the diagnosis of COVID-19 is excluded [7]. The first two questions of our study asked about these symptoms and majority of our respondent were well aware with a correct response of 89.2% and 73.5% respectively. This can be compared with a previous study where there was a correct response of 84.3% regarding the symptoms [8].

When asked about the management of a person without the symptoms of corona virus but of the common cold with no travel history or contact with covid-19 patients in question 3, 82.5% said that they should be treated at home by getting the prescription through the telemedicine [9].

When asked regarding the mask as a tool for protection against COVID-19 in question number 4, 54.7% believed that the mask is not only entity protective against COVID-19, previous study shows that along with the mask, efficient hand-washing is also needed to protect against COVID-19 [10]. Along with this, for physicians on a frontline, personal protective equipment is also needed to tackle this pandemic [11]. Question 7 and 8 asked about who should wear a mask? a person without the symptoms or a person with a symptom. Previous study shows that both the persons should wear a mask for protection but it is more needed for the person with the symptoms as mask may slow down the rate of spread through hindering the respiratory droplets transmission to another person. Mask is basically a tool to stop the spread of covid-19 and not for the personal protection [12]. In our study, 92.7% of our respondents knew that it is must for a person with symptoms to wear a mask however, 50% knew that a person without symptoms can travel without facemask. This can be compared with a previous study of Pakistan which showed that our healthcare workers had inadequate knowledge regarding the use of face-masks [13].

95.5% of the participants responded it correctly on question 5 that a person who just came from another covid-19 affected area should isolate himself for 14 days. This is an international protocol to isolate the travellers from pandemic affected areas as shown in the previous study [14]. But when asked about the testing of a person without the symptom but with a history of attending a wedding in question 6, only 24% responded correctly that she doesn't had to have her test done. As in Pakistan, there is a limited number of testing kits available so the protocol of testing here is to test only those who are symptomatic as mentioned in the recommendations of NIH, Pakistan [15].

The last two questions were regarding the counselling of self-isolated patients on what to do in case of exaggeration of the symptoms? In question 9, it was asked if they were needed to come to the hospital immediately, only 29% responded correctly that they didn't need to come to the hospital immediately but rather stay at home and call the helpline so that they could assess the symptoms and send an ambulance to take him to the hospital with isolation service. These are mentioned in the guidelines of home quarantine by NIH Pakistan [16]. In the question 10, 92% of the respondents knew about the helpline which has been made by government of Pakistan for the facilitation and consultation of covid-19 patients.

When we evaluate the results based on the profession, it is found that 55.3% correct responses were from medical students and 46.9% of the correct responses were from the physicians. This can be compared with a previous study which also showed that the medical students have more correct response than the physician [17]. This can be due to the fact that medical students are in the lockdown where they have more chance to study about the corona virus but in the questions regarding the management of covid-19, the physicians have responded more correctly.

The overall correct response was 68.25% which can be compared with a previous study which showed that Pakistan is not well prepared to face this pandemic [18]. We recommend that proper training programs may be conducted to prepare the frontline workers to face this pandemic. More research is needed in this regard. Our results can provide a baseline data to know about the awareness of frontline workers of Pakistan. If students are called in case of shortage of doctors, they should be prepared through the online webinars so that they may have adequate awareness regarding diagnosis and management of covid-19. The limitations of this study are its cross-sectional nature, the nonprobable sampling technique and subjective limitations of the respondents as this was an online survey. Despite these limitations, our data can define the magnitude of the problem.

E. CONCLUSIONS

To face this pandemic, adequate amount of knowledge is needed specially of the frontline workers. Our study showed 68.25% awareness of the participants and more responsiveness is needed in this regard to tackle this pandemic efficiently.

REFERENCES

- Emro WHO. WHO EMRO | WHO extends support to Pakistan as it confirms its first two cases of COVID-19. 2019.
- Cucinotta D, Vanelli M. WHO declares COVID-19 a pandemic. Acta Biomedica. 2020.
- Lau SKP, Woo PCY, Li KSM, Huang Y, Tsoi HW, Wong BHL, et al. Severe acute respiratory syndrome coronavirus-like virus in Chinese horseshoe bats. Proc Natl Acad Sci U S A. 2005;
- Azhar EI, El-Kafrawy SA, Farraj SA, Hassan AM, Al-Saeed MS, Hashem AM, et al. Evidence for camel-to-human transmission of MERS coronavirus. N Engl J Med. 2014;
- Sun P, Lu X, Xu C, Sun W, Pan B. Understanding of COVID-19 based on current evidence. Journal of Medical Virology. 2020.
- Raosoft. Sample Size Calculator by Raosoft, Inc. Sample size. 2004.
- Li L quan, Huang T, Wang Y qing, Wang Z ping, Liang Y, Huang T bi, et al. 2019 novel coronavirus patients' clinical characteristics, discharge rate, and fatality rate of meta-analysis. Journal of Medical Virology. 2020.
- Bhagavathula AS, Aldhaleei WA, Rahmani J, Mahabadi MA, Bandari DK. Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19) Knowledge and Perceptions: A Survey on Healthcare workers. medRxiv. 2020;
- Hollander JE, Carr BG. Virtually Perfect? Telemedicine for Covid-19. N Engl J Med. 2020;
- Kittleson MM. The Invisible Hand Medical Care during the Pandemic. N Engl J Med. 2020;
- World Health Organization (WHO). Rational use of personal protective equipment for coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19). Who. 2020;
- Feng S, Shen C, Xia N, Song W, Fan M, Cowling BJ. Rational use of face masks in the COVID-19 pandemic. Lancet Respir Med. 2020;
- Kumar J, Katto MS, Siddiqui AA, Sahito B, Jamil M, Rasheed N, et al. Knowledge , Attitude , and Practices of Healthcare Workers Regarding the Use of Face Mask to Limit the Spread of the New Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19). 2020;12(4).
- Johnson M. Wuhan 2019 Novel Coronavirus 2019-nCoV. Mater Methods. 2020;
- Laboratory-Testing-Recommendations-for-COVID-19.pdf.
- Code D. Guidelines Home Quarantine during COVID 19 Out-break. 2020;(March):1–2.

- Modi PD, Nair G, Uppe A, Modi J, Tuppekar B, Gharpure AS, et al. COVID-19 Awareness Among Healthcare Students and Professionals in Mumbai Metropolitan Region: A Questionnaire-Based Survey. Cureus. 2020;12(4).
- Khan S, Khan M, Maqsood K, Hussain T, Noor-ul-Huda, Zeeshan M. Is Pakistan prepared for the COVID-19 epidemic? A questionnaire-based survey. J Med Virol. 2020;



Correlation Between Clerkship Program Grading and the Result of National Exam on Medical Student

Ħ

Yuhanida Ratnasari^{1*}, Sulistyani², Iin Novita Nurhidayati Mahmuda³

- ¹ Medical Student, Faculty of Medicine, Universitas Muhammadiyah Surakarta, Surakarta, Indonesia
- ² Department of Neurology, Faculty of Medicine, Universitas Muhammadiyah Surakarta, Surakarta, Indonesia
- ³ Department of Internal Medicine, Faculty of Medicine, Universitas Muhammadiyah Surakarta, Surakarta, Indonesia
- ^{*} Corresponding author. Email: j500160062@student.ums.ac.id; phone number: +6282244266290

ABSTRACT

The result of medical education expressed with Grade Point Average (GPA). Assessment of medical competency conducted by National Exam on Medical Student. There were still many students who fail at National Exam indicates mismatch between them. This study aims to determine whether Clerkship GPA correlated with results of National Exam. This is an analytical observational with a cross-sectional study design. The required data obtained from secondary data by using students' databases during education and results of National Exam in Faculty of Medicine of Universitas Muhammadiyah Surakarta in the 2017-2019 period. There were 335 data used as samples. The result of the National Examination on Medical Student was divided into two variables, the first one was Computer Based Test (CBT) and the second one was Objective Structured Clinical Examination (OSCE). The data then analyzed using Spearman correlation test. The statistical analysis showed that Sig. value of variable Clerkship Program GPA - CBT was p=0.000 and correlation strength r=0,350 which means there was a significant correlation but in a weak positive correlation. The Sig. value of variable Clerkship Program GPA - OSCE was p=0.003 and correlation strength r=0.162 which means there was a significant correlation but in a very weak positive correlation. The result of statistical analysis in this study proved that the Clerkship Program GPA still correlates with the result of CBT and OSCE in the National Exam test.

Keywords: Clerkship, GPA, national exam



Α. Introduction

The undergraduate Indonesian medical education program consists of two levels of education. The first one is preclinical and then followed by a clinical clerkship program on medical education [1]. Clerkship program is given to students who have completed the preclinical education. At this level, students undergo real education in hospitals or other educational facilities under a medical practitioner's guidance and supervision. Clerkship programs give students experience in learning by viewing and doing cases directly. The educational curriculum of the faculty of medicine Universitas Muhammadiyah Surakarta (FKUMS), clerkship program is given for 16 periods of rotation, 49 credits, and run for a minimum of 22 months [2].

Each rotation's final result is calculated based on the scientific activity, mini clinical evaluation exercise (mini CEX), and case exam scores. The final grade period percentage can be different for each rotation, depending on the material being studied. The final result of a student's learning process is stated by the Grade Point Average (GPA). This GPA is an important indicator to measure the success of a student's learning process [3].

After completing the clerkship program, students will begin to prepare to go through the final national exam. National examination in Indonesia has been implemented by the mandate of Law Number 20 of 2013 concerning Medical Education mandates to ensure the quality of medical graduates and medical school [4]. The examination- named as Uji Kompetensi Mahasiswa Program Profesi Dokter (UKMPPD), has been conducted four times a year in February, May, August, and November [5].

In the national exam, assessment of competency achievement is carried out using written examination by 200 items multiple choice question (MCQ) since 2007, then has been administered using a computerized-based test (CBT) since 2010. A clinical skills assessment in the form of Objective Structured Clinical Examination (OSCE) was added by the committee in 2013 [6]. The national exam has a standard as reference to assess competency, namely Standar Nasional Pendidikan Profesi Dokter Indonesia-SNPPDI in 2019, a minimum standard that must be achieved by medical graduate that is compiled by Indonesian Medical Council or Konsil Kedokteran Indonesia-KKI. SNPPDI has been used as a reference in developing the competency-based curriculum (CBC) in medical education [7].

As the most recent educational process before taking the national exam, it is hoped that the clerkship program of education will provide knowledge, skills, and behavior for students as provisions to participate and complete the national exam well.

Data from the Ministry of Research Technology and Higher Education showed that only 87% of medical students successfully passed the first take on the national exam in February 2020. The total number of retakers after the national exam in February 2020 reached 2307 students. There were still many students who fail at National Exam indicates a mismatch between them[8].

This statement raises the question, can a student's GPA in the clerkship program guarantee a student's competence to pass the national exam? Thus, this study aims to examine the correlation between the clerkship program's GPA and the national exam score. This research hopes academically is to provide information for institutions to improve the quality medical education learning process.

B. METHODS

1. Design and Setting

This research is an analytical observational with a cross-sectional study design, exploring the correlation between clerkship GPA in medical students and the national exam results. This study uses a cross-sectional approach because the data is collected at one time and there is no intervention in the process.

Subjects of the present study were performed as medical students of FKUMS who took the national exam over three year periods between 2017-2019. This type of data were secondary data collected directly from the medical administration department in Universitas Muhammadiyah Surakarta. During the education and results of the national exam in 2017-2019, the student's database was used. We excluded students who had incomplete data in the student database. The samples that met the criteria were 335 samples.

The independent variable was the clerkship GPA and the dependent variable was the results of the national exam. Explanatory variables in the national exam were divided into two variables included CBT scores and OSCE scores.

2. Statistical analysis

Quantitative analysis procedures have been applied to the data performed of assessment measure for each variable. The influence of independent variables on dependent variable of interest was explored through statistical analysis. Statistical analysis was performed using SPSS 25 program for windows. The existing data, then processed by editing, tabulating, then inputting correctly. The result was compared using Spearman's correlation test because there were data that were not normally scattered.

C. Results

We analyzed scores of 335 medical students who participated in the National Exam both CBT and OSCE in 2017-2019.



Figure 1. The number of clerkship GPA

Figure 1 shows some differences in distribution data from clerkship GPA of medical students from Universitas Muhammadiyah Surakarta of each batch in three-year periods between 2017-2019. The highest graduation number in this study was in 2019, the second batch, while the lowest was the third batch in 2017 and the first batch in 2018.



Figure 2. The number of graduates from the national exam

Figure 2 shows the number of graduates in medical students of Universitas Muhammadiyah Surakarta on the national exams for the period 2017-2019. Each year, the number of graduates students will increase from the first batch to the second batch, with the second batch as the highest, then the number will decrease further, until the lowest in the fourth batch. This highest number was the second batch in 2018, while the lowest was the fourth batch in 2017 and 2018.

Bivariate analysis was used to determine the relationship between variables in this study. The data were tested for normality with Kolmogorov-Smirnov test because the number of samples was more than 50 data, the results showed an abnormal distribution of data. After transformation did not produce different results, as an alternative to Pearson correlation test, Spearman correlation test was performed. The correlation test was conducted to determine single relationship between the variables, clerkship GPA and national exam results, both CBT and OSCE scores.

	Correlation	GPA	CBT
GPA	Correlation coefficient	1	0.350**
	Sig.		0.000
	Ν	335	335
CBT	Correlation coefficient	0.350**	1
	Sig.	0.000	
	Ν	335	335

Table 1.	Bivariate Spearman correlation test for Clerkship GPA and C	BT
	national exam scores	

** Correlation is significant at the level 0.001 level (2-tailed)

Table 2.	Bivariate Spearman correlation test for Clerkship GPA and OSC	Ъ
	national exam scores	

	Correlation	GPA	CBT
GPA	Correlation coefficient	1	0.162**
	Sig.		0.003
	Ν	335	335
OSCE	Correlation coefficient	0.162**	1
	Sig.	0.003	
	Ν	335	335

** Correlation is significant at the level 0.001 level (2-tailed)

Table 1 shows the correlation test results between clerkship GPA and CBT scores showing a weak relationship (r = 0.350) and a positive pattern. Statistical tests results between Clerkship GPA and CBT scores showed a significant correlation (p = 0.000). Table 2 shows the correlation test for Clerkship GPA with OSCE scores showing a very weak relationship (r = 0.162) and a positive pattern. Statistical tests results between Clerkship GPA and OSCE scores showed a significant relationship (p = 0.003).

D. Discussions

1. Clerkship Grade Point Average

The medical learning process, including clinical clerkship, is based on competency-based curricula and the National Standards for Indonesian Medical Professional Education (*Standar Nasional Pendidikan Profesi Dokter* – *SNPPDI*) created as a reference for curricula. This competency standard is set by the Indonesian Medical Council [7]. Clinical clerkship is a teaching and learning process that aims to provide students opportunities to understand the theory, train doctors' clinical procedures, and competence [6]

Academic achievement is an important indicator for higher educational institutions to measure the teaching and learning process's success. One of the indicators used to identify a student's learning achievement is Grade Point Average (GPA) [9]. Figure 1 shows that the average clerkship GPA of medical student graduates at FKUMS varies with the highest GPA as long as it is achieved by the second batch, which is the best graduate period. Meanwhile, in general, the average clerkship GPA achieved by students who graduate in 2019 gave the best for the last three years. Every year, the average clerkship GPA has reached the target, which is above 3.0, and increasing every year. This illustrates the quality process of medical education being implemented is getting better.

The curriculum applied in FKUMS states the clinical clerkship learning process starts after students who have passed the requirements, students will enter clinical clerkship in 16 periods of rotation, 49 credits, and run for a minimum of 22 months [2]. Activities carried out during clinical clerkship in each rotation include structured and unstructured activities. Structured activities are specifically planned and carried out in units of time with a specific report format. Structured clinical clerkship activities include bedside teaching, clinical tutorials, case presentations, referrals, and journal reading. Unstructured activities include students who encounter patients in the ward or outpatient clinics, including follow-up and visit, learning by maintaining emergency and inpatient department, meeting experts, and independent study. Students can actively participate in clinical practice, and these experiments will enhance the students' clinical competency [10].

The final result of learning process at each clinical rotation period in FKUMS is calculated based on the scientific activity score, the mini CEX score, and the case exam scores. The percentage for the final score of rotation can differ for each rotation, depending on the lesson learned. The final result of each rotation will later be accumulated into a clinical clerkship GPA, which is the result of the student learning process while studying in medicine [3].

2. Results of the National Exam

The national exam is a large-scale examination taken early in a career or near the point of graduation, where passing the examination is a licensing requirement to practice medicine [11]. Implementing the national exam is a healthcare regulator's policy decision to protect the public by assuring standards in the profession. For some countries, the national exam also serves the purpose of improving healthcare education quality [12]

For example, in Indonesia, the Ministry of Higher Education and Research then decided to leverage and ensure Indonesian medical graduates' quality to meet specific standards based on competencies in SNPPDI by establishing the national exam on medical students. This examination was also intended to drive improvement or capacity building within medical schools. Managed by a committee coordinated by the Ministry of Higher Education and Research and the Indonesian Medical Council, the national exam was established in 2007, namely *Ujian Kompetensi Dokter Indonesia- UKDI*. [6] The national exam, UKDI, by the Law Number 20 of 2013 concerning Medical Education Article 36 of the Law, has been changed into *Ujian Kompetensi Mahasiswa Pendidikan Dokter Indonesia – UKMPPD* [1].

The national examination must be carried out by fulfilling several principles, so the credibility in ensuring the quality of higher medical education in Indonesia can be accounted. These principles that must be met are validity, reliability, transparency, applicability, and impact on education [13]. The examination started with an assessment of knowledge using Multiple Choice Question (MCQ) since 2007. MCQ has quite a lot of validity and also has reasonably good reliability used in the understanding concept of knowledge, knows or knows how. Students are required to answer 200 question items about basic and clinical knowledge over 200 minutes. The MCQ testing method can be done through CBT in 2010, this provides a better view so that images or imaging of the patient can be better. CBT will also provide results in the assessment, analysis, and reporting are faster and more comfortable [13] [6].

The committee has added a clinical skills assessment in the form of OSCE since 2013. OSCE is an assessment of students' competence in carrying



out clinical skills in an objective and structured manner in the form of examinations with 14 stations (2 rest stations) within a 15 minute each station. Clinical examination is an assessment of clinical ability or performance, which is not only a student's knowledge, but also students have to demonstrate directly. The stations used simulated clinical scenarios in rooms set as outpatient clinics, emergency rooms, and operation/ surgical rooms. There were standardized patient encounter cases as well as simulations using manikins. Examinees were guided by buzzer sounds for the rotation [6] [13].

Medical students must pass both examinations before they can graduate from medical school. Students who pass the national exam gain a certificate of competency. This certificate is required for a license of practice from the Indonesian government. Students who fail the examination must retake the examination, and medical schools must provide remediation programs for them. In addition to ensuring the quality of medical education in Indonesia, the national exam is critical because the students' graduation rate becomes a national benchmark and the ranking of domestic medical faculty institutions in Indonesia. The number of graduation rates in the national exams at the medical faculty of Universitas Muhammadiyah Surakarta still varies widely. During the last three years in 2017-2019, it has about 100-150 doctors graduated each year.

Figure 2 shows that the graduation number of FKUMS over the three years periods in 2017-2019. The second batch gave an number of graduates each year. The number of participants for the second batch of the national exam is usually the largest in FKUMS. These candidates for the second batch national exam generally are students who graduate on time from their preclinical programs and have a good prior academic achievement as reflected by the GPA. Meanwhile, in the fourth batch, the number of participants on the national exam test was the least, so results also decreased.

The steps taken by FKUMS to increase number of graduates were organizing national exam study preparation. Intensive preparation began to be seriously designed in 2015. Internal Try Out (TO) was implemented with a cut-off point of 55 as a requirement for national exam registration. The number of internal TO and cut-off points increasing to 66 points, which is also one reason for motivating national exam participant candidates to be more active in studying to prepare for exams. The study conducted by Santoso (2016) at the Faculty of Medicine Universitas Muhammadiyah Jakarta shows that the national exam preparation and TO's implementation are proven increase the national exam graduation rates. The TO score was also significantly related to the CBT score. The implementation of TO at FKUMS must be maintained as much as possible in order to increase graduation rates [14].

Starting from the 2015/2016 academic year, armed with the experience of conducting national exam preparation that has been running then evaluating the results of previous graduation rates, FKUMS implemented a new learning system change at the preclinical education level, namely the 8th Skill Lab, which provides comprehensive content of all systems that students have passed. The 8th Skill lab ends with a comprehensive exam covering CBT and OSCE with similar questions tested on the national exam.

A CBT exam of each rotation has been held as part of the student assessment since the 2015/2016 academic year. the CBT exam is taken by students at the end of each clinical rotation. The CBT exam contains questions similar to national exam questions collected from clinical lecturers of FKUMS [2]. Implementing the 8th Skill Lab and CBT at the end of clinical rotation were factors that made number of graduates in 2018 increase significantly compared to the previous year in 2017. Unfortunately, the high achievement of the national graduation rate cannot be maintained in 2019. As shown in Figure 2, the number of graduates are lower than 2019 and even tend to decline, although it is still better than 2017.

3. Bivariate Analysisis

Based on the two figures, the interesting, even though the average clerkship GPA for graduate students in 2019 was the highest in the last three years, the national exam's highest graduation rate was 2018. Then in this study, a correlation test analysis was carried out to determine whether there was a relationship between clerkship GPA and the results of the national exam divided into CBT score and OSCE score.

Based on the Spearman correlation test, analysis between the clerkship GPA and CBT score, in Table 1, it was found that there was a significant correlation (p=0.000) with the strength of the weak correlation (r=0.350) in a positive result. This positive result suggests that those who perform well to get higher clerkship GPA scores may also generally get higher results from the CBT score. The previous study also shows a significant correlation in the analysis between the correlation between clerkship GPA and the result of CBT [15] [9].

The Spearman correlation test between the clerkship GPA and OSCE score, in Table 2, found a significant correlation (p=0.003) with the strength of the very weak correlation (r = 0.162) in a positive result. This positive result also suggests that those who perform well to get higher clerkship GPA scores may also generally get higher results from the OSCE score. Previous studies also showed a significant correlation in the analysis of the clerkship GPA correlation with the OSCE score [15].

In this study, we found that the correlation strength between clerkship GPA-CBT was more than clerkship GPA-OSCE. There are several possibility causes for this outcome. Previous studies reported that students thought clinical clerkship helped deal with OSCE tests, and felt that reading books for OSCE was more helpful than their clinical clerkship [16]. Other studies reported that patient-centered care in the clinical clerkship learning environment is being very important[17] while performance on the OSCE was related to well-organized study methods, then clinical experience ranked next [18]. It also reported that prior academic performance, rather than preparatory studying time, is a better predictor of OSCE outcomes [16].

The Spearman correlation test results in this study show the clerkship GPA still has a significant relationship with the national exam results, but in a small effect. Clinical performance is very complex in nature and requires various training and teaching methods, and a certain level of knowledge is crucial for appropriate clinical performance. Students do not always do a physical examination on every patient they encounter. The explanation for this could be any of the following: students may be hesitant to do a physical examination as they are not confident in their skills to conduct the physical examination. Additionally, many physicians do not do physical examination thoroughly, and the importance of the physical examination has declined with the development of diagnostic aids. Therefore, students may have little chance of observing physicians doing physical examinations during the clerkship. This process's success highly depends on students' capacity, ability, and activeness during the clinical clerkship program. Lack of student preparation is also an essential factor in clinical learning, so when carrying out clinical clerkship education, it is not under predetermined competency standards [16] [9].

The highest average clerkship GPA result was obtained in 2019, but the highest average national exam results obtained in 2018 can also be explained. There are other variables outside the clerkship GPA that tend to have a stronger correlation to the national exam results, which is not examined in this study. Several studies have predicted the national exam results are not only influenced by clerkship GPA, but their studies also address several other variables potentially associated with the national exam results. According to Suswati & Rahayu (2019), the results of the national exam can be influenced by several variables. This study studied 30% of the total variables that affect the national exam results. There are five variables discussed in this study, namely preclinical GPA, clerkship GPA, results of the Clinical Integration Assessment (CIA) conducted by the university, Benchmark (BM), which is a national exam tryout for Muhammadiyah Universities (religion-based universities), and local national exam tryout results for each region (AIPKI) [19].

Given previous studies on academic performance, it was stated that the national exam results were actually stronger due to the results of preclinical GPA. The study conducted by Febrivanti (2017) reported both preclinical GPA and clerkship GPA affect the national exam result. Preclinical GPA has a more significant effect on CBT, while clerkship GPA has a more significant effect on OSCE results [15]. Another study conducted by Puspitasari (2017), also reported the relationship between preclinical GPA and clerkship GPA with the national exam results. Preclinical GPA has a more significant effect than clerkship GPA on the national exam results, both CBT and OSCE. This study also reported that clerkship GPA only correlates with CBT but does not with OSCE [9]. It was stated the questions given during the CBT exam are in the form of theoretical questions, and are more directed at the cognitive domain, while OSCE, even though it leads to clinical skills, strengthening the basics of medical science is needed for clinical action. This was a reason why preclinical GPA in that prior academic performance was a better predictor for the national exam. [16] [9].

This study has a number of limitations worth noting. First, as data were obtained from a single institution, our findings may not be generalizable to other medical schools. However, our results likely apply to Indonesia's medical schools, given the core medical curriculum adopted throughout the country. Second, we only analyzed one variable during clinical clerkship administration without analyzing other influencing variables. Therefore, further studies to evaluate other variables that influence national exam result should be done.

E. Conclusions

In conclusion, our study found the result proved statistically that Clerkship GPA still correlates with CBT and OSCE in the National Exam test. Our study suggests that clerkship GPA is weakly associated with student's national exam results. Although only small correlations were present between them, the amount of clinical experience in clerkship cannot be overlooked. Teaching quality and supportive supervision should be improved to increase student performance during clerkship and national examinations.

Authors' Contributions

YR was responsible for research study design, analysis, and authorship manuscript. S and INM were responsible for data collection, ethics approval, authorship manuscript. All authors read and approved the final manuscript to be published.

Acknowledgments

The authors would like to thank the representatives of medical schools for their support, as well as Prof. dr. EM Sutrisna., M.Kes. as Dean of the Faculty of Medicine Universitas Muhammadiyah Surakarta, who always provides support and facilities to the authors. A special thanks goes to the students whose data were used as samples in this study.

REFERENCES

- Indonesian Medical Counsil, "Standar Pendidikan Profesi Dokter Indonesia," Jakarta, Konsil Kedokteran Indonesia, 2012.
- FK UMS, "Program Profesi," [Online]. Available: http://kedokteran.ums.ac.id/ program-profesi/. [Accessed 25 November 2020].
- Fakultas Kedokteran Universitas Muhammadiyah Surakarta, Panduan Kepaniteraan Klinik, 7 ed., Surakarta: FK UMS, 2020.
- Indonesian Government, Law No 20 of 2013 concerning on Medical Education, Indonesian Secretariat, 2013.
- The Ministry of Research Technology and Higher Education, "Layanan Uji Kompetensi," [Online]. Available: https://dikti.kemdikbud.go.id/uji-kompetensi/#:~:text=Dalam%20satu%20tahun%2C%20setiap%20 peserta,waktu%20setiap%203%20bulan%20sekali.. [Accessed 20 November 2020].
- R. N. Hidayah, Impact of the National Medical Licensing Examination in Indonesia: Perspective from Students, Teacher, and Medical Schools, Dissertation The University of Leeds, 2018.
- Indonesian Medical Counsil, Standar Nasional Pendidikan Profesi Dokter Indonesia, Jakarta, 2019.
- The Ministry of Researh Technology and Higher Education, "Kebijakan Kemendikbud: Akreditasi Prodi Kedokteran," in *Webinar AIPKI*, 2020.
- A. Y. Puspitasari, O. Saputra, K. N. Berawi and D. Oktaria, "Korelasi Indeks Prestasi Kumulatif Mahasiswa terhadap Hasil Kelulusan Uji Kompetensi Mahasiswa Program Profesi Dokter Periode November 2014 - Mei 2015 Fakultas Kedokteran Universitas Lampung," *Agromed Unila*, vol. 4, no. 2, pp. 237-242, 2017.
- Program Studi Profesi Dokter FK UMS, Panduan Kepaniteraan Klinik Ilmu Penyakit Dalam, Surakarta: FK UMS, 2020.
- J. Archer, N. Lynn, L. Coombes, M. Roberts, T. Gale and S. R. d. Bere, "The Medical Licensing Examination Debate," *Regulation & Governance*, vol. 11, no. 3, pp. 315-322, 2016.
- R. N. Hidayah, "Is Patient Safety at the Heart of Medical Education in Indonesia? Reflection on the Impact of the National Examination," *The Indonesian Journal of Medical Education*, vol. 8, no. 3, pp. 153-160, 2019.
- M. Pusparini, A. Imaningdyah, S. H. Andayani, Z. P. Mahardhika and D. D. Miranti, "Hubungan antara IPK Program Sarjana Kedokteran dengan Nilai UKMPPD Mahasiswa FK UY," *JK Unila*, vol. 1, no. 2, pp. 235-242, 2016.
- S. S. Santoso, N. Lusida, I. Farida and A. F. Husaeni, "Analisa Efektivitas Pembimbingan Mahasiswa dalam Persiapan Mengikuti UKMPPD (Uji Kompetensi Mahasiswa Pendidikan Profesi Dokter) terhadap Kelulusan UKMPPD Nasional Periode 2016," Palembang, 2016.
- W. Febrianti, M. F. Memah and F. P. Manoppo, "Hubungan IPK Sarjana dan Profesi dengan Nilai CBT, OSCE, dan Hasil UKMPPD di Fakultas Kedokteran Universitas Sam Ratulangi Periode Mei dan Februari 2017," *Jurnal e-Biomedik*, vol. 5, no. 2, 2017.
- J. Y. Kim and S. J. Myung, "Could clinical experience during clerkship enhance students clinical performance?," *BMC Medical Education*, vol. 14, pp. 1-7, 2014.
- M. V. Wilcox, M. S. Orlando, C. S. Rand, J. Record, C. Christmas, R. C. Ziegelstein and L. A. Hanyok, "Medical Students' Perception of the Patient-Centeredness of the Learning Environment," *Perspect Med Educ*, vol. 6, pp. 44-50, 2017.
- S. Muller, I. Koch, U. Settmacher and U. Dahmen, "How the introduction of OSCEs Has Affected the Time Students Spend Studying: Results of Nationwide Study," *BMC Medical Education*, vol. 19, pp. 1-7, 2019.
- I. Suswati and Rahayu, "Validitas Prediktif Uji Kompetensi Mahasiswa Program Profesi Dokter (UKMPPD) pada Tahap Profesi," vol. 13, no. 2, pp. 118-124, 2017.



Assessing the Perception of Undergraduate Dental Students Regarding Effectiveness of Online Small Group Discussion Sessions

Ħ

Laila Shakeel Abbasi1*, Taliya Sajjad2

¹Demonstrator, Department of Medical Education, Shifa Tameer.e. Millat University, Pakistan. ²Demonstrator, Department of Medical Education, Shifa Tameer.e. Millat University, Pakistan. *Corresponding author. Email: <u>ls_abbasi@live.com</u>

ABSTRACT

COVID 19 disrupted the whole world included the teaching and learning in academic institutes. The traditional teaching methods were deemed unsafe in context of social distancing measures and were replaced by live or asynchronous online teaching. The aim of the study is to see the perception of the students regarding the online Small Group Discussion sessions and their effectiveness. A cross sectional survey designed study using an anonymous questionnaire to receive feedback on the online Small Group Discussion (SGD) Sessions. The survey included 48 students of first year BDS who have had attended 3 modules (4 weeks each) of online teaching including daily SGD sessions. The data was analyzed using SPSS version 20.0. The results of our study show that the students have a positive response towards the facilitation of Small group sessions in an online manner. Small group discussion sessions are one of the predominant teaching and learning strategies to promote active and interactive learning. Facilitators need to devise strategies to keep the sessions interactive to ensure maximum student participation.

Keywords: Small group discussions, COVID-19, medical education, online teaching

A. Introduction

As the whole world has been disturbed due to Global Pandemic of COVID-19, medical education has suffered as well. The faculty and the students struggled worldwide to cope with the situation and considerable changes were made to consolidate the teaching and learning effectively. Despite the shutdown of all academic institutions all over the world, the medical colleges made the transition to online forums as soon as the lockdown ensued, but the lack of on-campus activities hampered the very nature of modern collaborative interactive learning for students [1].

The traditional teaching methods were deemed unsafe in context of social distancing measures and lectures and clinical trainings were all replaced by live or asynchronous online teaching [2]. It precluded students from gathering in lecture halls, clinics, and small groups [3]. Transition from face-to-face to online learning has not been without challenges. Online learning includes the use of electronic technology and media to deliver, support and enhance both learning and teaching by involving communication between learners and teachers using online content. [4]. In a study conducted in Australia it was reported that the conversion to online learning lowers course satisfaction by about 0.2 points N/A the instructor's satisfaction by about 0.12 points attributing to the unpopularity of courses in online manner [5].

The most important component of classroom learning is the social and communicative interactions between students and teachers and students and students. It is through small group discussions, conversations, and debate that the concepts are cleared, and new ideas encouraged [6]. In online conversion, the component that was affected the most was the reduced interaction and opportunities of effective group discussions to promote active learning. One technique to demonstrate the collaborative learning in these circumstances is to conduct effective Small Group Discussion Meetings in an online forum [1].

Building relationship with other members of the class Is a challenge in online platforms [7]. In face-to-face discussions leaders can recognize body language and expressions of members and draw the non-participatory members in the discussion. This cannot happen effectively in online forums along with the delay in conversations in online forum that reduce the efficiency of online small group discussions [8]. The effective facilitation of online discussion sessions takes time, effort, strategies, and commitment just like face-to-face group discussions or even more so [9]. A sense of community is crucial to student's engagement and satisfaction in learning, which is the most struggled component in online programs as well [10]. A study conducted in India during the COVID-19 era proposes that online teaching surprisingly increased the student participation as compared to the on-campus session. [11]. Another benefit of engaging students online was noted that this helped broaden student horizons by encouraging them to recognize the relevance of what they learning to the issues that are being faced by the society, rendering them more responsible [12].

The effectiveness of Online SGD sessions held for students in COVID lockdown is still questionable and the perception of the students' needs to be studied to see if the implemented teaching strategy is effective for students active learning. The aim of this study is to see the perception of the students regarding the online Small Group Discussion sessions and their effectiveness.

B. Methods

A designed study was quantitative cross-sectional survey using an anonymous questionnaire to receive feedback on the online Small Group Discussion (SGD) Sessions. The questionnaire was designed, and pilot tested in a small sample to ensure accuracy of containing question items. The survey included 48 students of first year BDS at Shifa College of Dentistry, who had attended 3 modules (4 weeks each) of online teaching including daily SGD sessions. Any students that had not attended the online SGD sessions were excluded from the study. The purpose of the study was briefed, and informed consent was taken from the participants. The participation in the study was voluntary. The questionnaire was sent to students through google forms and data was collected.

C. Results

The data was analyzed using SPSS version 20.0. The Questionnaire was distributed to all First Year BDS students (N= 48), out of which majority (46) responded making the response rate of 95.83%. Among these participants majority 37(80.4%) were Females and the remaining 8 (17.4%) were Males. The responses of the participants to 11 items of the questionnaire are summarized in Figure 1.

For Overall Perception, a Mean was calculated for 11 items with scores ranging from 11-44. The Mean score came out to be 28.35. Those who scored less than the Mean (less than 28.35) were considered having positive attitude and those with score of more than 28.35 were considered to have negative attitude towards e-learning as shown in Table-1.

Responses		N [%]	Mean	Standard Deviation
Overall Perception	Negative	20 [43.5%]	23.3	4.3
	Positive	27 [56.6%]	32.3	3.2

Table 1. Overall perception of Students towards Online SGD Sessions



Figure 1. Perception of students regarding effectiveness of online SGD sessions

D. Discussions

The results of our study show that the students have a positive response towards the facilitation of Small group sessions in an online manner. Majority of the students agreed that the online sessions facilitate active learning and participation and promote interaction during the discussion [see table 1]. It was observed that 59% students of the students felt the online sessions to be interactive whereas 67% students believed that the online sessions promoted their active participation. One striking negative response seen is the inability of the students to maintain concentration in the online sessions as 52% of students felt that they are unable to maintain proper attention throughout the sessions. This is one big disadvantage of online sessions as compared to face-to-face discussions that virtual environment tends to reduce the attention span and focus is lost easily during the sessions. Encouraging and maintaining effective interaction and direction of the sessions is one of the most difficult tasks faced group leaders and facilitators [13].

Small group teaching sessions involves teacher acting as a facilitator and it is observed that the learning paradigm shifts from lecturer-centred to student-centred. Equal participation is ensured by all the students, whereas if the discussion goes off- track, the facilitator brings the teaching back on track. [14]. Literature shows that in an online setting, limited opportunities to interact with peers in person reduced the sense of connection and increased the reluctance to participation in group setting [10].

Student engagement has always been a challenge which needs to be addressed in online as well as face to face teaching sessions [11]. The online sessions hold the advantage of being technically superior, but effort is needed to make the sessions focused and effective for learning. To optimize the efficiency of online sessions, the learning environment should be designed in a way that learning is situated in the context and is active, interactive, and reflective in nature planned with pre learning sessions activities that provoke students thought process [15].

E. Limitations

The limitations of the study include small sample size and single institute study hence results are not generalizable and need larger sample size and multi-institutional sample to ensure generalizability in the findings.

F. Conclusions

Small group discussion sessions are one of the predominant teaching and learning strategies to promote active and interactive learning in medical students. The study aimed at finding the perception of students regarding the online small group discussion sessions amid the COVID 19 lockdown and suspension of on campus activities. We found that the students hold a positive response towards the online SGD sessions and consider them active, interactive, and conducive for learning.

G. Recommendations and impacts

The study was conducted to check the response of students towards online SGD sessions. Most of the students had a positive response. The educational impact of this study is that if in the future, blended learning needs to be followed due to any uncertain circumstances, the effectiveness of the online small group teaching sessions along with on campus activities can also be appreciated. Furthermore, recommendations for future studies include comparing different small teaching activities including PBL, CBL, TBL and studying students and teachers experiences regarding their usefulness.

Authors' Contributions

Both the authors contributed towards idea conception, data collection and writing of the article.

References

- Ferrel MN, Ryan JJ. The Impact of COVID-19 on Medical Education. Cureus. 2020;12(3):10–3.
- Dedeilia A, Sotiropoulos MG, Hanrahan JG, Janga D, Dedeilias P, Sideris M. Medical and surgical education challenges, and innovations in the COVID-19 era: A systematic review. In Vivo (Brooklyn). 2020; 34:1603–11.
- Rose S. Medical Student Education in the Time of COVID-19. JAMA J Am Med Assoc. 2020;323(21):2131–2.
- O'Doherty D, Dromey M, Lougheed J, Hannigan A, Last J, McGrath D. Barriers, and solutions to online learning in medical education – an integrative review Diane. BMC Med Educ. 2018;18(130).
- Guest R, Rohde N, Selvanathan S, Soesmanto T. Student satisfaction and online teaching. Assess Eval High Educ [Internet]. 2018;43(7):1084–93. shttps://doi.org/10.1080/02602938.2018.1433815
- Ni AY. Comparing the Effectiveness of Classroom and Online Learning: Teaching Research Methods. J Public Aff Educ. 2013;19(2):199–215.
- Bart M. How to Design Effective Online Group Work Activities Faculty Focus | Higher Ed Teaching & Learning [Internet]. (cited 2020 Sep 9). Available from: https://www.facultyfocus.com/articles/online-education/how-todesign-effective-online-group-work-activities/
- Davis NL, Gough M, Taylor LL. Online teaching: advantages, obstacles, and tools for getting it right. J Teach Travel Tour [Internet]. 2019;19(3):256–63. https://doi.org/10.1080/15313220.2019.1612313
- Thomas G, Thorpe S. Enhancing the facilitation of online groups in higher education: a review of the literature on face-to-face and online group-facilitation. Interact Learn Environ [Internet]. 2019;27(1):62–71. https://doi.org/10.1080/10494820.2018.1451897
- Berry S. Teaching to connect: Community-building strategies for the virtual classroom. Online Learn J. 2019;23(1):164–83.
- Shenoy V, Mahendra S, Vijay N. COVID 19 Lockdown Technology Adaption, Teaching, Learning, Students Engagement and Faculty Experience. Mukt Shabd J. 2020;9(4):698–702.
- Cole D, Rengasamy E, Batchelor S, Pope C, Riley S, Cunningham AM. Using social media to support small group learning. BMC Med Educ. 2017;17(1):1-7.
- Steinert Y. Twelve tips for effective small group teaching in the health professions. Med Teach. 1996;18(3):203-7.
- Saiyad S, Mishra SK, Rimal H, George C, Kaur G. Teaching and Learning through Large and Small Groups. J Res Med Educ Ethics. 2018;8:24.
- Berge Z. Active Interactive Reflective Learning.pdf. Vol. 3, The Quarterly Review of Distance Education. 2002. p. 181–90.

Students' Evaluation on Online Distance Learning in School of Medicine, Atma Jaya Catholic University of Indonesia

Ħ

Felicia Kurniawan^{*}, Yunisa Astiarani, Bryany Titi Santi, Laurentius Aswin Pramono, Kevin Kristian

^{*}Department of Public Health and Nutrition, Atma Jaya Catholic University of Indonesia, Jakarta

*Corresponding author. Email: felicia.kurniawan@atmajaya.ac.id

ABSTRACT

School of Medicine, Atma Jaya Catholic University of Indonesia (FKIK UAJ) has been implementing full online learning and teaching through all medical study programmes since the pandemic emerged in Indonesia. This study aims to evaluate the current distance learning programme, which is implemented as a response to the Covid-19 pandemic. This study was a cross-sectional study carried out in the early June of 2020 in FKIK UAJ. We used a total sampling of 1,118 participants, consisting of preclinical, clinical, and pharmacy students of FKIK UAJ. We used Google form for collecting data about students' perception regarding advantages, limitations and future suggestions of online distance learning. In total, six hundred twenty-five (625) students had filled out the questionnaire. The data were analysed by using the STATA programme vs 16. Data were analysed using univariate and bivariate analysis, and the result was pictured based on each study programme. Participants were predominantly clinical students, and they mostly lived without their parents. In terms of advantages, "no need to worry about food as it has provided" were at the top rank of opinions reported, followed by "more time to study". For limitations of distance learning, participants argued that internet connection and difficulty to understand subjects were the top two opinions found in the study. Participants suggested staff members to interactively provide lectures with video and case simulation and ensure that more organised learning schedules are being provided. For clinical students, in particular, a lack of hands-on practice with patients is reported. Despite the advantages and limitations, university staff members should be reassured to teach, via online distance learning, with the same quality as in direct face-to-face teaching quality.

Keywords: Education, covid-19, online learning, indonesia



Α. Introduction

The first case of Corona Virus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) was discovered in Wuhan, Hubei Province, China, in December 2019 [1-3]. In response to that situation, WHO has declared COVID-19 as a global pandemic on March 11th, 2020, as the total number of COVID-19 cases were keep rising worldwide [4-5]. On March 2nd, 2020, Joko "Jokowi" Widodo, the President of the Republic of Indonesia, has officially declared the first COVID-19 case in Indonesia [6]. Since then, the number of infected people kept rising in Indonesia, especially in Jakarta. Thus, a Notion by the Governor of Jakarta (No.6 in the year of 2020) regarding temporary cessation of any office activities to prevent the spread of COVID-19 was issued on March 20th, 2020. The Rector of Unika Atma Jaya (UAJ) immediately launched a letter instructing for total campus closure from March 23rd, 2020, as per the Notion by the Governor. Prior to this Notion, the Rector had signed a letter which is stating that all lecture activities were to be conducted by distance by online learning from March 16th, 2020 until further notice.

Weeks before the letter was issued, stakeholders of the School of Medicine (FKIK), Atma Java Catholic University of Indonesia (UAJ) had been preparing measures for the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the educational process. These preparations include refresher training sessions for lecturers, especially to operate software, so-called the Microsoft Teams, an educational platform to be used for distance learning in Atma Java. As a result of a relatively short preparation time, many problems were discovered: some lecturers were actually technologically backwards, the instability of internet connection, and etc. The latter, being supported by a study by Budi et al. in one of the faculties of dentistry in Indonesia, reported that 49% of students and lecturers were not prepared for distance learning due to limited internet quota [7]. Similarly, a quantitative study by Allo on students of English Major in Christian University of Indonesia (UKI) reported that the students in distance learning are expecting the lecturers to deliver their lecture with explanations using Voice Notes, instead of only distributing written material and assignments [8].

As the COVID-19 cases kept mounting with no vaccine currently available, the stakeholders of UAJ have not yet decided on when will the traditional 'face-to-face' teaching be reimplemented. Therefore, for quality improvement, it is necessary to evaluate the currently implemented distance learning programme.

B. Methods

This study was a cross-sectional study carried out in the early June of 2020 in FKIK UAJ. We used a total sampling of 1,118 participants, consisting of preclinical, clinical, and pharmacy students of FKIK UAJ. We used Google form for data collection, sharing it through each study programme's group, which is managed by a coordinator. Among 1,118 participants, a total of 625 students had filled in and submitted the questionnaire. The data were analysed by using the STATA programme vs 16. Data were analysed using univariate and bivariate analysis.

C. Results

Based on the participants' characteristics, females' participants were doubled, compared to males, which imply more female students are participating in the school of medicine. In addition, more than half of the participants (50.4%) were at the clinical group, followed by preclinical and pharmacy participants. Nearly all participants reside in their own respective houses with their parents (93.9%) (Table 1).

Variable	Frequency (n)	Percentage (%)
Gender		
Male	183	29.3
Female	442	70.7
Study Programme:		
Clinical	219	35
Preclinical	315	50.4
Pharmacy	91	14.6
Residence		
Boarding house	23	3.7
Apartment	10	1.6
Home with parents	5	0.8
Home without parents	587	93.9

 Table 1. Number of students based on gender, study programme, and residence (n=625)

Mean age of 20.7 years old

In the questionnaire, participants were asked for their opinion regarding the advantages, disadvantages, and limitations of distance learning (Table 2 and Table 3). Questions were in multiple-choice, and participants were able to choose multiple answers. Out of 1,118 participants, we collected 1,668 advantages and 1,215 limitations opinions. In general, most of the participants



(25.1%) agree that one advantage of distance learning is "no need to worry about food as it has been provided" Nevertheless, we found a variety of opinions on different study programmes. Most preclinical participants (32.7%) stated the advantage of distance learning is "there is no need to worry about food because it has already been provided." For clinical students (26.7%), the advantage is "more time to study" whereas, for most pharmacy students (25.5%), the advantage is "it saves money since there is no need to come to the campus." Furthermore, the second least advantage is "getting a better understanding of the lecture" (6.8%) for all groups of study programmes. However, within the study programmes, the order of opinions regarding the advantages differs in order. For instance, in preclinical participants, the advantages of distance learning are about food security, followed by more time to study and to be able to save money. On the other hand, clinical participants argued that having more time to study is preferable over the food security issue.

Variable	Preclinical*	Clinical**	Pharmacy	Total
Getting a better un- derstanding of the lecture	39	62	13	114 (6.8)
More time to study	147	212	50	409 (24.5)
There is no need to come to the campus	138	156	68	362 (21.7)
There is no need to be se	parated from par	rents		
	125			291
	133			
	33			(17.4)
There is no need to worry about food be- cause it has already been provided	168	200	51	419 (25.1)
Others	30	31	12	73 (4.4)

Table 2. Student's opinion regarding the advantages of distance learning

*Preclinical group of medical school **Clinical group of medical school

Regarding the limitations of distance learning, among opinions, the majority of participants (42.2%) stated a "poor internet connection," followed by "difficulty in understanding lectures that only consist of slides" (26.1%), and "increased expenses (for internet quota)" (17.1%). In contrast to the advantages arm, the order of opinions regarding the limitations of distance learning in each study programme is in the same order. (Table 3).

Variable	Preclinical	Clinical	Pharmacy	Total (%)
Poor internet con- nection	181	259	73	513 (42.2)
Increased expenses (for internet)	66	107	35	208 (17.1)
Difficulty in under- standing lectures that only consist of slides	152	112	53	317 (26.1)
Nothing	7	23	5	35 (2.9)
Others	53	68	21	142 (11.7)

Table 3. Student's opinions regarding the limitations of distance learning

Regarding the suggestions for distance learning (Table 4), we collected a total of 729 opinions from all participants. Approximately 19.1% of opinions were related to "more interesting subjects with video and case simulation," 17% of opinions were classified into "others", which consist of various statements, 16.9% of opinions were related to "the distance learning is good enough," and 14.1% of opinions were related to "more organised schedule for distance learning." Similar to what is seen in the advantages of distance learning, each group has a different distribution of opinions. For the preclinical group, most opinion were related to "providing more interesting subjects" and "others." The opinions in the clinical group were different. The majority of opinions were related to a "more organised schedule for distance learning and "the distance learning is good enough" Furthermore, the opinions with the lowest frequency were "allow the lectures to be recorded" and "give tuition relief" Whereas most of the opinion of the pharmacy group were classified into "others," followed by "providing more interesting subjects".

Student's opinion	Preclinical	Clinical	Pharmacy	Total (%)
More organised schedule	11	84	8	103 (14.1)
Consider the number of assignments	10	26	11	47 (6.5)
Internet accessibility	21	22	16	59 (8.1)
Tuition relief	10	6	1	17 (2.3)
Improve the lecturer's skill in using MS Teams	8	13	1	22 (3.0)
More exciting subjects with video and case simulation	76	42	21	139 (19.1)

Table 4. Student's opinion for the future implementation of distance learning



Distance learning is good enough	34	77	12	123 (16.9)
Allow the lectures to be recorded	16	2	1	19 (2.6)
No suggestion	27	39	10	76 (10.4)
Others	47	54	23	124 (17.0)

As opinion types differ, limitations which constitutes as "others" can be viewed based on the study programme. In preclinical and pharmacy participants, the majority stated that distance learning limitation is "difficulty in skill labs, problem-based learnings (PBLs), and hands-on subjects," followed by "home environment and the devices used are not too conducive." Clinical participants argued that "no direct interaction with the patients" and "unsuitable timing (inconsistent schedule, not on time)." Whereas in the "others" category of the advantage, all participants from each study programme stated, "more time to rest at home, exercise, and doing hobbies." Furthermore, these opinions were followed by "be able to focus on self-learning as we can study repeatedly" and "more flexible" at the preclinical group. In the clinical group, the chosen opinion is "able to study the given subjects further" and "more flexible" The statement of "more flexible subjects"; "able to focus on self-learning as we can study repeatedly"; and "the subject is clearer since it contains the lecturer's explanation" all had the same proportion (1.1%) in participants from the pharmacy study program.

Ominian	St	Total (%)		
Opinion	Preclinical	Clinical	Pharmacy	
No direct interaction with pa- tients.	0	30 (9.5)	0	30 (4.8)
Unsuitable timing (inconsistent schedule, not on time)	4 (1.8)	10 (3.2)	1 (1.1)	15 (2.4)
Not able to study because of the many assignments.	3 (1.4)	4 (1.3)	2 (2.2)	9 (1.4)
Difficulty in understanding the subject	3 (1.4)	7 (2.2)	4 (4.4)	14 (2.2)
Difficulty in SLs, PBLs, and hands-on subjects.	24 (11.0)	3 (1.0)	10 (11)	37 (5.9)
Microsoft Teams can be chal- lenging to operate at times, both from student's and teacher's per- spective	5 (2.3)	8 (2.5)	0	13 (2.1)

Table 5. "Others" category for disadvantages of distance learning

Difficulty in expenses (internet, tuition fees)	6 (2.7)	1 (0.3)	0	7 (1.1)
The home environment and the devices used are not too conducive	10 (4.6)	8 (2.5)	5 (5.5)	23 (3.7)

SLs: skill labs; PBLs: problem-based learnings

Table 6. "	Others"	category	for advantages	of distance	learning
------------	---------	----------	----------------	-------------	----------

Oninion	St	Study programme			
Opinion	Preclinical	Clinical	Pharmacy		
More time to rest at home, exercise, and doing hobbies	9 (4.1)	15 (4.8)	7 (7.7)	31 (5.0)	
Able to study the given sub- jects further	0	5 (1.6)	0	5 (0.8)	
The flow of discussion is bet- ter in online lectures.	3 (1.4)	2 (0.6)	0	5 (0.8)	
More flexible	7 (3.2)	3 (1)	1 (1.1)	11 (1.8)	
Able to focus on self-learning as we can study repeatedly	9 (4.1)	2 (0.6)	1 (1.1)	12 (1.9)	
The subject is clearer since it contains the lecturer's expla- nation	3 (1.4)	1 (0.3)	1 (1.1)	5 (0.8)	
More time to prepare for the subjects prior to the lecture	1 (0.5)	2 (0.6)	0	3 (0.5)	
Nothing	187 (85.4)	285 (90.5)	81 (89)	553 (88.4)	

D. Discussions

Several things could have been discussed from the results, including the characteristics, advantages, limitations, and suggestions of distance learning based on each study programme. To understand the result, context is important and needs to be known in the first place. Contextually, the clinical group is the continuation of preclinical in order to produce a doctor. Therefore, the learning outcomes of the two study programmes are different from one another. Whereas, pharmacy study programme can be viewed equally as a preclinical group, in which both would produce an undergraduate.

Based on the characteristics of participants, we noted that in Unika Atma Jaya, School of Medicine, there were more female students compared to males, with a ratio of more than 1 to 2 (70.7% and 29.3%). From age

perspective, it can be concluded that most of the participants were not married, and thus there was no report for household bias. Based on the characteristics, the number of participants who live alone should be noted, which revealed that most participants are initially not from the capital.

E. Advantages of Distance Learning

In the preclinical arm, most participants argue that "there is no need to worry about food because it has already been provided" and "more time to study" as the top two advantages of distance learning. It is intriguing as students are more focus on food security rather than focus on the educational impact of distance learning. In fact, in contrast to a study in Jordan by Al-Balas et al. [9], distance learning should have given students time-saving and flexibility of class time. However, as many participants live without their parents, distance learning allows them to study from their hometown and eventually reunite with their parents in place and be able to provide them with food. Consequently, students would be able to concentrate on their studies as they did not need to worry about food. Thus, the second most chosen opinion which is "more time to study" completely make perfect sense.

In contrast to the preclinical participants, most clinical participants chose "more time to study" This finding is in accordance with the clinical students' learning objectives. As their educational level is higher than those of the preclinical, they were more able to apply the theories in real-life situations (in treating patients). As the learnings are more relatable to clinical sense, deep learning process becomes more of a priority for the clinical compared to preclinical group. However, this group is the most suffered as they certainly need for traditional or face-to-face interaction with patient. As mentioned in Table 4, most clinical participants have agreed that distance learning prevents them to have contact with patient. In line with a study by Al-Balas et al ⁹, nearly half of participants disagree to satisfy with distance learning.

The opinion of "more time to study" has given us several outlooks. Firstly, as there was a large-scale social restriction (PSBB) policy during the Covid-19 pandemic, the students had more time to directly study at home. Additionally, online learning stimulated the students to study more independently, as shown by Sadikin et al. [10] Secondly, online learning gave students more flexibility, and students could arrange their study sessions according to their own needs. Lastly, despite having more time to study, more practical and experience-based learning are disrupted, keep clinical students blunt.

Unlike the other two study programmes in the school of medicine, the pharmacy students preferred the opinion "it saves money since there is no need to come to the campus" as the main advantage of distance learning. This finding deserves a more detailed elaboration as the majority of the participants expressed this statement. Based on the pharmacy students' place of residence, this finding makes perfect sense as it is directly linked to the commute distance and the need for a mode of transportation.

Regarding the study's effectiveness, only approximately 10% of the total opinion agreed that distance learning makes students understand the lecture better. Several studies showed that the evaluation for effectiveness depends on the given lecture, and each study programme would provide different responses. A meta-analysis study by Pei and Wu [11] showed a variant of research instrument tools that could be used to find the differences between online and offline learning. On the one hand, online learning is not so different from offline learning, although the results might differ in various situations.

Furthermore, this study allowed the participant to choose the "others" category and express their own opinion. Out of all participants who chose the "others" category for the advantage of distance learning, most of them chose "more time to rest, exercise, and doing hobbies at home" Most preclinical students chose "able to focus on self-learning as we can study repeatedly" This is understandable due to the accessible nature of recorded lectures; the students could replay the lectures and focus on more personalised learning.

F. Limitations of Distance Learning

Based on the limitation of the distance learning poll, most of the participants in all three study programmes chose "poor internet connection". Our study is in line with the study by Pratiwi [12] in Surabaya, in which the internet is the main issue in distance learning. The internet problem is not related to local universities but rather related to regional infrastructure. Nonetheless, it needs to be reviewed whether this poor internet connection is associated with the lecturer's or student's connection since not all participants chose this opinion. Internet connection is crucial for distance learning as every online meeting requires an internet connection [12]. Compared to offline learning, an internet problem in distance learning would slightly interfere with the teaching process and divert the student's attention⁹. There is an alternative to resolve the internet and concentration problems. Lecturers should have made the lecture not as the primary medium but as a stimulator to learn more. The timing during online learning is crucial as it could be used to discuss difficult subjects, and lectures could be distributed by video [13]. The total of participants who chose "difficulty in understanding lectures that only consist of slides" is in line with the low frequency of participants who had better understandings from

distance learning. Therefore, the combination of video and online discussion might be considered [11].

One of the teaching approaches in FKIK Unika Atma Jaya is studentcentred learning, which requires a student's contribution in studying and finding learning materials [14]. Student-centred learning, which requires problem-based learning (PBL), skill lab, and hands-on subject, is not optimal in distance learning [14,15]. Consequently, one of the chosen opinions was "difficulty in skill labs, PBLs, and hands-on subjects" These approaches are not optimal as it requires group interaction, direct communication, and qualified facilities [16]. For instance, the students need the tools for practice to achieve the learning objectives. While in distance learning, the facilities and infrastructures could not support these activities yet. Our result is in accordance with the studies by Pratiwi and McCutcheon et al. [12,17], which stated that online learning should be continuously researched and evaluated in order to efficiently and effectively replace conventional face-to-face learning. Therefore, this study provides an initial signal that online lecture does not give many students better understandings (rather only in few students), and a regular evaluation is needed for this programme.

G. Recommendations

With no vaccine currently available in this uncertain pandemic, lectures of the upcoming odd/spring semester (starts January 2021) and possible fall/even semester will undoubtedly be conducted remotely (the official terminology: distance learning). The fact that every university has different student characteristics and study programmes remains a challenge. In this study, we focused on the school of medicine and health sciences in Unika Atma Jaya, which has three study programmes (preclinical, clinical, and pharmacy).

In this current situation, the distance learning programme should be improved continuously. Several noted suggestions include a "more organised schedule" and "more interesting subjects with videos and case simulations". Considering that these students have never done distance learning before, these suggestions are likely relevant as they are part of the transitional changes from direct face-to-face lectures to distance learning. This adaptation to changes requires time, and it is associated with how the teaching staff could prepare a much different lecture. These suggestions might help prepare the teaching staffs to innovate more for the next semester. Unika Atma Jaya has prepared several platforms to help lecturers with distance learning, one of which is a video recording application to help students with internet quota issues. The combination of lecture videos and online learning should be considered. Regarding the "case simulation" opinion, it can be done by shortening the lecture's duration and replacing it with case simulations to motivate the students further. Lecture classes can be used for discussion, while activities outside of lectures can be facilitated by study guides and by relying on the active learning method.¹⁰ As of now, technologies are commonplace and therefore, should be optimally utilised to improve higher education.

H. Conclusions

In providing optimal education and helping students to get a better understanding, an escalation of intensive improvements and evaluation for distance learning is always required. For medical and pharmacy students equivalent of an undergraduate, each teaching staff member must innovate to maintain a teaching quality similar to the direct face-to-face lectures, especially for study programmes that do not require direct individual/patient interaction. Lectures related to group learning and dynamics should be developed, becoming a priority for preclinical and pharmacy students. For clinical students, it is essential to find an innovative solution to directly meet patients while also abiding health protocols. In the case where the face-to-face learning method returns, it is noteworthy to mention that students will benefit more if the direct lectures could also be recorded to be learned through repetition. This might be a solution for future learning.

Authors' Contributions

All authors have a huge contribution to the research and the development of the manuscript. YA, LAP and KK ran the research and carried out data extraction. All authors have contributed to cross-checking the data extraction, writing and editing the manuscript. All authors have read and approved the final version of this manuscript.

References

- The 2019-nCoV Outbreak Joint Field Epidemiology Investigation Team, Li Q. Notes from the field: an outbreak of NCIP (2019-nCoV) infection in China Wuhan, Hubei Province, 2019–2020. China CDC Weekly 2020;2:79-80.
- Tan WJ, Zhao X, Ma XJ, et al. A novel coronavirus genome identified in a cluster of pneumonia cases Wuhan, China 2019–2020. China CDC Weekly 2020;2:61-62.
- Li Q, Guan X, Wu P. Early Transmission Dynamics in Wuhan, China, of Novel Coronavirus-Infected Pneumonia. N Engl J Med. 2020 Mar. 26;382(13):1199-1207. doi: 10.1056/NEJMoa2001316. Epub 2020 Jan 29.

- WHO Director-General's opening remarks at the media briefing on COVID19 -March 2020
- Cucinotta, D., Vanelli, M. WHO Declares Covid-19 a Pandemic. Acta Biomed. 2020 Mar 19;91(1):157-160. doi:10.23750/abm.v91i1.9397.
- World Health Organization. Situation Report 42 [Internet]. 2020 [updated 2020 March 02; cited 2020 March 15]. Available from: https://www.who. int/docs/default-source/ coronaviruse/situation-reports/20200302-sitrep-42-covid-19. pdf?sfvrsn=224c1add_2.
- Budi, HS., Ludjen, JSM., Aula, AC., et al. Distance Learning (DL) Strategies to Fight Coronavirus (COVID-19) Pandemic at Higher Education in Indonesia. Intl J. of Psychosocial Rehabilitation. 2020 Apr. Vol. 24:8777-8782. Doi:10.37200/IJPR/V24I7/PR270859
- Allo, MDG. Is the online learning good in the midst of Covid-19 Pandemic? The case of EFL learners. Jurnal Sinestesia, Vol. 10, No. 1, April 2020.
- Al-Balas M, Al-Balas HI, Jaber HM, Obeidat K, Al-Balas H, Aborajooh EA, et al. Distance learning in clinical medical education amid COVID-19 pandemic in Jordan: current situation, challenges, and perspectives. BMC Med Educ. 2020 Oct 2;20(1):341.
- Sadikin A, Hamidah A. Pembelajaran Daring di Tengah Wabah Covid-19. BIODIK [Internet]. 2020 Jun 30 [cited 2020 Sep 15];6(2). Available from: https://www.online-journal.unja.ac.id/biodik/article/view/9759
- Pei L, Wu H. Does online learning work better than offline learning in undergraduate medical education? A systematic review and meta-analysis. Med Educ Online. 2019 Jan 1;24(1):1666538.
- Pratiwi EW. Dampak COVID-19 terhadap kegiatan pembelajaran online di sebuah perguruan tinggi kristen di Indonesia. Perspekt Ilmu Pendidik [Internet]. 2020 Apr 29 [cited 2020 Sep 15];34(1). Available from: http:// journal.unj.ac.id/unj/index.php/pip/article/view/14921
- Pusponegoro HD, Soebadi A, Surya R. Web-Based Versus Conventional Training for Medical Students on Infant Gross Motor Screening. Telemed E-Health. 2015 Jul 17;21(12):992–7.
- Wright GB. Student-Centered learning in higher education. International Journal of Teaching and Learning in Higher Education. 2011;23(3):92–7.
- Wood DF. Problem based learning. BMJ. 2003 Feb 8;326(7384):328.
- Hmelo-Silver CE. Problem-Based Learning: What and How Do Students Learn? Educ Psychol Rev. 2004 Sep 1;16(3):235–66.
- McCutcheon K, Lohan M, Traynor M, Martin D. A systematic review evaluating the impact of online or blended learning vs. face-to-face learning of clinical skills in undergraduate nurse education. J Adv Nurs. 2015 Feb 1;71(2):255– 70.

Online Teaching and Learning Challenges

Ħ

Soma Siddique^{1,} Anila Amin Khattak^{2*}

¹MBBS, Islamabad Medical and Dental College
 ²MBBS, HBS Medical and Dental College
 *Corresponding author. Email: <u>aamin12rocks@gmail.com</u>

ABSTRACT

The study 'Online Teaching and Learning Challenges' highlights the impact of the Covid'19 pandemic on the overall education of health professions. It is a qualitative study which aims at pointing out the main issues faced during this experience, their effect on physical and mental health. As well as, the overall success of online learning.

Keywords: Covid'19, challenges, online learning, impact

A. Introduction

Coronavirus disease, caused by SARS-CoV 2, started in Wuhan, China, brought unaccustomed health and educational crises. It was declared as a pandemic by the WORLD HEALTH ORGANIZATION in March 2020. All the areas of life, including education, got adversely affected by Covid 19. As the circumstances deteriorated, the world lockdown ended up in the closure of educational institutes. This pandemic has prompted the educational institutes to switch to online learning that has brought numerous challenges as well. This study aims to highlight the main challenges faced by students during online learning.

B. Methods

The study entitled 'Online Teaching and Learning Challenges' is qualitative research on the hurdles in online learning for students. It is a cross-

sectional study that highlights the challenges faced by the students through a deductive approach. The sample in the research study is medical students. Whereas, the population consists of the Medical colleges of Rawalpindi and Islamabad, as well as medicine-related colleges.

To carry out this research, Survey Questionnaire was generated by the researchers as per 5 Likert Scale on Google Questionnaires which was filled out by the students. Therefore, a thorough statistical data was provided by Google Questionnaire software. The total number of students enrolled in the study was 105. The study analyzes that statistical data and forms a determined resultant to illuminate these challenges.

C. Results

During these challenging times, the learning strategies have been switched to online learning. This study aims to highlight the main challenges faced by students during online learning ranging from connectivity issues, limitation of practical activities, and unavailability of learning material. About 58.1% of students reported unavailability of study related material as the major issue. 56.2% of disciples have also reported limited access to the teachers. Loss of interest due to poor internet connection was highlighted by 45.7% of students. Also, practical activities have reduced considerably reported by 47.6% of students. Besides technical and learning issues, online learning has created health-related issues as well. About 54.3% of respondents reported that increased exposure to screen has impacted the eye health. As well as, 41.9% face connectivity issues often. On an average each student is spending more than 4 to 5 hours on online learning. That is 49.5%. The availability of teachers is also very less, about 56.2% respondents stated this. Overall, 56.2% students stated that online learning had been moderately or below average effective in enhancing their knowledge.

D. Discussions

Covid 19 has been declared as a global pandemic due to its spread and severity, by world health organization (WHO) in March 2020 [1]. Considering this pandemic, a great threat to humanity social distancing has been directed to curb its spread. As this pandemic has greatly affected the educational sector [2] so our study aims to highlight the issues faced by students and faculty amid this pandemic. The whole education system has been collapsed due to abrupt switching to online learning. Several challenges get aroused due to the ceasing of face to face classes such as digital incompetence, lack of direct interaction with the patients during clerkship, student's performance effected by racial, economic and resource differences, financial issues and limited access to the faculty members [3].

Digital Competence

Digital competence refers to the skills and knowledge to effectively use the IT for education purpose and information management [4]. Lack of IT awareness could drag the students lag in online learning. According to Omotayo and Haliru [5] the digital library might help in online learning, but low digital competence could make it worthless. For the effective use of digital devices, the students must have basic knowledge of digital devices. Omotayo and Haliru adds further that disciples must be encouraged to learn digital competence.

E. Learning Assessment

Assessment means evaluating the students learning by the instructor with the help of quizzes and examination. In online learning, evaluation is taken online whereby instructors are restricted to intermediary oversight of students making it difficult to manage and control cheating. According to Osterlind, this problem can be overcome by testing formats such as sentence completion, true- false and grading system.

Hands on Experience

According to Leszczyski [6], other fields of studies could be managed with online learning but the medical education demands firsthand experience as part of instructional activities. Online learning could not meet the requirement of practical work [7]. Online learning cannot be proved effective in practical training [6].

F. Conclusions

Amidst this pandemic educational and economic sector have been the most affected. Hence, this study has highlighted that not only the students are experiencing a hindrance in their educational advancement, but their health is also deteriorating. Easy course navigation could be ensured along with repeating lectures multiple times to ensure maximum deliverance.

Authors' Contributions

S.S. made a great contribution in keeping all aspects on time, without delay. As well as, collecting essential data and framing it into the research study. A.A.K. also made a great contribution by keeping up with the team work, and giving the final image to the research study.

Acknowledgments

We would like to pay our gratitude to ICME for bringing us together and giving us a platform to form this research study and work on it.

References

- Sohrabi C, Alsafi Z, O'Neill N, Khan M, Kerwan A, Al-Jabir A, Iosifidis C, Agha R. World Health Organization declares global emergency: A review of the 2019 novel coronavirus (COVID-19). International journal of surgery. 2020 Apr 1;76:71-6.
- Bozkurt A, Sharma RC. Emergency remote teaching in a time of global crisis due to CoronaVirus pandemic. Asian Journal of Distance Education. 2020 Apr 30;15(1):i-vi.
- IESALC U. COVID-19 and higher education: Today and tomorrow. Impact analysis, policy responses and recommendations.
- Ferrari A. Digital competence in practice: An analysis of frameworks. Sevilla: JRC IPTS.(DOI: 10.2791/82116). 2012 Sep.
- Omotayo FO, Haliru A. Perception of task-technology fit of digital library among undergraduates in selected universities in Nigeria. The Journal of Academic Librarianship. 2020 Jan 1;46(1):102097.
- Leszczyski P, Charuta A, Łaziuk B, Gałzkowski R, Wejnarski A, Roszak M, Kołodziejczak B. Multimedia and interactivity in distance learning of resuscitation guidelines: a randomised controlled trial. Interactive Learning Environments. 2018 Feb 17;26(2):151-62.
- Iqbal S, Zang X, Zhu Y, Hussain D, Zhao J, Gulzar MM, Rasheed S. Towards moocs and their role in engineering education. In2015 7th International Conference on Information Technology in Medicine and Education (ITME) 2015 Nov 13 (pp. 705-709). IEEE.

Differences in Learning Outcomes Using the Cornell Method and the Non Cornell Method for Students at the Faculty of Medicine Universitas Baiturrahmah

Ħ

Yavolga Restiara Her¹, Resti Rahmadika Akbar^{2*}, Mutiara Anissa³

¹ Faculty of Medicine Universitas Baiturrahmah

² Medical Education Department, Faculty of Medicine Universitas Baiturrahmah

³Psychiatri Departement, Faculty of Medicine Universitas Baiturrahmah

*Corresponding author. Email: *restirahmadikaakbar@gmail.com*

ABSTRACT

Taking notes is one of the learning strategies that can be used for effective learning. Taking notes function is to organize, explain, and understand the important information during the study. The Cornell method is considered effective and efficient for learning. The aim of different study outcomes uses the Cornell method and the non-Cornell method in Medical Student. This research was a quasi-experimental research method with a non-equivalent control group design. This research was a quasi-experimental research method with a non-equivalent control group design. This research was conducted from September until October 2019 at the Faculty of Medicine, Baiturrahmah University. The population in this study were students of the first year consists of the experimental group using the Cornell method and the control group using a non-Cornell method with 15 samples in each group. Analytic was used SPSS version 19.0. Univariate data analysis was presented in the form of a frequency distribution table for respondents' characteristics and differences in study outcomes using the Mann Whitney test. There were different study outcomes between an experimental group with a control group with a Mann Whitney value of p=0.025. The participant of the experimental group was female 9 people (53.3%) and the control group were male 8 people (53,3%). Most of the student were from outside Padang which are 10 people (66.7%) of experimental group and 13 person (86,7%) of a control group. Most of them staying in dormitory were 10 person (66,7%) of experimental group and 13 person (86,7%) of control group. There was a difference study outcomes use Cornell method and non cornell method in Medical Student Universitas Baiturrahmah.

Keywords: Cornell method, study outcomes, medical students

A. Introduction

Medical faculties must develop teaching curricula and study strategies to prepare prospective doctors to follow the development of medical science. Students are expected to be able to solve health problems and have lifelong learning skills, this is so that students can digest so much information, think critically, solve problems and understand and integrate basic science and clinical science [1].

The condition of students in the learning process plays an important role in achieving optimal results so that a learning strategy is needed that is by the student's condition so that the objectives of learning can be achieved properly [2]. Effective learning strategies according to Slavin in Catharina Tri Ani, suggest three learning strategies that can be used for effective learning, namely, taking notes, studying in groups, and using the PQR4 method (Preview, Question, Read, Reflect, Recite and Review) [3].

The strategy used when studying from reading or learning from listening to lectures from lecturers is taking notes. Research says that about 86% of lecturers want their students to take notes in class to increase their comprehension skills [4]. tudents' understanding abilities obtained from taking notes must also be improved, they must be able to sort out which information is important to note and which is not. The expected result of taking notes is to help students organize, explain, and understand important information during lectures compared to just relying on memory, as well as improving preparation and results of exams and quizzes [5,6].

Research on the method of recording has been done by many previous researchers, as well as in the world of medicine. Putu Nita Cahyawati and Putu Alit Sudarsana conducted a study in 2017 entitled "Application of Mind Maps to Special Topic Block students (Pirene) at the Faculty of Medicine and Health Sciences (FKIK) Warmadewa University". This study concluded that the application of mind maps to the Special Topic Block (Pirene) had a good impact on student motivation and first taker graduation. This is viewed from the results of learning motivation which reached 82.2% and graduation of first takers which reached 84.48% [7].

Another study, namely Amelia Rhaudyatun, conducted a study in 2017 entitled "The Effect of the Cornell Note-Taking Method on Students' Mathematical Reflective Thinking Ability". This study concluded that learning mathematics using the Cornell note-taking method had a significant effect on students' mathematical reflective thinking skills [8]. Based on the description of the results of the first study, it can be seen that previous researchers applied the use of mind map method to medical students, besides the mind map method, there is a method that is considered effective, namely the Cornell method [8,9]. Students think mathematically, who get the result that there is an influence between the Cornell method with students' mathematical thinking. The Cornell method is one of the note-taking methods recommended by several universities because it is considered effective and efficient, to improve students' ability to record information and is expected to improve student understanding and learning outcomes [9,10].

Learning outcomes can be influenced by the characteristics of the students themselves, gender, the area of origin, and the residence. Gender can affect learning outcomes, where women have higher intellectual abilities than men. The number of students who come from outside the Padang can affect their adaptability to be able to study independently and the home environment which can affect students' attitudes to learning [11].

B. Methods

The scope of this research is the first year students of the Faculty of Medicine Universitas Baiturrahmah who take the Pengantar Pembelajaran Kedokteran module.

The research method used in this study is a quasi-experimental research method (quasi-experimental) with a non-equivalent control group design pattern. This research method is used to find the effect of certain treatments.

This research was conducted on first semester students at the Faculty of Medicine at Universitas Baiturrahmah who were divided into an experimental group and a control group then given treatment. The control group and the experimental group are two classes taken randomly from one practicum class.

In the initial conditions, the experimental group students and control group students were given a pre-test which later the results of the pre-test would be used as a reference for comparing the results of the post-test. Then students in the experimental group and students in the control group were given different treatments, for the experimental group using the Cornell note taking method as a note taking method and for the control group using a method other than cornell note taking as a note taking method. After the treatment was given to the experimental group and the control group, then the posttest was given to find out the student learning outcomes, as well as observations and data collection of the results of notes once a week, during the study period, namely for 2 weeks.



Group	Prior	Treatment	Test
Experiment	Pretest	Cornell method	Posttest
Control	Pretest	Non-Cornell method	Posttest

Table 1. Implementation of experimental methods

Data Analysis

Analytic was used SPSS version 19.0. The normality test aims to determine whether the data obtained is normally distributed or not. Univariate data analysis was presented in the form of a frequency distribution table for respondents' characteristics and differences in study outcomes using the Mann Whitney test.

C. Results

A study entitled "Differences in learning outcomes using the Cornell method and the non-Cornell method among students of the Faculty of Medicine at Universitas Baiturrahmah". The sample of this study consisted of 15 people each in the experimental group and the control group and used a quasi-experimental method (quasi-experimental) with a non-equivalent control group design pattern. Based on the results of the research and analysis of the data that has been obtained, the results of the study can be concluded in the explanation below:

1. Frequency Distribution of Respondents Characteristics Based on Gender, Region of Origin and Residence

The results showed that the distribution of the characteristics of the experimental group respondents with the control group based on gender, area of origin and residence of the first semester students of the Faculty of Medicine, Universitas Baiturrahmah can be described as follows:

Verichle	E	xperimental g	group	Control group	
variable	f	%	f	%	
Gender					
Male	6	40.0	8	53.3	
Female	9	60.0	7	46.7	

Table 2. Frequency distribution of respondents characteristics based on gender, region of origin and residence

Origin					
Padang	5	33.3	2	13.3	
Others	10	66.7	13	86.7	
Residence					
With family	5	33.3	2	13.3	
Rented	10	66.7	13	86.7	
Total	15	100	15	100	

Based on table 2, it shows that the gender in the experimental group was mostly female 9 people (60.0%), while in the control group more than half of the respondents were male, 8 people (53.3%). Most of the respondents came from outside Padang 10 people (66.7%) in the experimental group and 13 people (86.7%) in the control group. Most of the respondents live in rented houses in the experimental group 10 people (66.7%) and in the control group 13 people (86.7%).

2. Differences in the Learning Outcomes of the Experiment Group and the Control Group

The results showed that the difference in learning outcomes between the experimental group and the control group in the first semester students of the Faculty of Medicine at Universitas Baiturrahmah can be described as follows:

	JIIIIO	i giou	Р		
X7	Passed		Failed		р
variable	f	%	f	%	
Pre-test					
Experimental group	1	6,7	14	93,3	0,554

3

15

13

20

100

86,7

12

0

2

80

0

13,3

0,025

Control group

Control group

Experimental group

Post-test

 Table 3. Differences in learning outcomes of the experimental group and the control group

Based on table 3 shows the pre-test results that passed in the experimental
group were 1 person (6.7%) while in the control group, 3 people. The results
of the post-test 15 people (100%) passed the experimental group, while the
control group was 13 people (86.7%).



Based on the Mann Whitney statistical test on the pre-test results obtained p value> 0.05, it can be concluded that the pre-test results between the experimental group and the control were not different. Based on the results of the post-test, p value <0.05, it can be concluded that there is a difference in learning outcomes or post-test scores between the experimental group and the control group.

D. Discussions

1. Frequency Distribution of Respondent Characteristics by Gender, **Region of Origin and Residence**

Based on the results of research on 15 students of each experimental group and the control group in the first semester of the Faculty of Medicine, Universitas Baiturrahmah, the gender in the experimental group was mostly female, namely 9 people (60.0%) while in the control group more than half of the respondents were male, 8 people (53.3%). This study is in line with research by A. Majid Hayati in 2009 on students of the Department of English Shahid Chamran University, showing that most of the respondents were female, namely 73%. The difference is, the research conducted by researchers was conducted on students of the English Department and on the subject of English [12].

In contrast to Mohammad Davoudi's research in 2015 on Grammar Learning of Iranian ELF Learners, it was shown that most of the respondents were male, namely 44 people (62.8%). The difference is, the research conducted by researchers was carried out on the subject of English. This shows that the distribution of respondents is not evenly distributed between male and female [13].

Gender statistics in Indonesia, at the productive age show that there are more women than men [14]. In terms of health education it also shows that the majority of women dominate in terms of intellectual ability and achievement compared to men, because women tend to have better reading skills. higher, including students of the Faculty of Medicine, Universitas Baiturrahmah [15,16].

In this study, based on the area of origin, it showed that most of them came from outside Padang, namely 10 people (66.7%) in the experimental group and 13 people (86.7%) in the control group. The Faculty of Medicine is one of the faculties that is in great demand by high school students majoring in Science, in addition to the prestige of medical students, it is also the highest passing grade. It is proven by the average UTBK score in 2019 held by the Faculty of Medicine in sequence. Including at Universitas Baiturrahmah, the

Faculty of Medicine has high interest, especially those from outside the field [17].

In this study, based on residence, it shows that many respondents live in rented houses, 10 people (66.7%) in the experimental group and in the control group 13 people (86.7%). A residence is a building that is used as a residence for a certain period of time. The large number of enthusiasts in the medical faculty at Universitas Baiturrahmah who come from outside Padang, causing these students to live in a rented room [18].

2. Differences in the Learning Outcomes of the Experiment Group and the Control Group

Based on the results of the study, it was obtained that 1 person (6.7%) passed the pre-test in the experimental group while the control group was 3 people (20%). Based on the post-test results, 15 people (100%) passed the experimental group, while the control group was 13 people (86.7%). This shows that the experimental group was 13.3% higher than the control group.

Based on the results of the Mann Whitney statistical test on the pre-test value, the value of p = 0.544 (p> 0.05) was obtained, this illustrates that before being given different treatment, students did not have a significant difference in scores and were considered equal. The results of the Mann Whitney statistical test on the posttest value obtained p value = 0.025 (p <0.05). So it can be concluded that there are differences in learning outcomes between the experimental group and the control group.

This is consistent with Duane Broe's 2013 research entitled "The Effects of Teaching Cornell Notes on Student Achievement". This study resulted in the conclusion that there were differences and improvements in student achievement in class algebra II by comparing the results of quizzes, tests and checking notes on classes taught using Cornell Notes. The difference is, the research conducted by researchers was conducted at the junior high school level and on the subject of geometry [19].

The difference in the number of passes between the experimental group and the control group is influenced by different recording methods. The method of recording in the experimental group used the cornell method while the control group used the conventional method.

The Cornell method organizes ideas spatially so it's great for visual learners. The idea is to give students space to copy information or record (record), identify questions, answer questions that have been made (recite), reflect on the content of the material, namely by asking themselves (reflect), and repeat the material recorded (review). So the Cornell method not only helps students take effective notes, but also improves a good understanding of the subject as well as for exam preparation [20].

E. Conclusions

Based on the results of research on the effectiveness of the Cornell note taking method in improving learning outcomes in first semester students of the Faculty of Medicine. The following conclusions can be drawn there are differences in the learning outcomes of the experimental group and the control group. This is evident from the results of the post-test passing of the experimental group of 15 people (100%), while in the control group 13 people (86.7%) and supported by the results of the calculation of the Mann Whitney test with a value of p = 0.025.

References

- Amin Z, Seng CY, . Book Review: Practical Guide to Medical Student Assessment. *J Educ Eval Health Prof*. 2006;3(9):6. doi:10.3352/jeehp.2006.3.6 Suryana A. Modul Manajemen Kelas. 2006:1.
- Anni CT. Psikologi Belajar. Semarang: UPT Unnes Press; 2004.
- Isaacs G. Lecturing Practices and Note-taking Purposes. *Stud High Educ*. 1994;19(2):203-216. doi:10.1080/03075079412331382047
- Aprilia E, Oktaria D, Sari MI, et al. Hubungan antara Note Taking dengan Hasil Kuis pada Perkuliahan Blok Endocrine , Metabolic , and Nutrition di Fakultas Kedokteran Universitas Lampung The Relation Between Note Taking with Posttest in Endocrine , Metabolic , and Nutrition (EMN) Blok at Me. 2019;8:150-154.
- Bonner JM, Holliday WG. How college science students engage in note-taking strategies. *J Res Sci Teach*. 2006;43(8):786-818. doi:10.1002/tea.20115
- Cahyawati PN, Sudarsana PA. Penerapan Mind Map pada Mahasiswa Blok Special Topic (Pirene) di Fakultas Kedokteran dan Ilmu Kesehatan (FKIK) Universitas Warmadewa pembelajaran pada Blok Special Topic pembelajaran di Blok Special Topic. 2017;2(1):19-25. doi:10.22225/ WMJ.2.1.81.19
- Rhaudyatun A. Pengaruh Metode Cornell Note-Taking Terhadap Kemampuan Berpikir Reflektif Matematis Siswa.; 2017.
- Yuniarti, Ika Kana Trisnawati. Peningkatan Kemampuan Mencatat (Note Taking) Teks Bahasa Inggris Dengan Format Cornell. Visipena J. 2018;9(2):247-260. doi:10.46244/visipena.v9i2.457
- Hayati AM, Jalilifar A. The Impact of Note-taking Strategies on Listening Comprehension of EFL Learners. *English Lang Teach*. 2009;2(1):101-111. doi:10.5539/elt.v2n1p101

- Puspitawati H. Konsep, Teori dan Analisi Gender. Gend dan Kel Konsep dan Realita di Indones. 2013;4(Zeitlin 1995):1-16. doi:10.1017/ S0033583501003705
- Hayati AM, Jalilifar A. The Impact of Note-taking Strategies on Listening Comprehension of EFL Learners. *English Lang Teach*. 2009;2(1). doi:10.5539/elt.v2n1p101
- Davoudi M, Moattarian N, Zareian G. The Impact of Cornell Note-Taking Method Instruction on Grammar Learning of Iranian EFL Learners. *J Stud Educ*. 2015;5(2):252. doi:10.5296/jse.v5i2.6874
- Jumlah Penduduk di Indonesia. BPS. [online]. Available in : <u>http://sumbar.</u> <u>bps.go.id</u> . [Accessed Januari 16th 2020].
- Van Bavel J, Schwartz CR, Esteve A. The reversal of the gender gap in education and its consequences for family life. *Annu Rev Sociol.* 2018;44(May):341-360. doi:10.1146/annurev-soc-073117-041215
- Sreeramareddy CT, Shankar PR, Binu V, Mukhopadhyay C, Ray B, Menezes RG. Psychological morbidity, sources of stress and coping strategies among undergraduate medical students of Nepal. *BMC Med Educ*. 2007;7(1):26. doi:10.1186/1472-6920-7-26
- Konsil Kedokteran Indonesia. Data FK di Indonesia tahun2019. http://www.kki.go.id/index.php/subMenu/1203.
- Lendert RM, Aulele SN, Lesnussa YA. Analisis Pengaruh Daerah Asal SMA Terhadap Nilai Ujian Mahasiswa Dengan Menggunakan Uji Wald-Wolfowitz. *Var J Stat Its Appl.* 2019;1(1):11-15. doi:10.30598/ variancevol1iss1page11-15
- Ardian A, Munadi S. Pengaruh Strategi Pembelajaran Student-Centered Learning dan Kemampuan Spasial terhadap Kreativitas Mahasiswa. J Pendidik Teknol dan Kejuru. 2016;22(4):454. doi:10.21831/jptk.v22i4.7843
- Ruschhaupt P. Using the Cornell Note-Taking System. University of Houston-Victoria; 2010.



Perception of Medical Student on Learning Methods in Pandemic Era: A Qualitative Study

Ħ

Evita Sarah Nasution, Nur Azizah, Siti Khodijah*, Nur'Aini Jusuf

Department of Medical Education, Faculty of Medicine and Health Sciences, UIN Makassar *Corresponding author. Email: <u>sitikh966@gmail.com</u>

ABSTRACT

Background: Responding to the accelerating spread of COVID-19, teaching and learning have been moved from face-to-face to online mode. The impact of this change has not yet been evident. Objective: This study is to assess Indonesian medical student's perceptions of three different learning methods that they have experienced: online, offline, and blended learning. Material and methods: This research was conducted in December 2020. This was a descriptive study with a sample of 6 people taken purposively from the medical students of Alauddin Makassar State Islamic University class of 2017, 2018, and 2019. Result: It was found that most students preferred blended learning. Students highlighted that online learning gave them flexibility in terms of the class schedule and more time to learn outside the class time as compared to offline class. However, students were aware that online delivery was not ideal for all situations. They felt that online learning was not optimal for practicum and clinical skills laboratory as it does not allow hands-on experience. Conclusion: It can be concluded that online and offline can enhance each other to maximize the learning output. Therefore, students hope that mixed learning can be applied.

Keywords: Blended learning, student

A. Introduction

This year, 2020, is a challenging year for all countries in the world, including Indonesia. This is caused by the Covid-19 pandemic that has never ended. Covid-19 is one of the world's health problems which was initially confirmed in Wuhan, Hubei Province, China in December 2019. The World Health Organization (WHO) announced the coronavirus disease (Covid-19) was caused by SARS-CoV- 2 viruses [1]. The clinical symptoms experienced by Covid-19 patients are very diverse, ranging from very mild symptoms such as fever, cough, headache to clinical conditions that lead to acute respiratory failure and require patients to undergo treatment in the ICU [2].

Indonesia is the fourth most populous country globally, so a lot of speculation has emerged and estimates that the Covid-19 case will quickly spread and last for a more extended period of time. President Joko Widodo has reported the first Covid -19 case identified in Indonesia on March 2, 2020. The confirmed patient is an Indonesian citizen who attended a dinner banquet in Jakarta, where the patient previously had a history of contact with a foreign national from Japan who settled in [3]. As of December 21, 2020, 671,178 cases had spread in 34 provinces in Indonesia, with the highest number of patients being occupied by DKI Jakarta with 163,111 matters (Gugus Tugas Percepatan Penanganan COVID-19, 2020) [3]. This pandemic has had a severe impact on Indonesia's health, economic, social, and even education sectors. The government is required to solve this pandemic case quickly and the people ask that the continuity of daily activities during the pandemic period must run without significant obstacles. This is caused by massive reforms of various aspects of the government structure.

One of the clear pieces of evidence of reform is the reduced activity of the outdoor population, which impacts changing the teaching and learning system in Indonesia. On May 29, 2020, the Expert Staff of the Minister of Education and Culture in the field of regulation, Chatarina Muliana Girsang, officially issued a rule on the implementation of learning from home to break the Covid-19 chain through a circular guide for organizing learning from home during the emergency period of the spread of Covid-19 number 15 of 2020 (Kemendikbud RI,2020). Since the enactment of this decision, all aspects of teaching and learning activities starting from the elementary school level to the university level have been implemented online.

Like any other decision-making, learning through online methods also has both positive and negative sides [4]. At the tertiary level itself, one of the benefits felt during online learning is that it saves time and energy because
students do not need to travel distances to campus to carry out the learning process. However, from the implementation of this policy, several challenges need to be faced. The challenges faced are that online-based learning is considered less effective because several knowledge competencies are difficult to achieve if done with online methods, for example, practicum activities and other clinical skills activities. Responding to this issue, on December 2, 2020, the Ministry of Education and Culture confirmed that the permit for face-toface learning activities in colleges and polytechnic/community academies in the even semester of the Academic Year 2020/2021 could be carried out in a mix (hybrid learning), online, and face to face. Advance, with appropriate health protocols. This is based on the Joint Decree of the Minister of Education and Culture, the Minister of Religion, the Minister of Health, and the Minister of Internal Affairs regarding Guidelines for Implementation of Learning in the 2020/2021 Academic Year and the 2020/2021 Academic Year in the 2019 Coronavirus Disease (Kemendikbud RI,2020). As a result of this policy, public opinion began to emerge. Some welcome this policy, but not a few also criticize it. Based on this issue, the researcher intends to obtain information regarding the potential effectiveness of the hybrid learning system during the Covid-19 pandemic for Medical Education Students of the Faculty of Medicine and Health Sciences at Alauddin Makassar State Islamic University [3,4].

B. Methods

This qualitative study involved six medical student participants, chosen purposely from those admitted into the university from 2017 to 2019. Data collection was done through semi-structured interviews using Zoom video conference. Interviews lasted for approximately 12 minutes each. Consent was sought from each participant before the talks. Interview results were transcribed verbatim, then analyzed with thematic analysis. Participant confidentiality and voluntary participation were reassured throughout the data collection, research, and report writing.

C. Results

In total, six participants of medical students at Alauddin State Islamic University Makassar (two males and four females) with ages ranges from 19 to 21 were involved in our study. Characteristics of the participants are summarised in Table 1.

School Year	Participants	Age	Gender
2017	Participant 1	21	Male
	Participant 2	21	Female
2018	Participant 1	20	Female
	Participant 2	20	Female
2019	Participant 1	19	Female
	Participant 2	19	Male

Table 1. Summary of participant characteristics

About significant change from offline to online learning methods, two-three participants said that they were shocked for the first time. They felt unfamiliar with the new system and application that were used for online learning.

"I was shocked because I had never felt this (online learning method) before...." Participant 1, 2018

"....feel a little confused about the media because I have never used a video conferencing application before." Participant 2, 2018

According to participants, about the striking difference between offline with online learning methods, they said that online learning uses some online meeting applications if compared with the offline mode that uses face-to-face. Besides the media that was used, online learning also had more advantages than offline learning where online learning was more flexible than the offline method which showed that all learning activities were carried out from home. Furthermore, it also uses less energy and more time-saving.

"The difference is the media used where online learning uses media such as zoom and several other online meeting applications while offline uses face-to-face media between lecturers and students." Participant 1, 2019

... the material that was given, much more effective and time-saving. Then, for the offline learning method, the energy and fatigue that you feel is much greater than online" Participant 2, 2019

Participants also admitted that besides the advantages, they were experiencing some obstacles from the online learning methods. The biggest obstacle was the internet connection, whether the connection was bad or runs out. Because of that, they have difficulty following the lecture.

".... an unstable internet connection, so that the audio or video was an error..."

Participant 1, 2018

"If online learning takes place, an unstable internet connection can also cause miscommunication between lecturers and students." Participant 2, 2019

Participants said that their motivation to learn decreased on online learning methods as well. This is due to the lack of a supportive environment and easily drowsy because eyes get tired easily from staring at the laptop screen continuously.

"... drowsiness also very often appears and can be influenced by several things such as eyes that get tired quickly due to staring at the laptop screen continuously..." Participant 1, 2019

"... A strong enthusiasm for learning can not be found on online learning methods because there is no supportive environment such as support from classmates..." Participant 2, 2017

Furthermore, another obstacle was related to the students' understanding, especially for practicum and clinical skill laboratory where online learning does not allow hands-on experience if compared with offline learning methods.

"… for practicum learning, it feels difficult because you cannot practice directly…" Participant 2, 2017

"When online learning was first introduced, a significant change was felt when practicum learning was carried out, so it was difficult to understand." Participant 1, 2017

According to participants' perception, this shows that students were aware that online learning methods in the pandemic era, was not ideal for all situations. They felt that online learning was not optimal especially for practicum and clinical skills.

D. Discussions

Our research study examined medical students' perspectives about learning methods in the pandemic era. In our analysis, we have identified that the sudden transition from offline to online learning model provides participants with many advantages. However, participants were also aware that not all situations were suitable for online learning methods, especially in practicum and clinical skills. This is also in line with the another research, where online learning was more effective within the context of particular medical disciplines, such as for basic medical sciences or preclinical subjects but the missing element in the effectiveness of online learning was clinical practice [5,6].





The strength of this study is that this research is still relatively new, especially because of the pandemic, moreover, the participants involved are from Alauddin Islamic State of University Makassar, which can be used as another source of reference for further research. Furthermore, this study also has weaknesses where we still could not generalize because it was conducted in one medical school.

Through this research study, the findings were found to strengthen previous research, where online learning methods in the pandemic era were not effective enough for all situations, especially practicum and clinical skills [7,8].

E. Conclusions And Recommendations

Based on our review of the perceptions of medical students at Alauddin State Islamic University Makassar, we find that blended learning can be done to maximize student learning outcomes.

We know that the COVID-19 pandemic in Indonesia is still ongoing, so online learning is a way to keep education going with various innovations and support from the government. Many positive things were obtained, ranging from reduced paper use in note-taking and changing it to advanced technology through the applications that were used maximally in learning. However, medical students at Alauddin State Islamic University Makassar are concerned about the skills required in medicine through practicum and clinical skills labs that are not effective if implemented online have a low effectiveness scale. Therefore, medical students at Alauddin State Islamic University Makassar are more comfortable with the offline class, especially to hone skills that can be done directly, and interaction between the lecturer and the student is better with the consideration of not forgetting health protocols and personal protective equipment as a form of vigilance from catching COVID-19 [9,10].

Considering all of the above, in conclusion, online and offline classes can maximize student learning outcomes. Therefore, medical students at Alauddin State Islamic University Makassar prefer hybrid methods or the combination of online and offline courses to apply. The authors also hope that this research can be continued with quantitative methods to obtain statistical data that can be measured and objectivity is built.

Authors' Contributions

ESN: Data acquisition, draft manuscript, supervision, and supervision

NA: Analysis and interpretation of data and technical support

SKNAJ: Conception and design, and technical support.

Acknowledgments

We thank the Medical Students at Alauddin Makassar State Islamic University who have explained their perceptions of blended learning in this research. Dr. Syatirah Jamaluddin Sp.A and dr. Andi Faradillah Sp.GK as our lecturers who have provided input and financial support in this research by Alauddin State Islamic University Makassar, faculty of health and medical sciences.



- Lamptey R, Ahomagnon S, Acheampong F, Kalra S. Glucovigilance in COVID-19. J Pak Med Assoc. 2020 May;70(Suppl 3)(5): S80-S82. DOI: 10.5455/JPMA.15. PMID: 32515386.
- Colizzi M, Bortoletto R, Silvestri М, Mondini F, Puttini Ε, Cainelli C. Gaudino R, Ruggeri M, Zoccante L. Medically unexplained symptoms in the times of COVID-19 pandemic: A case report. Brain Behav Immun Health. 2020 May;5:100073. DOI: 10.1016/j.bbih.2020.100073.
- Nugraha B, Wahyuni LK, Laswati H, Kusumastuti P, Tulaar AB, Gutenbrunner C. COVID-19 pandemic in Indonesia: Situation and challenges of rehabilitation medicine in Indonesia. Acta Med Indones. 2020 Jul;52(3):299-305. PMID: 33020342.
- de Jong, N., Savin-Baden, M., Cunningham, A.M. et al. Blended learning in health education: three case studies. Perspect Med Educ 3, pp. 278-288 (2014). DOI: https://doi.org/10.1007/s40037-014-0108-1
- Khalil, R, et al. The sudden transition to synchronized online learning during the COVID-19 pandemic in Saudi Arabia: a qualitative study exploring medical students' perspectives. BMC Medical Education, vol. 20, 2020, pp. 1-10. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1186/s12909-020-02208-z.
- Jebraeily, M., Pirnejad, H., Feizi, A. et al. Evaluation of blended medical education from lecturers' and students' viewpoint: a qualitative study in a developing country. BMC Med Educ 20, 482 (2020). DOI : https://doi. org/10.1186/s12909-020-02388-8
- Amir, L.R., Tanti, I., Maharani, D.A. et al. Student perspective of classroom and distance learning during COVID-19 pandemic in the undergraduate dental study program Universitas Indonesia. BMC Med Educ, 392 (2020). DOI: https://doi.org/10.1186/s12909-020-02312-0
- Milic N. M., Trajkovic G. Z., Bukumiric Z.M., et al. Improving Education in Medical Statistics: Implementing a Blended Learning Model in the Existing Curriculum. PloS one. 2016. Vol. 11(2). DOI: https://doi.org/10.1371/ journal.pone.0148882
- Moszkowicz D, Duboc H, Dubertret C, et al. Daily medical education for confined students during coronavirus disease 2019 pandemic: A simple video conference solution. Clin Anat. 2020. Vol. 33. pp. 927-928. DOI : https://doi.org/10.1002/ca.23601
- Brent R. S., Melissa S. Stockwell, Michael Cennamo, Elise Jiang, Blended Learning Improves Science Education, Vol. 162, 2015, Pages 933-936. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.cell.2015.08.009.

Instrument for Assessing Dental Faculty Perception of E-Educational Environment: Modified E-Learning Educational Atmosphere Measure (M-EEAM)

Ħ

Falahat Nasir^{1*}, Saima Zafar Khan², Rahila Yasmeen³

- ¹ Dr. Falahat Nasir, Coordinator Department of Medical Education at School of Dentistry, SZABMU, Islamabad
- ² Dr. Saima Zafar Khan, Lecturer Dental Materials at Foundation University College of Dentistry, Islamabad
- ³ Prof. Rahila Yasmeen, Dean and Head of department of Medical Education at Riphah International University.

*Corresponding author. Email: dr.falahat.nasir@gmail.com

ABSTRACT

Background: Experiences in e-learning differs from face-to-face learning environment. A valid and reliable instrument was modified to assess perception of faculty in e-learning educational atmosphere. Objective: To evaluate E-learning Educational Atmosphere through dental faculty perception by using Modified E-learning Education Atmosphere Measure (M-EEAM). Methods: A quantitative study employing the Modified E-Learning Educational Atmosphere Measure (M-EEAM) instrument was done with 40 faculty members Foundation University College of Dentistry & Hospital in 2020. The EEAM instrument was modified according to our culture and context. A pilot study of the 28 item question was distributed amongst 12 faculty members. The final instrument (M-EEAM), included 20 questions that covered six factors in a 6-point Likert scale. Instrument content and construct validity were assessed. Also Cronbach's alpha and test-retest were used for studying the internal consistency and reliability of the instrument. Data were analyzed by using SPSS software. Results: The final instrument named 'Modified E-learning Educational Atmosphere Measure' (M-EEAM) consisting of 20 items covering six areas including Program Effectiveness, Teaching Quality, Ethics and professionalism, Learner support, Safety and convenience and Awareness of rules. A pilot study of the 28 item question was distributed amongst 12 faculty members, excluding 8 items with low construct validity in our context in culture. Content validity ratio was more than 0.52 and content validity index score of all questions was above 0.82. Test-retest reliability was 0.82 (p=0.001) and Cronbach's alpha was 0.842 calculated after pilot study and expert validation. Conclusion and recommendation: M-EEAM gives objectivity for evaluating dental faculty perception of the E-educational environment. M-EEAM is recommended reliable tool to measure the e-learning educational environment in our cultural context.

Keywords: E-learning, education atmosphere, faculty perception

A. Introduction

E learning has been actively practiced in today's era but is still in infancy stages. The teacher's perspectives of the educational environment in E-learning have as yet only been sparsely considered [1].

The virtual educational environment is a web based system that provides possibility of conducting teaching and learning process using software tools and application. Moreover, considering factors influencing and impeding selfdirected, students-centered and self-paced learning in online education [2].

Medical universities know the significance of educational learning environment is it has a directly proportional relation to successful student learning outcomes [3]. In times of COVID-19 there has been an unconditional shift to virtual working and teaching methodologies [4]. Perception of students in e-learning atmosphere is different from face-to-face learning environment [5]. A wide array of factors contribute to the establishment of educational atmosphere namely involving the stakeholders involved: university, students, faculty, admission, registration and environmental or physical elements [2].

Another noticeable area of consideration in universities measuring education environment is their strategy of competing with peers on basis of quality standards [6]. Appraising previous studies and literature revealed that focus was on factors like theoretical front and technological innovation. Components of blended and distant learning were elaborated upon rather than e-learning settings [7].

B. Theoretical Framework

In order to develop frame work of the research, we reviewed related studies that had defined factors influencing some aspects of educational environment in e learning. For this purpose we performed an advanced search between 2000 and 2020 in Web of Science and SCOPUS database with the following keywords of survey: Questionnaire, factors influencing e learning educational environment, perception of faculty towards e-learning, virtual learning and learning environment or educational atmosphere. Although, there were relatively fewer studies relevant to our study but we selected some relevant articles and read them thoroughly. These articles were as follows:

One interesting study was by Taylor and Maor (2000) designed a 'Constructivist Online Learning Environment Survey (COLLES) to gauge the learners' preference for learning environment. Considering the student and tutor perception of professional relevance, reflective thinking and cognitive demand.

In 2001, Chang and Fischer studied the 'Web Based Learning Environment Instrument' (WEBLEI) measuring a blended learning framework with emancipatory, co-participatory, information structure and design activities.

Therafter, Aldridge, Dorman and fraser (2004) validated (TROFLEI). A 'technology- rich outcome focused learning environment inventory' consisting of 80 itme and 10 dimensions.

Also, in (2007) "Online learning Environment Survey" (OLLES) and in year (2005)"Distant Education Learning Environment Survey" (DELES). Suggesting a blended online teaching method with no precise description for targets on distant learning programs

This was followed by the introduction of a fairly new validated instrument in (2020) by A Mousavi, 'E-learning educational atmosphere measure' (EEAM). Sounding more like the education atmosphere measure DREEM. Constructed a 40 item instrument covering 6 factor. So in this study a specific valid and reliable instrument was modified for accessing perception of faculty in e-learning educational atmosphere. Under the current COVID-19 era with E-teaching by E-tutors and E-learning by E-students. Figure 1. The six factors of modified e-learning educational atmosphere measure.



C. Methods

Considering the above stated study in which the factors creating educational atmosphere in e- learning setting were determined as theoretical framework of this applied research in our settings of private medical university [8]. The reason for selecting this study:

- Time sensitivity of study- concordance with current e-learning approach and technique.
- The participants of study- were faculty currently involved with virtual classrooms not he blended type.
- Perspective of faculty members- was used to determine the influencing factors of online e learning atmosphere.

A quantitative study employing the Modified E-Learning Educational Atmosphere Measure (M-EEAM) instrument was done with 40 faculty members Foundation University College of Dentistry & Hospital in 2020. Data was collected with the use of M-EEAM Questionnaire. Firstly the modified EEAM instrument was chosen with respect to EEAM instrument. Instrument content and construct validity was assessed. Also Cronbach's alpha and testretest were used for studying the internal consistency and reliability of the instrument.

The study was piloted in accordance with research ethical standards and its ethical approval was attained from the university ethics committee and from researchers of EEAM instrument via email. All quantitative statistics were analyzed using SPSS [9].

D. Results

The expert committee devised 28 item as instrument questions that they believed were applicable in settings to be evaluated in e learning educational atmosphere. All the questions were designed in a 6-point likert scale including *strongly agree, agree, slightly agree, slightly disagree, disagree, and strongly disagree* (rated 6 to 1).

A 10 person expert committee approved the face validity. The content validity CVR was greater than 0.54 in addition score of all questions was above 0.82. Content validity of scale was numerically proven [10]. A pilot study of the 28 item question was distributed amongst 12 faculty members. After careful evaluation applying the test-retest inter rater reliability of the individual instrument was 0.82 (p = 0.001) and the Cronbach's alpha for the whole instrument was 0.842.

After reviewing multifacited solution and considering the context and subject areas of the items, finally a six factor solution was designated fig 1. Eight items that had no effect on the total explained variance and were not loaded in any of the six principle factors with value less than 0.7 were omitted.

The final instrument named as 'Modified E-learning Educational Atmosphere Measure (M-EEAM), include 20 questions that covered six factor consisting of program effectiveness, ethics and professionalism, teaching quality, learner support, awareness of the rules, and safety and convenience. Graph1 shows the mean and median of each item of instrument and table 1 shows the items of instrument with factors from M-EEAM.

E. Discussions

The study employed quantitative research to answer the research questions. The purpose of this study was to investigate faculty members' attitudes toward e-learning in health profession education in primate medical college. The factors influencing their attitudes. This study examined differences in attitude between faculty members based on age, gender, education level, nationality, and teaching experiences. This research was limited to two universities from different locations in the KSA [11].

A Survey questionnaire was used in this study to collect the data. the results showed that there is a difference between the levels of e-learning based on different components of identity. The gender perceptions were the first indication of differences, with perceptions by females being more positive than that of males. This was followed by age differences in which the ages under 30 had a stronger perception of e- learning than those over the ages of 31. The educational level was also noted as being affected by the perceptions of

e-learning being stronger with those who had a Bachelor's degree. The results showed that faculty member's who had less teaching experience had a stronger perception than those who had been teaching for more than 10 years. There was an overall positive outlook of e-learning by faculty members with the belief that it is a tool which enhances learning. The responding to the challenges and obstructions of e-learning, participants revealed that a lack of tools and knowledge created impediment [12].



Figure 2. depicts the mean and median of each item of instrument

University of Tabuk, adopts e-learning as one of its academic priorities. For this reason, the study was concerned with investigating the faculty members' perception of the e-learning at the University of Tabuk. In addition, the study examined the relationship between the faculty members' e-learning perception and their major and experience. A perception survey was developed and e-mailed to 63 faculty members. Responded participants were 40. The study findings revealed that 62.9% of the faculty members' overall responses to e-learning perception survey were ranging from negative to 'uncertain' [13]. There was a significant difference among faculty members' e-learning perception related to their major and experience. Novice faculty members showed more positive e-learning perception than experienced ones in e-learning readiness.

This explorative study captured the perceptions of faculty members new to technology enhanced learning and the longitudinal observations of the e-learning manager during dedicated professional development in order to compile a socially transformative emergent learning technology integration framework for open and distance learning at the School of Continuing Teacher Education at North-West University, South Africa. The clusters formed the basis of a model for faculty development towards socially transformative learning technology integration for open distance learning. The five aspects of the model comprise (i) the environment in which faculty members should gain support from the institution; (ii) the environment in which faculty have to address the realities of adopting TEL; (iii) human factors relating to the adoption of TEL; (iv) concerns and reservations about the use of TEL; and (v) continuing professional development needs, expectations, and motivators. The sustainable integration of ICT into higher education institutions remains a major challenge for the adoption of TEL [13].

Reviewing the literature, we couldn't find any study introducing an instrument for the assessment of educational atmosphere in current e-learning environments from e-teachers perspective. So, this study aims at designing a valid and reliable tool for assessing educational atmosphere in e-learning setting based on factors creating such an environment.



Figure 3. illustrates the repose ratio against the 6-point likert scale

 Table 1. Factors and their items of modified e-learning educational atmosphere measure

FACTORS	ITEMS
Program effectiveness	1. Courses' resources and contents are intriguing and motivational for learning
	2. The possibility of learning academic meta-skills (such as writing a proposal, working with academic software etc.) is provided for faculty.
	3. Courses' contents and activities are understandable and tangible
	4. During this program, my ability to interact with others in virtual space has increased.



	5. I have taught what I needed to teach in this program.
	6. This program will be effective for my future job/experience.
Teaching Quality	7. Teachers of this program have e-teaching skills.
	8. Teachers of this program give timely feedback on as- signments, activities and messages.
	9. Teachers of this program give complete and proper feedback on assignments, activities and messages.
Ethics and profession-nalism	10. Teachers of this program help raise motivation for learning.
	11. Copyright and intellectual property of scientific re- sources and contents are respected.
	12. Teachers of this program are responsive and available.
	13. Cultural issues and social etiquette are observed in the educational environment.
Learners Support	14. Administrative educational staff, Technical support staff and authorities are well responsive to faculty.
	15. I have access to a decent digital library.
	16. Good support system for weak students is available.
	17. Students' views on the program delivery and educa- tional services are considered important.
Safety and convenience	18. I can easily work with LMS.
Awareness of Rules	19. There is a good place for e-learning in my society.
	20. I have become aware of educational regulations and administrative processes

Conclusions F.

Modified E-Learning Educational Atmosphere Measure (M-EEAM) give objectivity for evaluating faculty perception of the E-educational environment. The evidence based results demarcates and demonstrate zones of E-learning that can be accentuated and improved. It also serves as an insight into the extent to which the faculty development programmers are meeting the perception to improve the virtual education environment of the institute. Assessing educations atmosphere in e-learning settings by M-EEAM could provide managers and investors with useful information to settle an effective education system by prioritizing the necessary changes.

G. Limitations

The study had some potential limitations that may have affected the results. It was limited to a single university and it had a limited sample size. It was unlikely that the result of statistical analysis were attributed to chance, but this did not necessarily imply that they were valid outside this university.

Another limitation of this study was the M-EEAM questionnaire did not account for other stake holder such as students, administrations only faculty members were selected to respond to the questionnaire.

H. Recommendations And Impacts Of Study

It can be recommended that M-EEAM can be used for assessing educations atmosphere in e-learning settings and provide managers and investors with useful information to formulate an effective education system by prioritizing the necessary changes.

Authors' Contributions

All authors had substantial contribution to the conception and design of work. Together all drafted the work and critically revised the content.

Acknowledgements

I would like to extend my gratitude to the worthy faculty who participated in this study and completed the questionnaires.

Financial or other conflict of interest

None.

References

- Phirangee, K. (2016). Students' Perceptions of Learner-Learner Interactions that Weaken a Sense of Community in an Online Learning Environment. *Online Learning*, 20(4), 13-33.
- Kohan, N., Arabshahi, K. S., Mojtahedzadeh, R., Abbaszadeh, A., Rakhshani, T., & Emami, A. (2017). Self-directed learning barriers in a virtual environment: a qualitative study. *Journal of Advances in Medical Education & Professionalism*, 5(3), 116.
- Pimparyon, S. M. C., S. Pemba, S. Roff, P. (2000). Educational environment, student approaches to learning and academic achievement in a Thai nursing school. *Medical teacher*, *22*(4), 359-364.

- Crawford, J., Butler-Henderson, K., Rudolph, J., Malkawi, B., Glowatz, M., Burton, R., . . . Lam, S. (2020). COVID-19: 20 countries' higher education intra-period digital pedagogy responses. *Journal of Applied Learning & Teaching*, 3(1), 1-20.
- Heirdsfield, A., Walker, S., Tambyah, M., & Beutel, D. (2011). Blackboard as an online learning environment: What do teacher education students and staff think? *Australian Journal of Teacher Education (Online)*, *36*(7), 1.
- Murphy, P. S. (1994). Research Quality, Peer Review and Performance Indicators. *Australian Universities' Review*, *37*(1), 14-18.
- Rovai, A. P., & Downey, J. R. (2010). Why some distance education programs fail while others succeed in a global environment. *The Internet and Higher Education*, *13*(3), 141-147.
- Mousavi, A., Mohammadi, A., Mojtahedzadeh, R., Shirazi, M., & Rashidi, H. (2020). E-Learning Educational Atmosphere Measure (EEAM): A New Instrument for Assessing E-Students' Perception of Educational Environment. *Research in Learning Technology*, 28.
- Cor, I. (2012). Released. IBM SPSS Statistics for Windows, Version 21.0: Armonk, NY: IBM Corp.
- Shi, J., Mo, X., & Sun, Z. (2012). Content validity index in scale development. *Zhong nan da xue xue bao. Yi xue ban= Journal of Central South University. Medical sciences*, 37(2), 152.
- Al Gamdi, M., & Samarji, A. (2016). Perceived barriers towards e-Learning by faculty members at a recently established university in Saudi Arabia. *International Journal of Information and Education Technology,* 6(1), 23.
- Albalawi, A., & Badawi, M. (2008). *Teachers' Perception of E-learning at the University of Tabuk*. Paper presented at the E-Learn: World Conference on E-Learning in Corporate, Government, Healthcare, and Higher Education.
- Esterhuizen, H. D., Blignaut, S., & Ellis, S. (2013). Looking out and looking in: Exploring a case of faculty perceptions during e-learning staff development. *International Review of Research in Open and Distributed Learning*, 14(3), 59-80.

Evaluation of Efficacy of "Student Support System" in a Medical University in Pakistan

Ħ

Hafsa Shahid^{1*}, Haris Iqbal², Shahzaib Ahmad³

¹Hafsa Shahid King Edward Medical University Lahore ²Haris Iqbal King Edward Medical University Lahore ³Shahzaib Ahmad King Edward Medical University Lahore ^{*}Corresponding author. Email: hafsashahid786786@gmail.com

ABSTRACT

Objectives: The purpose of this study is to evaluate the degree of satisfaction of students by the student support system in King Edward Medical University, Pakistan. Methodology: The medical students of MBBS were recognized as the sample population and a pre-formed, pre-validated questionnaire was distributed online to the target population. Descriptive statistics were applied and results were noted. Results: Out of the total sample population of 268 students, around 39% (105) of the participants had substantial knowledge about the availability of student support services executing in the university premises. About 15% (40 participants) availed the facilitation at least once from support in their undergraduate tenure. 72% (192 participants) were satisfied with the orientation provided at the first day of university. 20% (53 participants) were satisfied with problem solving attitude and serviceability provided by the counseling service of the student support system. Around 43% (115 participants) reported that their various academic issues were resolved after they contacted student support center. Conclusion and Recommendations: Student support system is cornerstone for the facilitation of students, as it contains qualified-professionals. We recommend that proper awareness regarding its services must be done at various levels in university.

Keywords: Support, satisfaction, performance



The students who get admission in any prestigious institute after doing a lot of struggle and hard work often get misled by their seniors and other peeps who are already studying in that institute. They find themselves in a plethora of issues regarding commodities, mental health, study-pressure, demotivation, syllabus, co-curricular and extra-curricular activities. In particular, medical students face substantial amount of stress and anxiousness, regarding issues of academic and non-academic sorts due to competitive environment, compared to the students from other institutions. Especially, newly admitted students are the ones who are more prone to psychological stress of education, career development and family's interpersonal ties. The student support system is a program which acts on a set of guidelines formulated by each institute to facilitate its students in coping with their issues.

Effective support services contain an interrelated organized circle of institutional, social, academic, and financial supports that help the students in various issues [1]. The main aim of a student support system in any institution is to provide an effective medium where students may openly present their complaints and problems of any sort to a team of qualifies professionals and strategic experts who may provide a proper solution and develop an organized strategy so that the issue of that sort may not occur again in future. Guidance regarding academic activities is he area where students need tremendous help and look forward to help from student support system [2]. Also, medical students also need to cope with the competitive environment in their hostels and classrooms. That's why the importance of student support services in such institutions becomes many-fold when it comes to overall stability of students' peace of mind. It is achieved through counseling which varies depending upon the faculty and teams of professionals working in that area. In some cases, students are offered sessions with professional counselors who are experts only in mentoring and strategy-making. In other cases, faculty members serve as mentors to aid students regarding the issues. The faculty-student interactions are often more informal than the professional counseling services (MDRC, 2004).

The student support system may use various sources which students can use to approach for addressing their issues. Some may use an online portal to facilitate students online. Others may establish an office within university premises for easy availability to the students. Some academies are trying to utilize texting and social media apps to inform their students regarding academic news, services, deadlines, and other pieces of information [3]. In short, the importance of the support system in medical schools and universities should be spread and the evaluation must be cross-checked by the authorities so that proper reforms may be carried out for maintaining their effectiveness. This research, therefore, analyzes the effectiveness of student support system operating in King Edward Medical University, Pakistan.

B. Methods

The method which we used for the evaluation of student support system was a survey form which had been designed online, and then was disseminated to the sample population of currently enrolled undergraduate medical students at King Edward Medical University by 'Snowball Sampling Technique'. The sample size of target population was calculated to be 268 by using the WHO sample size calculator. The questionnaire was divided into sections which aimed at analyzing the availability, accessibility, serviceability and satisfaction on Student Support System. The answers collected were processed according to different percentage of participants and a generalized conclusion was extracted out.

C. Results

1. Demographic characteristics

Out of a total sample population of 268 participants, 147/268 (55%) were male and 121/268 (45%) were female. The predominant sample population consisted of the second year MBBS students; 99/268 (37%). Further details are mentioned in the table 1.

2. Accessibility

Most of the students [104/268 (39%)] knew about the presence of student counselling services at their college. However, majority of students [217/268 (81%)] never availed these services. Most of the students[118/268 (44%)]were not sure about the availability to all students of these services. Most students [115/268 (43%)] responded that issues like attendance, academic performance or others are resolved by the support center. Majority of the students [110/268 (41%)] were able to gain advice and support in ensuring they maintain appropriate academic levels, attendance levels, and general support. 177/268 (66%) students reported that their progress and attendance are monitored. [137 (51%)] were not able to gain advice and guidance on personal (including impairment and health issues), accommodation, or family/friend issues. 150 (56%) participants were unable to discuss any issues or concerns with accommodation arrangements. 150 (56%) of respondents



were not requested to advise their lecturer of any disabilities that may affect your learning. Majority of students [193 (72%)] responded that their university arranged an orientation. 155 (58%) students visited classrooms, student areas, student administration area, and any other relevant areas, such as toilets, fire exits, and restricted areas during orientation. 196 (73%) students were not given a hard copy of the Student Manual as given in table 1.

3. Counselling Services

214 (80%) of students did not have counselling services for managing their time. 198 (74%) of respondents did not enjoy counseling service for setting and achieving your goals. 169 (63%) respondents did not have counseling service for motivation. 185 (69%) of participants did not have counseling service for ways of learning. 209 (78%) of respondents did not enjoy counseling service for coping with assessments. 209 (78%) of students had no availability of counseling service for looking after yourself as given in Table 1.

4. Problem Solving Aspect

123 (46%) of the respondents were neutral about the rating of problem solving aspect of student support services. The results of the study are summarized according to per-question as follows:

Sr. No.	Variables/Characteristics	Frequency/268 (percentage)
1-	Gender of respondents	Male: 147/268 (55%)
		Female: 121/268 (45%)
2-	Year of study of respondents	1st: 67 (25%)
		2 nd : 99 (37%)
		3 rd : 54 (20%)
		4 th : 32 (12%)
		5 th : 16 (6%)
3-	Assessiblilty [Have your university/college a	No: 65 (24%)
Stu	Student Support Center?]	Not sure: 99 (37%)
		Yes: 104 (39%)

Table 1. Result frequency

4-	Assessiblilty [Have you ever availed Student Support?]	No: 217 (81%)
	outhour	Not sure: 11 (4%)
		Yes: 40 (15%)
5-	Assessibility [Is available to all students, on an	No: 80 (30%)
	appointment basis, during university/college hours of business]	Not sure: 118 (44%)
		Yes: 70 (26%)
6-	Assessiblilty [Are the issues like attendance, academic performance or others are resolved	No: 73 (27%)
	by the support center?]	Not sure: 80 (30%)
		Yes: 115 (43%)
7-	Assessibility [Are able to gain advice and	No: 110 (41%)
	support in ensuring they maintain appropriate academic levels, attendance levels, and general	Not sure: 80 (30%)
	support	Yes: 78 (29%)
8-	Assessiblilty [Is the students' progress and attendance monitored?]	No: 43 (16%)
		Not sure: 48 (18%)
		Yes: 177 (66%)
9-	Assessibility [Are you able to gain advice and	No: 137 (51%)
	and health issues), accommodation, or family/	Not sure: 56 (21%)
	frene issues.]	Yes: 75 (28%)
10-	Assessibility [Are you able to discuss any issues or concerns with you accommodation	No: 150 (56%)
	arrangements?]	Not sure: 65 (24%)
		Yes: 53 (20%)
11-	Assessiblilty [Are you requested to advise your lecturer of any disabilities that may affect your learning?]	No: 150 (56%)
		Not sure: 30 (11%)
		Yes: 88 (33%)
12-	Assessiblilty [Does your university arrange an orientation?]	No: 46 (17%)
	·····	Not sure: 29 (11%)
		Yes: 193 (72%)

0	Excellence in Health Profe Through Globalization	ession Education; International Conference n & Collaboration On Medical Educat
13-	Assessiblilty [Did you visit classrooms, student areas student administration area and any	No: 86 (32%)
	other relevant areas, such as toilets, fire exits,	Not sure: 27 (10%)
	and restricted areas during orientations]	Yes: 155 (58%)
14-	Assessiblilty [Were you given a hard copy of the Student Manual?]	No: 196 (73%)
		Not sure: 37 (14%)
		Yes: 35 (13%)
15-	Assessiblilty [Is the efficacy of the availabil- ity and accessibility of the support services	No: 96 (36%)
	monitored?]	Not sure: 118 (44%)
		Yes: 54 (20%)
16-	Do you have a counseling service for: [•man- aging your time]	No: 214 (80%)
	uging your time,	Yes: 54 (20%)
17-	Do you have a counseling service for: [•setting and achieving your goals]	No: 198 (74%)
		Yes: 70 (26%)
18-	Do you have a counseling service for: [•moti- vation]	No: 169 (63%)
		Yes: 99 (37%)
19-	Do you have a counseling service for: [•ways of learning]	No: 185 (69%)
		Yes: 83 (31%)
20-	Do you have a counseling service for: [•coping with assessments]	No: 209 (78%)
		Yes: 59 (22%)
21-	Do you have a counseling service for: [•look- ing after yourself]	No: 209 (78%)
		Yes: 59 (22%)
22-	Rate the following aspects of Student Support: [Problem solving]	Bad: 56 (21%)
	- 0.	Good: 51 (19%)
		Neutral: 123 (46%)
		Very Bad: 35 (13%)
		Very Good: 3 (1%)

D. Conclusions

The research was conducted to evaluate the awareness, availability and efficacy of student support system that exist in King Edward Medical University Lahore. The major results of the evaluation from the students showed that there is lack of effective awareness regarding the existence of any support system in the university. Major numbers of students were neutral about the efficacy of the system because either they never consulted their issues with the system or they were unaware of the methods to approach the team.

The results show that there is lack of faculty-student interaction at the very basic level and most students don't consult the system. The main reason is because there are many flaws existing at administrative level. Most students don't find any availability of support regarding motivation, time-management, study-plans, ways of learning, coping with assessments and mental health. Also, most students remain neutral in rating the overall performance of the support system within the university premises.

E. Discussions And Recommendations

King Edward Medical University, being the most prestigious institute in all over Pakistan, represents most of the medical schools in Pakistan. The student support system is working but there is lack of proper awareness regarding its existence, management plans, rules and regulations, presence of its office, faculty support, strategic measurements and accessibility. The administration must take proper actions to support its students by conducting seminars and sessions on a regular basis so that more students may come to know about its existence and performance. This can also be done by putting the support system plans and strategies in university gazettes and manuals so that students may come to know more about the working principles and professionals of the support system.

Moreover, there has also been a factor of hesitation and fear in the students to approach the administration directly. The students must think that the administration is always there to facilitate them. They should freely consult the support services, check the efficacy, and spread the word to the other students as well. That's how a proper system would be established on both ends.



References

- Pathways to College Network. (2009). Removing Roadblocks to Rigor: Linking Academic and Social Supports to Ensure
- Community College Research Center (2006). What Community College Management Practices Are Effective in Promoting Student Success? A Study of High- and Low-Impact Institutions. New York, NY: Author.; MDRC. (2004). Support Success: Services That May Help Low-Income Students Succeed in Community College. New York, NY: Author.
- Chen, B. (2010, August 18). Active Facebook Users Most Likely To Stick with College: Study. Wired. http://www.wired.com/epicenter/2010/08/active-fa cebook-users-more-likely-to-stick-it-through-colleg e-study/ (Accessed on August 22, 2010)

COVID-19 and Final Year Medical Students' Learning Process in Oman: Exploring Knowledge, Consequences and Preparedness for Internship

Ħ

Hatem Al-Saadi^{1,6,9*}, Fatma Al-Busaidi⁴, Marwa Al-Kalbani^{1,3}, Said Al-Abri⁷, Haya Malallah^{2,9}, Jameela Al-Saadi^{1,9}, Ahlam Al-Saadi⁸, Vittal Rao, Tariq Al-Saadi^{1,5,9}

¹Ministry of Health, Muscat, Sultanate of Oman

- ² Ministry of Health, Kuwait, Kuwait
- ³ Oman Medical Specialty Board, Ibri Hospital, Sultanate of Oman
- ⁴ College of Medicine & Health Science, National University of Science & Technology, Sohar, Sultanate of Oman
- ⁵ Montreal Neurological Institute and Hospital, McGill University, Montreal, Canada
- ⁶ University Hospitals of North Midlands, Stafford, United Kingdom
- ⁷ Statistical Researcher, Center for Government Communications, General Secretariat to the Cabinet, Muscat, Sultanate of Oman
- ⁸Medical Complex, Diwan of Royal Court, Muscat, Oman
- ⁹ Gulf Research Collaboration Group (GRCG)
- *Corresponding author. Email: <u>dr.hdhy@gmail.com</u>

ABSTRACT

Background: Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) is a cluster of acute respiratory illness that was first identified in Wuhan Province in China. The virus causing this syndrome is known as SARS-CoV-2. The COVID 19 pandemic affects every aspect of our life, including education, work, travel, business, and social life. Aim: To evaluate the final year medical students' perceptions of their preparedness for internship and assess their awareness of COVID-19 and patients' management in the Sultanate of Oman. Methods: A cross-sectional survey of cohort of final year medical students at Sultan Qaboos University (SQU) and National University of Science and Technology (NU) was distributed to 227 students in both medical schools from 21st to 28th of April 2020. A total of 99 students fully completed the survey with a response rate of 43.6%. The survey had five sections exploring perceptions on preparedness for internship and awareness and knowledge on COVID-19, training, and implications. Results: Majority of participants (82.8%) were 24-26 years old. Omani students accounted for 88.9% of the participants. 81.4% of SQU participants were competent in carrying ward's practical procedures



comparing to 39.3% of the NU participants (p<0.05). There was a higher level of awareness of the current ministry of health policies on the management of patients with COVID-19 with NU participants than SQU (p < 0.005). Training on preparedness for COVID-19 was higher in females than males (p= 0.02). Conclusion: COVID-19 has affected the teaching process and limited student- patient interactions. With ongoing rise in confirmed cases every day, the uncertainty of the duration of the suspension of on-campus teaching in higher education institutions in Oman is still ongoing. The overall perceptions of preparedness for internship among medical students in Oman are good. However, further education in emergency management and training on practical procedures are still required.

Keywords: coronavirus, COVID-19, medical students, final year, preparedness, internship, Oman. Medical education

A. Introduction

Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) is a cluster of acute respiratory illness that was first identified in Wuhan Province in China. The virus causing this syndrome is known as SARS-CoV-2 [1]. The World Health Organization (WHO) declared the outbreak as a public health emergency of international concern on 30th of January 2020 and on the 11th of March it was announced that the COVID-19 outbreak is a global pandemic [2].

The COVID 19 pandemic affects every aspect of our life, including education, work, travel, business, and social life. This goes from suspending all forms of education, reducing the number of workforce to minimum in different working areas, making people to work online at home, physical distancing and social exclusion, restriction of travel, health system crisis and economic decline are some issues resulting from facing COVID-19 [3].

The COVID-19 pandemic is putting an enormous strain on the health care system. This is due in part to the rapid increase in the number of cases and in part because health care professionals are themselves getting sickin some cases fatally succumbing to the virus [4]. Moreover, it impacts on medical education in general and the training and preparation of final year medical students in particular. Students are not able to complete their clinical placements in an effective and safe environment because of the lockdown caused by the pandemic. Transferring medical education into online platform results in loss of in hospital clinical rotations, simulation laboratory and interactive medical school's sessions. Thus, limiting the process of preparing and equipping these students, who will soon be practicing in hospitals, for real life medical emergencies [4].

As final-year medical students are approaching the end of the academic year, in few months, they will be joining the medical forces in different hospitals and practicing as interns/ supervised doctors. Students entering the practice increase the medical workforce which is crucial for the increasing demands in facing current pandemic. This helps the health system to cope with the increasing number of patients, speeding up post-pandemic recovery, maintaining the essential medical services, and providing safe society to prevent disease transmission. Effective human resources are essential to ensure adequate staff capacity and the continuity of the main operations [5].

There are two medical schools in Oman: one public (Sultan Qaboos University, SQU) and one private (National University of Science and Technology, NU). The internship is a term used in medicine for the graduates who attained their medical degree and still not licensed to work without supervision. It is a transition of the medical students to doctors [6]. In Oman, the internship is a one-year period divided into three 4-months rotations. The new graduates will be able to join various departments in different hospitals in the coming few months. Interns will transform their medical school knowledge into practice which will equip them with skills to approach and manage patients under the supervision of senior doctors. The internship period is very crucial to strengthen intern's clinical skills and helps them learn the professional attitudes and behaviors [7]. It also helps to produce a capable and independent doctor for future practice.

The new graduates join the medical workforce with substantial knowledge and clinical experience, yet preparation and guidance provided varies by institution. The literature found that inadequate career preparation, either due to inadequate institutional guidance or level of awareness, is one of the key stressors for medical students [8].

This cross-sectional study aims to evaluate the final year medical students' perceptions on their preparedness for internship and assess their knowledge on COVID-19 and patients' management. It also extends to illustrate COVID-19 specific training and explore the pandemic consequences on the medical education in the Sultanate of Oman.



B. Material And Methods

1. Participants and Setting

A cross-sectional study of cohort of final year medical students at Sultan Qaboos University (SQU) and National University of Science and Technology (NU) was conducted with distribution of electronic survey. The electronic survey was sent to all final year medical students in both medical schools (n=227) and survey fieldwork ran from 21st to 28th of April 2020. A total of 99 students fully completed the survey with response rate of 43.6%.

Inclusion criteria were final year medical students. Exclusion criteria were students not in final year, abroad studying students and incomplete responses.

2. Questionnaire Design

A structured self-administered questionnaire consisting of five sections was distributed electronically to all potential participants in their final medical year. The survey five sections had close ended questions and included; a) socio-demographic questions (6 questions), b) perceptions on preparedness for internship (8 questions), c) awareness and knowledge on COVID-19 (10 questions), d) COVID-19 training (4 questions), and e) COVID-19 consequences and implication (6 questions). Awareness questions were based on the interim guidance and information for healthcare workers provided by Centre of Disease Control (CDC), and Coronavirus disease (COVID-19) outbreak: rights, roles and responsibilities of health workers published by WHO [9,10].

The survey elements were developed according to the objectives and variables of the study. All survey questions, except demographics, were closed questions of either 2-scales (Yes or No) or 3-scales (True, False or I do not Know). Content validity of the survey was checked and critiqued by group of experts in medical education. The survey was piloted on 10 subjects prior to conducting the study. Participants' consent to participate in the study was given through return of the completed questionnaire.

In order to exclude participants not in final year, expected year of graduation was added to the demographic part. Figure 1 shows the flow diagram for the inclusion and exclusion of response. Collected data were tubulated in Excel and statistical analysis was carried out using Statistical Package for the Social Sciences (SPSS v21 Inc, Chicago, Illinois, USA). Numbers and percentages were used to represent categorical variables data. Continuous variable data were presented as mean and standard deviation.

Associations and significance differences between variables were tested using Fisher's Extract Test and Chi square test. A p-value of <0.05 was considered statistically significant.

3. Statistical Analysis



Figure 1. Flow diagram for inclusion and exclusion of responses

C. Results

1. Demographics

Total completed responses received that met the inclusion criteria of the study were 99 (84 females, 15 males). Majority of participants (82.8%) were 24-26 years old. Omani students accounted for 88.9% of the participants. Four of the participants are intending to do their internship program abroad. Participants' demographics are shown in table 1.

Table 1. Demographic	information	of participants
----------------------	-------------	-----------------

Characteristics	Percentage (n)
Age	
21-23	15.2% (15)
24-26	82.8% (82)
27-29	2.0% (2)
Gender	
Male	15.2% (15)
Female	84.8% (15)



Nationality	
Omani	88.9 (88)
Non-Omani	11.1% (11)
University	
National University of Science	56.6% (56)
and Technology	43.4% (43)
Sultan Qaboos University	
Total	100% (99)

Perceptions on Preparedness for Internship 2.

Eight closed ended questions were used to evaluate participants' perceptions on their preparedness for internship. In four questions (B1, B3, B5 and B8), more than 90 participants answered there were competent in the specific questions. Lower numbers of competency were found in questions related to emergency management of ill patients (B6 n=49) followed by confidence in carrying ward procedures (B4, n=57). Participants responses are shown in figure 2.

The study found that 81.4% of SQU participants were able to carry basic ward procedures (e.g. cannulation and NG-Tube), while only 39.3% of the NU students answered they were competent with these procedures. The difference in the competency in carrying basic ward procedures between the 2 medical schools was statistically significant (p < 0.001). The competency with principles of infection control and the ability to take part in ACLS in emergency situation were also significant between the two medical schools (p < 0.001).



Figure 2. Participants Perceptions on Their Preparedness for Internship

3. Covid-19 Awareness

To evaluate the level of awareness of the participants, 10 knowledgebased closed-ended questions were asked (Table 2). Questions were then categorized into five themes (Pathogenesis, WHO role, Health Measures, Medical Managements, and Infection Control). Correct answered per theme were then compared to identify gaps in knowledge as shown in the graph (Figure 3)

Theme	Questions
	Coronaviruses are a newly discovered family of viruses
Pathogenesis	Molecular tests, using Polymerase Chain Reaction (PCR) have been developed and are being used to detect the SARS-CoV-2 virus causing COVID-19
WHO role	The response to COVID-19 is entirely dependent on the World Health
	Mental health and psychosocial support are not an important part of emergency planning and response measures in outbreak
Health measure	Syndromic screening aims to detect people in the incubation period
	The incubation period is the time from exposure to the causative agent until the first symptoms develop and is characteristic for each disease agent
Medical management	For the management of COVID-19 in hospital, the flow and trans- fer of patients should be planned ahead
	Existing medicines for other diseases may be able to be re-pur- posed for COVID-19
Infection control	Surgical mask is enough personal protective equipment for trans- ferring asymptomatic positive patients with covid-19
	Hand rub with soap and water for at least 10 second is the pre- ferred method for soiled hands

Table 2. Themes of knowledge based questions



Figure 3. COVID-19 awareness: number of correctly answered themes

The number of correct answers were low in questions related to infection control followed by Health measures themes. Despite the overall satisfactory level of awareness (>50% correct answers) for each theme, gaps in the knowledge have been identified when looking at questions individually. The question related to hand hygiene duration (C10) was the least correctly answered question (Correct 39, incorrect 57, I do not know 3). The overall of participants answers of the knowledge-based questions per medical school are shown in figure 4.

Figure 4. showing the difference in awareness questions between the 2 medical school



4. COVID-19 Training

Training and latest guidelines and recommendations updates on COVID-19 for medical students were explored in this section. Majority of participants had training on hand hygiene in the last 12 months (86.9%). However, only 18 participants had formal specific training about COVID-19 preparedness and management (18.8%). About 12.1% of participants participated on online course or a form of teaching about COVID-19. There was higher level of awareness of current ministry of health policies on management of patients with COVID-19 among NU participants than SQU (p < 0.005). Training on preparedness for covid-19 was higher in female than male (p = 0.02).

5. Covid-19 Consequences

Along with other aspects of life, the pandemic of COVID-19 also affects the education process. This section illustrates the implication of the pandemic on the teaching process. Participants from the 2 medical schools are currently off campus and continuing their college education online. With all participants, clinical rotations, examinations, and clinical clerkship have been affected by the pandemic. About one quarter of the participants have volunteered to help with the healthcare professionals during the pandemic. This was significant for different age groups (p=0.04). The measures and preparedness in tackling the pandemic have illustrated the role of infection control and public health and increased participants knowledge on these as a specialty. Therefore, 47 participants have expressed their interest in pursuing Public Health and infection control as a career.

D. Discussions

This prospective cross-sectional study explores final year medical students and COVID-19 perceptions on preparedness, awareness, training, and implications on education. The first two confirmed COVID-19 cases were diagnosed in the Sultanate were linked to travel and were diagnosed on the 23rd February 2020 [11]. To date, there are 8118 confirmed cases [12]. This wide spread of COVID-19 has serios implications for public institutions and raised concerns for medical students. While final year medical students are preparing to take assessments and examinations, substantial number of medical schools across the globe has suspended clinical rotations and direct patient interactions. In countries like the United Kingdom [13], Kuwait and Ireland, several medical schools have announced the end of the academic year and expediated graduation to allow newly graduated doctors to join the medical force.

The study demonstrated overall high levels of perceptions on preparedness for internship by final year medical students in Oman. However, further training on carrying basic ward procedures (e.g. cannulation and NGtube) is required. There is low perception of competency in early emergency



management of patient with COVID-19. This indicates the necessity of further education and training in this matter as interns are part of the frontline dealing with patients with COVID-19.

The response to COVID-19 is dependent on the individual country emergency plan under the guidance of the WHO [5]. However, the study found mixed responses in perceptions were only 63% of participants agreed that the response to tackle the emergency is not entirely the role of the WHO but rather individual country. There is a good understanding on the incubation period of the SARS-CoV-2 virus. However, the study found low levels of understanding on syndromic screening which is the screening of travellers in the airport to prevent travel of symptomatic individuals. Based on the early data from China, the average incubation period for COVID-19 is five days [14].

The overall of correctly answered knowledge-based questions on COVID-19 awareness levels were different between the two medical schools with higher levels in SQU than NU students (65.1% and 58.9% respectively). A study on COVID-19 awareness among healthcare students and professionals in Mumbai [15] showed a higher percentage of correct answers in medical students (74.10%) than our overall findings (61.6%). However, the finding of a survey of participants perceptions on knowledge on emerging infection in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia showed that 61% of participants perceive their knowledge as low [16].

Hand hygiene is an effective way to prevent the spread of pathogens and infection in healthcare setting. The two basic techniques to clean hands are hand washing and hand rubbing. For healthcare setting, the CDC recommends the use of Alcohol Based Hand Rub (ABHR) with at least 60% ethanol or 70% isoproranol. The recommendation for visibly soiled hands is to be washed with soap and water for at least 20 seconds [17]. In this study, although 86 participants had training on hand hygiene in the last 12 months, only 38 participants correctly answered the infection control hand hygiene question. A recent study reported that only 51.9% of their respondents were aware one the preferred method of hand hygiene in health care settings [18].

Personal protective equipment (PPE) plays a particularly important role in the prevention of transmission of the COVID 19 infection. PPE needed for patients with confirmed and possible COVID infection and needed for the health care workers when caring for suspected or confirm cases of COVID-19 [19]. PPE indicated for use in COVID-19 include face mask, eye protection like goggles or disposable face shield, clean nonsterile gloves, and clear isolation gowns. All PPE should be donned before entering patient care area, must remain in place and worn correctly and must be removed slowly and deliberately in sequence to prevent self-contamination [18]. In this study, 84.9 % of participants has a good knowledge on the use of appropriate PPE when dealing with patients with COVID-19. No previous study done to evaluate the PPE knowledge and preparedness in medical students, however, a recent international survey discussed this issue in neurosurgical residents and found that receiving formal training of the correct sequence for donning and doffing PPE was not sufficient [18].

Two thirds of the student are aware of the current Ministry of Health policies and recommendation on dealing with patients with COVID-19. Despite the emerging evidence on the importance of preparation and training for preparedness and management of patients with COVID-19, the study found a low levels of formal teaching and self-learning on management of patients with COVID-19 (18.2% and 12.1% respectively). Inadequate career preparation has been identified as one of the core stressors for medical students [8].

In the Sultanate, on-campus classes in Higher Education Institutions have been suspended from the 15th March 2020 till further notice. The process of continued learning for these students has been affected. Both medical schools in Oman have relegated medical education to virtual learning platform. Alhaj et al reported that the number of daily studying hours was affected in approximately 80% of respondents. The same study revealed a significant impact of this pandemic on the mental health of 90% of the participants [18].

Several factors have been reported in influencing decisions on future specialities among senior medical students [19]. The challenges of the current pandemic prompted an emergent response and highlighted the role of Public Health and the WHO response in tackling such situation. In this study, about half of participants have agreed that the response to the pandemic has increased their interest in Public Health as a future career. The desire to work in challenging environment could be the reason for this motivation. This positive outcome of the pandemic or the affect on future career was not previously explored.

E. Conclusions

Graduating medical students join the medical taskforce with knowledge and experience gained throughout the undergraduate years. With ongoing rise in confirmed cases every day, the uncertainty of the duration of the suspension of on-campus teaching in higher education institutions in Oman is still ongoing. The COVID-19 pandemic has affected the teaching process and limited student- patient interactions.



The overall perceptions on preparedness for internship among medical students in Oman is good. However, further education in emergency management and training on practical ward procedures are still required. This study highlighted that a good effort in delivering the specific knowledge and practices on COVID-19 and patient management is recommended. Overall, there is satisfactory level of knowledge on COVID-19 between participants, however, gaps in knowledge related to hand hygiene and measures for infection control have been identified. The global response to COVID-19 pandemic has increased participants' interest in Public Health and Infection Control as a career.

Conflict Of Interests

Authors declare no conflict of interest

Acknowledgement

Authors would like to thank the Gulf Research Collaboration Group (GRCG) for facilitating the distribution of the survey and providing support throughout the study period.

References

- D. Wang, B. Hu, C. Hu, F. Zhu, X. Liu, J. Zhang, B. Wang, H. Xiang, Z. Cheng, Y. Xiong, Y. Zhao, Y. Li, X. Wang, Z. Peng(2020) Clinical characteristics of 138 hospitalized patients with 2019 novel coronavirus-infected pneumonia in Wuhan, China. JAMA (2020), 10.1001/jama.2020.1585
- Timeline-COVID-19. https://www.who.int/news-room/ WHO (2020)detail/27-04-2020-who-timeline---covid-19
- Daniel Zou (30/3/2020). COVID-19: Implications for Medical student.
- Ashleigh People, April 4, 2020. Medical Students Can give vital help in the COVID-19 Crisis. Scientific American. Available at: https://blogs. scientificamerican.com/observations/medical-students-can-give-vitalhelp-in-the-covid-19-crisis/
- World Health Organization regional office for Europe (2011). Hospital emergency response checklist
- Purushottam AGiri& G.S.P (2012). Internship: A transition from medical student to A DOCTOR
- Steven R, DeWitt and B.D.R (1998) Learning, satisfaction and Mistreatment during medical internship
- Eley DS. Postgraduates' perceptions of preparedness for work as a doctor and making future career decisions: support for rural, non-traditional medical schools. Educ Health. 2010;23(2):374.
- Information for healthcare professionals. (2020). Accessed: April 30, 2020: https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/hcp/index.html
- Coronavirus Disease (Covid-19) Outbreak: Rights, Roles and Responsibilities of Health Workers, Including Key Considerations for Occupational Safety and Health. https://www.who.int/docs/default-source/coronaviruse/whorights-roles-respon-hw-covid-19.pdf
- WHO collaboration in Oman's response to COVID-19: http://www.emro.who. int/omn/oman-news/who-collaboration-on-omans-response-to-covid-19. html
- MOH Statement No (72) 08 of May 2020. Ministry of Health, Sultanate Oman. https://www.moh.gov.om/en/-/-72-8-2020-154-
- Harvey A. Covid-19: medical schools given powers to graduate final year students early to help NHS. BMJ2020;368:m1227. doi: https://doi. org/10.1136/bmj.m1227 (Published 26 March 2020)
- Li Q, Guan X, Wu P, Wang X, Zhou L, Tong Y, et al. Early Transmission Dynamics in Wuhan, China, of Novel Coronavirus–Infected Pneumonia. N Engl J Med. 2020 Jan 29; NEJM0a2001316
- nterim infection prevention and control recommendations for patient with confirmed 2019 novel coronavirus (2019-nCoV) or patients under investigation for 2019-nCoV in healthcare settings. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention website. https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019nCoV/hcp/infection-control.html. Modi P D, Nair G, Uppe A, et al. (April 02, 2020) COVID-19 Awareness Among Healthcare Students and Professionals in Mumbai Metropolitan Region: A Questionnaire-Based Survey. Cureus 12(4): e7514. DOI 10.7759/cureus.7514
- Alsahafi AJ, Cheng AC: Knowledge, attitudes and behaviors of healthcare workers in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia to MERS coronavirus and other emerging infectious diseases. Int J Environ Res Public Health. 2016, 13:1214. 10.3390/ijerph13121214
- Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) https://www.cdc.gov/ coronavirus/2019-ncov/hcp/hand-hygiene.html
- Alhaj, A. Kh., Al-Saadi, T., Mohammad, F., &Alabri, S. (2020). Neurosurgery Residents Perspective on the COVID-19: Knowledge, Readiness, and Impact of this Pandemic. *World Neurosurgery*. https://doi.org/10.1016/j. wneu.2020.05.087
- Interim infection prevention and control recommendations for patient with confirmed 2019 novel coronavirus (2019-nCoV) or patients under investigation for 2019-nCoV in healthcare settings. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention website. https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019nCoV/hcp/infection-control.html.

Al-Fouzan R, Al-Ajlan S, Marwan Y, Al-Saleh M. Factors affecting future specialty choice among medical students in Kuwait. *Med Educ Online*. 2012;17:1-7. Published 2012 Dec 20. doi:10.3402/meo.v17i0.19587

Abbreviations

ABHR	:	Alcohol Based Hand Rub
ACLS	:	Advanced Cardiovascular Life Support
CDC	:	Center for Disease Control
COVID-19	:	Corona Virus Disease 2019
NU	:	National University of Science and Technology
PPE	:	Personal protective equipment
SPSS	:	Statistical Package for the Social Sciences
SQU	:	Sultan Qaboos University
WHO	:	World Health Organization

Communication Assessment Tool (CAT) in "Bahasa" Indonesian Version

Ħ

Sulistiawati Sudarso^{1*}, Nur Khoma Fatmawati²

¹Department of Medical Education, Faculty of Medicine Mulawarman University ²Department of Ophthalmology, Faculty of Medicine Mulawarman University * Corresponding author. Email: <u>sulis_fkunmul@yahoo.com</u>

ABSTRACT

Physician communication can be assessed using the Communication Assessment Tool (CAT) questionnaire. This questionnaire can also be used to assess the communication of residents or medical students. This study aims to develop a "Bahasa" Indonesian language version of CAT, and to examine the validity and reability of the questionnaire. This research was conducted at an ophthalmology clinic in Samarinda. The CAT questionnaire was developed by Makoel et al., (2007) with 15 questions. We will evaluate only 14 questions because 15th question is not used to assess doctor communication. The study was conducted in several stages. First, the CAT questionnaire was translated into Indonesian. Then the questionnaire was tested for readability by 5 people to assess the readability and understanding of the questionnaire. After that, the questionnaire was distributed to patients. Evaluation of the construct validity of CAT was assessed by calculating the score of internal consistency and *item*' validity. A total of 96 patients filled out the questionnaire. The result shows that 14 items of CAT have a Cronbach alpha value of 0.77 and validity value per item > 0.3. It can be concluded that CAT in Bahasa Indonesian version proved to be valid and reliable.

Keywords: CAT, bahasa

A. Introduction

Communication is an important skill that a doctor needs to have [1]. Effective doctor-patient communication serves a vital function in the delivery of high-quality health care. Patient doctor communication aims to improve patient health and medical care. Good doctor-patient communication can help regulate patient emotions, facilitate understanding of medical information, and enable better identification of patient needs, perceptions, and expectations [2].

A medical student needs to be equipped with the ability to communicate well. Competency Standards for Indonesian doctors [3] have determined that one of the competencies a doctor must have is communication. Levinson (2010) states that communication skills must be taught systematically, including practice and providing constructive feedback [4].

Physician communication can be assessed using the Communication Assessment Tool (CAT) questionnaire. This questionnaire was developed by Makoel (2007) to look at the patient's perceptions immediately after a meeting with a doctor. This questionnaire has not looked at perceptions for some time. This questionnaire can be used to assess the communication of residents or medical students. The results of the questionnaires that the patient has 1 filled in can be used as feedback for residents and medical students. Hajil's validity and reliability test shows that the CAT questionnaire is valid and reliable to measure patient perceptions of doctor's interpersonal skills and communication skills [1].

This questionnaire has been used by Ferranti et al., (2010) to assess the communication skills of hospital employees [5]. The reliability test results showed that the CAT questionnaire was reliable with a Cronbach alpha value of 0.97. The results of the research by Ferranti et al, (2010) concluded that CAT can be used to assess employee communication in hospitals [5]. Myerholtz et al. (2010) [6] and Myerholtz (20140 [7] also conducted research to use CAT in family doctor education. The results of his study recommend CAT as a tool for evaluation and learning and recommend using CAT in other specialists.

This study aims to develop the Indonesian version of the Assessment Communication Tool (ACT) and assess the questionnaire's validity and reliability. This Indonesian version of the questionnaire can be used to assess medical student communication and feedback, especially for students at the professional stage.

B. Methods

1. Data Collection

This research was approved by the Health Research Ethics Committee of the Faculty of Medicine, Mulawarman University number 35 / KPEK / FK / IV / 2018 dated April 17, 2018. Participation in the study was voluntary, and respondents were given informed consent before participating in the research. This research was conducted at one eye clinic in Samarinda. This clinic is a private clinic that serves general and insurance patients (BPJS). A total of 4 ophthalmologists are on duty at this clinic. The research design used an analytic cross-sectional approach. Respondents who filled out the questionnaire were patients who went to eye clinics aged over 15 years and were willing to become research respondents.

2. Instrument

The CAT questionnaire was developed by Makoel et al. (2007) with 15 questions [1]. The questionnaire was assessed using a Likert scale, namely a scale of 1 to 5 ("Not good" to "satisfactory"). This study would determine only 14 questions because the 15th question is not used to assess doctor communication. The research was conducted in several stages. First, the CAT questionnaire was translated into Indonesian. The questionnaire was then tested for legibility by 5 people to assess the readability and understanding of the questionnaire. After that, the questionnaire was distributed to the patient. The researcher will interview patients who have been served by doctors and waiting for medication. For patients who were unable to complete the questionnaire due to eye problems, the researcher read the questionnaire.

3. Data Analysis

Test the questionnaire's validity using 2 methods, namely assessing the reliability of the questionnaire by calculating the internal consistency value (Cronbach's alpha). The instrument has a good reliability value if the Cronbach alpha value> 0.7. The second way is to assess each question item's validity by using the Pearson test by connecting each item's value with the total value. Each item of question is declared valid if it has a value of r> 0.3. Data were analyzed using the Statistical Package for Social Science (SPSS) program version 16.

C. Results

A total of 96 patients filled out the Indonesian version of the CAT questionnaire. Patient demographic data can be seen in table 1.



Characteristic	n	Percentage (%)
Gender		
Female	55	57.3
Male	41	42.7
Age		
15-20 years	5	5.3
21-30 years	8	8.3
31-40 years	6	6.2
41-50 years	15	15.6
51-60 years	23	24
61-70 years	21	21.9
71-80 years	12	12.5
81-90 years	5	5.2
91-100 years	1	1.0
Profession		
Civil servants	10	10.4
Housewife	35	36.5
Private	30	31.3
Student	6	6.3
Retired	12	12.5
Does not work	3	3.0
Education		
Tidak Sekolah	5	5.2
Elementary School	30	31.2
Junior High School	11	11.5
Senior High School	32	33.3
Diploma	4	4.2
Bachelor	14	14.6

Table 1. Patient demographic characteristics

From the calculation results, the Cronbach alpha value was 0.77 (> 0.7). This means that the Indonesian version of the CAT questionnaire has good reliability. The results of calculating the validity of each question can be seen in table 2.

Table 2. Communication assessment tool: original (English) and translated
(Indonesian) version

	Very original	Bahasa Indonesia Version	
Item 1	Greeted me in a way that made me feel comfortable	Menyapa saya dengan cara yang membuat saya merasa nyaman.	
Item 2	Treated me with respect	Memperlakukan saya dengan hormat.	
Item 3	Showed interest in my ideas about my health	Menunjukan perhatian tentang kesehatan saya.	
Item 4	Understood my main health concerns	Mengerti masalah keluhan utama saya.	
Item 5	Paid attention to me (looked at me, listened)	Memperhatikan saya (menatap saya, mendengarkan dengan saksa- ma).	
Item 6	Let me talk without interruptions	Memberikan saya kesempatan ber- bicara tanpa melakukan interupsi.	
Item 7	Gave me as much information as I wanted	Memberi saya informasi sebanyak yang saya inginkan.	
Item 8	Talked in terms I could understand	Berbicara dalam istilah yang bisa saya pahami.	
Item 9	Checked to be sure I understood everything	Memastikan bahwa saya menger- ti apa yang telah dijelaskan oleh dokter.	
Item 10	Encouraged me to ask questions	Mendorong saya untuk mengajukan pertanyan.	
Item 11	Involved me in decisions as much as I wanted	Melibatkan saya dalam keputusan sebanyak yang saya inginkan.	
Item 12	Discussed next steps	Membahas langkah selanjutnya, ter- masuk rencana tindak lanjut.	
Item 13	Showed care and concern	Menunjukan kepedulian dan per- hatian.	
Item 14	Spent the right amount of time with me	Menghabiskan waktu yang cukup untuk saya.	

From table 3 it is found that all the questions have a value of r > 0.3. This means that all the questions on the Indonesian version of the CAT questionnaire are valid.



D. Discussions

Reliability shows the consistency of a CAT in measuring the same symptoms. In this study, reliability was assessed by calculating the Cronbach alpha value. Reliability is declared high if the Cronbach alpha value is 0.7-0.9. In the Indonesian version of the CAT questionnaire, the Cronbach Alpha value of 0.77 indicates high reliability.

This result is the same as the research conducted by Ferranti et al. (2010), which showed that the Cronbach alpha value for the CAT questionnaire was 0.77. These results are the same as the research results by Makoel et al. (2007) [1], which showed that the Cronbach alpha value was 0.96.

To determine the Indonesian version of the CAT questionnaire's validity value by bending r count with r table. If r count > r table, then the question item is declared valid. In this study r count = 0.3. The validity test value of each question item shows that all the questions have a value > 0.3. This means that all questions are valid.

Conclusions And Recommendations

The Indonesian version of the CAT questionnaire is valid and reliable. This questionnaire can be used to assess students when communicating with patients.

References

- Makoul, G., Krupat, E., Chang, CH. Measuring patient views of physician communication skills: Development and testing of the Communication Assessment Tool. Patient Education and Counseling 67 (2007) 333–342
- Ha, JF & Longnecker N. Doctor-Patient Communication: A Review. The Ochsner Journal 10:38–43, 2010
- KKI. Standar Kompetensi Dokter Indonesia. Jakarta. 2012
- Levinson W, Lesser CS and Epstein RM. Developing Physician Communication Skills For Patient-Centered Care. *Health Affairs* 29, no.7 (2010):1310-1318. doi: 10.1377/hlthaff.2009.0450
- Ferranti DE, Makoul G, Forth VE, Rauworth J, Lee J and Williams MV. Assessing Patient Perceptions of Hospitalist Communication Skills Using the Communication Assessment Tool (CAT). Journal of Hospital Medicine. Vol 5 No 9 p 522-527 DOI 10.1002/jhm.787
- Myerholtz L, Simons L, Felix S, Nguyen T, Brennan J, Rivera-Tovar A, et al. Using the Communication Assessment Tool (CAT) to assess communication skills of family medicine residents. Fam Med. 2010;42(8):567–573.
- Myerholtz. Assessing Family Medicine Residents' Communication Skills From the Patient's Perspective: Evaluating the Communication Assessment Tool. Journal of Graduate Medical Education. 2014; 495-500



Evolving Perception Regarding Online Learning and Teaching in COVID-19 Era of Graduate Students With Diverse Educational Backgrounds Enrolled in 'Masters-'Health Professional Education' Program of a Pakistani University

Ħ

Amina Nadeem^{1*}, Azhar Rashid², Raheela Yasmin³

¹MBBS, FCPS, PhD (Physiology). Professor, Dept of Physiology, Army Medical College, National University of Medical Sciences (NUMS), Rawalpindi, Pakistan, M-HPE student at Islamic International Medical College, Riphah University, Rawalpindi, Pakistan

² Principal, Islamic International Medical College, Riphah University, Rawalpindi, Pakistan,

³ Professor & Head of Medical Education Dept., Riphah University, Rawalpindi, Pakistan,

*Corresponding Author. Email: aminanadeem@amc.numspak.edu.pk

ABSTRACT

Objectives: to analyze the evolving perception of graduate students of 'Health Professional Education' regarding online learning and teaching at the end of two online teaching sessions. Methods: this 'Mixed-Method' study was carried out from Mar–Sep 2020 at Riphah University, Rawalpindi, Pakistan. A total of 25 graduate students of 'Health Professional Education' were selected after purposive sampling and informed consent was obtained. These students had diverse educational background. A Semi-structured questionnaire was distributed at the end of each online teaching sessions. Both quantitative and qualitative data were analyzed separately. Results: quantitative data analysis revealed the mean scores of 3 domains of 'Student's perception of learning,' Contents and Teaching Strategies' and 'Educational environment' in 1st vs. 2nd online sessions as follows respectively: (4.37 0.42 vs. 4.09 0.45; *p* value 0.04),



(4.40 0.47 vs. 4.29 0.58; p value 0.44) and (4.43 0.43 vs. 4.23 0.69; p value 0.36) based on Likert scale. The students agreed that contents covered, teaching strategies and education environment were satisfactory and the perception was not different between two sessions statistically in these domains whereas students' self-perception of learning was more satisfactory in 1st online session. Qualitative analysis of transcribed data supported the statistical trends. Conclusions: the graduate students of 'Health Professional Education' were equally satisfied regarding contents covered, teaching strategies and education environment in two online teaching sessions whereas their perception about their own learning depreciated in 2nd online teaching session.

Keywords: Covid-19, online teaching, education, medical, graduate students

Introduction Α.

"Education is the most powerful weapon which you can use to change the world" - Nelson Mandela ("Education: The Most Powerful Weapon for Changing the World | USAID Impact," n.d.) [13]. The COVID-19 era has changed the concepts of learning and teaching dramatically [1]. The need of imparting quality education to students globally caused almost every university to shift to online teaching [2] and for developing countries like Pakistan, it was an abrupt and unavoidable change for which most of the universities were not prepared [3].

Online teaching and learning demands from the learners; a lot of commitment, self-discipline, motivation, incorporation of technology and self-directed learning. Similarly, the teachers need to step-up their efforts to keep students engaged & focused, innovate for digital interaction, inculcate netiquettes, strengthen learners' autonomy and ensure ethical practices in a virtual education environment [4,5]. If both students and teachers are selfmotivated and obstacles are tackled, then online learning and teaching can be coped very well with desired results [5].

In Pakistan, the online teaching and learning has many challenges [6]. Technology-readiness, connectivity issues due to frequent load-shedding, students situated in remote areas, training of faculty in online teaching and students' readiness to learn online to name a few [3]. This abrupt wake-up call to shift educational system to online modalities though challenging; has resulted in many advantages as well. The COVID-19 situation has led to the realization of need to develop a hybrid system of learning and teaching to get maximum benefits for all the stake-holders [7]. This makes the need to explore

the advantages, limitations and recommendations of e-learning by scientific research all the more important.

Many international studies have reported the dynamics of online learning and teaching [1,2,5,7]. The number of local studies on the topic are few and far in between and are mainly regarding public awareness & socioeconomic impact [8], pathogenicity [9] and preventive measures of COVID-19 [10]. There are very few studies regarding online education in general [11], ("Moodle and Online Learning in Pakistani Medical Universities: An opportunity worth exploring in higher education and research - PubMed," n.d.) [12] and impact of this pandemic in particular on medical education [4,6]. The studies reported students' and faculty perspective regarding online teaching with set of students of uniform educational backgrounds [4]. The graduate program of HPE is a unique program in which there is diversity of the students being enrolled with no age limit. Achieving the learning outcomes with diverse group of students is challenging even in face to face interaction and require careful planning of contents, teaching strategies and very skilled faculty. The challenge of this task become many folds when the teaching has to be shifted to online. There is no study reported internationally or locally in which impact of online teaching and learning was explored in a group of students with significant diversity in their age and educational background.

The present study aims to explore the evolving perception regarding online learning and teaching in COVID-19 era of graduate students of diverse educational backgrounds enrolled in Master's program of 'Health Professional Education' in a Pakistani University.

B. Material And Methods

This 'Mixed Methods' study of 'Convergent Parallel Design' [14] was carried out at Riphah University, Rawalpindi from Mar-Sep 2020. The 'Mixed Methods' study protocol was chosen to qualitatively explain the quantitative results as there was significant diversity of participants in their educational backgrounds and age. Participants were voluntary and were selected by purposive sampling after informed consent. These were graduate students with MBBS/BDS degrees enrolled in 'Health Professional Education (HPE)' Master's program in Sep 2019 at Riphah University. The program is hybrid program of 32 credit-hours with module-based 12 basic and advanced courses with 10-days intensive face to face teaching contact session every 3 months with assignments and self-directed learning in between. The enrolled students had very diverse educational background ranging from PhD qualified faculty members, Head of department of basics and clinical departments, Principals of medical colleges, clinicians to as young as fresh medical and dental graduates.



The study sample size was 25. The students had two face to face contact sessions but due to COVID-19 situation the next two contact sessions; 10 days each, were held as online teaching through 'Zoom' during which use of 'Socrative', 'Kahoot' and 'Padlet' soft wares were included as well. The teaching strategies were also modified accordingly.

A semi-structured, self-report instrument was administered twice to the enrolled subjects. The questionnaires were filled by students online. The questionnaires were administered twice; once at the end of 10-days online teaching session from 24 Mar-2 Apr 2020; as questionnaire 1, and second time, the same one was administered; as questionnaire 2, at the end of 2^{nd} 10-days online teaching session conducted from 6-15 Jul 2020. The data-collecting form was designed by the 'Department of Medical Education' of the institute to collect both quantitative and qualitative data simultaneously. It comprised of 17-item questionnaire that evaluated the students' perception of online learning and teaching. The items 1-11 were scaled on Likert scale with range of scores from 1-5 (strongly disagree, disagree, neutral, agree and strongly agree). The items 12-18 were open-ended and non-directional and required subjects to offer their own opinion in their own words to the questions asked. The Design and ethical aspects of the study were approved from 'Ethical Review Committee' of the institution

Data Analysis

The quantitative data obtained from items 1-11 were analyzed using SPSS version 25. The scores were on the Likert scale of 1-5 for each item for items 1-11 and mean scores for each item were calculated for questionnaire 1& 2 each. The quantitative data was qualified by factor analysis and these factors were grouped as themes. These themes were titled as 'Students' perception of Learning' (items 1,2,4,5,11), 'Contents & teaching strategies' (items 3,6,8) and 'Educational environment' (items 7, 9,10) domains. The mean scores for 3 themes of online learning and teaching were calculated.

The qualitative data was obtained from items 12-17 of the questionnaires as narrative answers to open-ended questions. The text data was transcribed from the questionnaires and was analyzed following the steps for qualitative analysis. The step I was reading & re-reading the transcript and making notes. The step II was 'coding/indexing' by identifying and labelling relevant words/ repeated/important-stated/surprising phrases/statements. phrases, Preconceived concepts were also taken into account by already done review of literature. The step III was 'creating categories/themes' by combining codes. The step IV was 'labelling categories' and finding out if there is a hierarchy/ connection among categories if any and description of that connection. The

data was analyzed and interpreted by all authors independently and then validated to ensure analytical triangulation.

The themes analyzed from qualitative data obtained were then compared with those obtained from qualifying quantitative data. To draw the inference, the results from qualitative data were then directly compared with those from quantitative data to find weather qualitative themes were supported by statistical trends or not.



Figure 1. Steps involved in the process of the study

C. Results

The majority of the participants of the study were females and the age range of all the participants was 26-65 years with male to female ration of 1:2.4 approximately. All the participants were the enrolled graduate students of HPE. The questionnaire 1 was distributed to all 25 students after 1st online session. The response rate was 96%. Till 2nd online teaching session, one of the students dropped-off due to health issues and questionnaire 2 was distributed to 24 students and response rate was 87.5%. The characteristics of the participants are shown in Table 1.

Participants	Graduate Students HPE			
	1 st online teaching session	2nd online teaching session		
Gender				
Male	7 (29%)	6 (30%)		
Female	17 (71%)	14 (70%)		
Male: Female ratio	1:2.4	1:2.3		

Table 1.	Participants'	characteristics

110	10 Through Globalization & Collaboration		
Age groups			
(in years)			
25-35	10 (42%)	09 (45%)	
36-45	08 (33%)	06 (30%)	
46-55	05 (21%)	04 (20%)	
> 56	01 (4%)	01 (5%)	
Basic Sciences	08	06	
Clinical Sciences	16	14	
Bachelor's degree			
MBBS	14	11	
BDS	10	09	

Excollence in Health Profession Education

1. Quantitative Data Analysis

The mean score for the first domain 'Student's perception of learning' was found to be 4.37 0.42 for the first online session and 4.09 0.45 for the second online session indicating that overall, students 'Agreed' (Likert scale) that their learning was enhance. However, the satisfaction was greater in 1st than 2nd online sessions as depicted statistically (*p* value 0.04). 'Contents and Teaching Strategies' mean score was 4.4 0.47 for the first and 4.29 0.58 for the second online session (*p* value – 0.44). 'Educational environment' mean score was 4.43 0.43 for the first and 4.23 0.69 for the second online session (*p* value 0.36). The students agreed that contents covered, teaching strategies and education environment was satisfactory and the perception was not different between two sessions statistically.

2. Qualitative Data Analysis

a. 1st Online Teaching Session

The qualitative data analysis of 1st online teaching session resulted in emergence of total 3 themes each for advantages and limitations from transcribed data namely; 'Students' perception of learning', 'Contents and teaching strategies' and 'Educational environment'. (Table 2 & 3)

	Quantitative		Quantitative			
S no	1 st online tea	ching session	Mean	2^{nd} online teach-	Mean	data (p value)
0. 110.			<u>+</u> SD	ing session	<u>+</u> SD	
	Students'	Effective in- teraction		Learning new technologies	_	
1	Perception of learning	Task-based learning	4 . 3 7 0.42	Asynchronous learning	4.09	
Ĩ		Peer learn- ing		Self-directed learning	0.45	0.04
2	Contents &Teaching	Organized contents	4 4 0	Organized con- tents	- 4 20	
	Strategies	Use of new technologies	0.47	Effective small group discus- sions	- 4.29	0.44
		Excellent Faculty		Excellent Faculty	0.58	
3		Technology based	4 . 4 3 0.43	Feasibility	4.23	
	Educational E n v i r o n - ment	Relaxed en- vironment	-	Relaxed environ- ment	0.69	0.36

Table 2. Advantages of e-learning perceived by participants in two online sessions

 Table 3. Limitations of e-learning perceived by participants in two online sessions

S	Qualitative data interpretation				
no		1 st online teaching session		2 nd online teaching session	
	Themes	Sub-themes	Excerpts	Sub-themes	Excerpts
1	Students' Percep- tion of learning	Varied Learning styles	"Medical education is such a volatile subject, you need to rehearse it over and over again".	Less-inter- active	"Getting your voice heard is a big prob- lem while asking a question when oth- er people are not paying attention to the concept of tak- ing turns".



		"I prefer e-learning on blended learning. I can get lecture record- ings later on".		"Less opportunity to asked queries re- lated to research"
	Less Focused	"Just please make sure balance of unrelated questioning during lecture as most of time important topics re- main unexplained"	Cognitive load	"Continuous cogni- tive load as well as eye straining while looking at computer screens" "Apply cognitive load theory to ses- sion duration, both on daily basis and on overall length of contact session days".
Contents & teach- ing strat- egies	Difficult concepts	"In coming session if students would be given a little bit more scaffolding by worthy teachers to develop difficult concepts then it would reduce cog- nitive load of the stu- dents".	D i f f i c u l t concepts	"Research intro and basics should have given more time and in this section specifically we need help as we are new in research espe- cially Qualitative".
	Fast-paced teaching	"While teaching diffi- cult concepts teachers should ensure ade- quate understanding of the students about basic concepts before assigning individual tasks".	Fast-paced teaching	"Detailed slow paced component on "bio-statistics" should be added as this is one thing in which most of us are deficient".
	Self-direct- ed learning strategies issues	"Provision of reading material should be a day ahead of class so that students can go through it before coming to class which will make under- standing of concepts much better".	Long dura- tion of sessions	"The length of the sessions makes the sessions hard to tol- erate as the screen time on computers tire me more than other activities. The after lunch session if made shorter or totally removed would make these much bearable".

3	E d u c a - t i o n a l Environ- ment	Techno-lo- gy glitches	"The most serious problem was related to glitches in IT"	Technology glitches	"Issues related to IT including sound distortion especial- ly at participants end would have to resolved at individ- ual members end".
		Ineffective Participa- tion	"No individual group should dominate the sessions and all the learners should get the chance to speak and convey their opinions. All the teachers should make the en- tire batch involved and encourage them to voice their con- cerns".	Less condu- cive	"Whole session should be face to face to address the social context of learning, peer learning and having a focused learning environment that is free of distractions".

b. Advantages

The Students' perception of learning had three subthemes based on analysis of transcribed data; effective interaction [Participant # 14: I would say more interactive than routine sessions".], task-based learning and peer learning [Participant # 6: "I had a very different learning experience in this contact session. I have realized that medical education is learned more by discussion than by selflearning. The innovative ideas pop up in team work and group learning. I have learned decision making and management skills and coping with learners with different styles".], [Participant # 11: "Break Out Rooms were most effective as there was chance of peer learning, group participation and collaborative work &learning".]

The 'Contents and teaching strategies had three subthemes; 'Organized contents' [Participant # 20: "The content of the session was brilliantly covered by the faculty".], 'Use of new technologies' and 'excellent faculty' ["The teachers are an excellent blend of experience and knowledge".] The 'Educational environment' theme had two subthemes namely; 'Use of new technology' and 'Relaxed environment'. The comparison of these themes with quantitative data are shown in Table II.



Limitations C.

The students had their share of disadvantages too. The limitations opined included technical glitches, fast-paced teaching, difficult concepts, less focused and varied learning styles to name a few. The themes, sub-themes with excerpts are shown in Table 3.

2nd Online Teaching Session 3.

a. Advantages

The themes of advantages of 2nd online are the same as those of 1st online session. The sub-themes varied a little and are shown in Table 2. The students opined about educational environment being very favourable [Participant # 8: "The most important element which promoted learning was a relaxed and conducive environment"] and feasibility of attending this session [Participant # 20: "It is feasible for me to take classes from home, as there is difficult to make arrangements for kids even for few days during COVID pandemic"]. The details are given in Table 2.

Limitations b.

The limitations attributed by most of the participants to this online teaching session include difficult concepts, fast-paced teaching and technology glitches. (Table 3)

4. Evolving Perception of Students After Two Consecutive Online **Teaching Sessions**

The overall satisfaction regarding enhancement of learning by online approach with teachers' interaction and activities was inquired (Item 11). All participants (100%) agreed in unison about improvement of learning in the 1st contact session whereas 81% of same participants agreed that blended e-learning approach is a good learning environment.

Comparing the advantages of two consecutive e-learning sessions through quantitative data, the statistical difference was not found significant between two themes out of total three namely; 'Contents & teaching strategies' as well as 'Education environment (p value 0.44 & 0.36 respectively). It indicated that graduate students were satisfied in these two domains over the period of these two sessions. The satisfaction level being based on Likert scale has already been mentioned above in quantitative result section as mean values. However, the 'Students' self-perception of learning' varied between 2 online teaching session ((p value 0.03). Analyzing quantitative data, the students were

more satisfied in 1st online session (Mean: 4.37 0.42) as compared to 2nd online teaching session (Mean: 4.09 0.45) and is supported by analysis of transcribed qualitative data.

5. Recommendations by The Students

Session 1: The students suggested that reading material to be provided by the teachers a day or two earlier for better preparation by students rather than given on the spot just before assigning tasks. The suggested contents to be included in future sessions were SPSS, standard settings, research methodology and medical writing.

Session 2: The students suggested to introduce the hybrid model permanently for contact sessions with inclusion of online teaching session in addition to face to face after catering for technical glitches. Some of the students opined that the duration of contact session needs to be reduced to manage cognitive load. Difficult concepts are recommended to be revised specially research methodology by some. A few students (12% & 9% in 1st session & 2nd session respectively) chose not to give any suggestions.

D. Discussions

The present study highlights the advantages, limitations and recommendations regarding online teaching sessions from graduate students' perspective conducted due to lockdown of institutions during the COVID-19 era. The unique feature of this study was the significant diversity of the participants in age, educational background and professional appointments; all being enrolled in a graduate program of a reputed university of Pakistan and analyzing their perceptions. The perception of these MBBS/BDS graduate students were analyzed and compared at the end of two online teaching session of Masters in HPE.

According to the participants, online teaching session though adopted as an emergency plan; is a welcome change and can be included as a choice in hybrid model of this graduate degree. This modality of teaching was found to be flexible, feasible, resource-convenient with relaxed and conducive learning environment. These findings are in accordance to the other studies reported in literature [4,5]. In Mukhtar et al. local study, the feedback from both faculty and students were obtained. In our study, the students appreciated the opportunity of asynchronous learning as they could easily access the recorded lectures with uploaded learning materials which catered for the varied learning styles of the diverse students; the fact supported by other studies [2,3]. The mode of online teaching with these advantages over face to face teaching reinforces the objectives of this graduate program to inculcate the qualities of self-directed and long-life learning. However, the participants viewed the long duration of sessions, inability to remain focused, facing frequent technical glitches, cognitive load and difficulty in grasping complex concepts as limitations of this teaching model. These findings are reported in literature as well [1]. In both session, online connectivity issues have been repeatedly highlighted and has been reported in literature as well. In Mukhtar et al. local study, additional limitations reported include lack of hands-on training and plagiarism in assignments as well [4].

One interesting finding was the perception of one dominant group of students which over-shadows others and resulted in discernment of unequal opportunities to participate in online interactive session. Though this can happen in face to face session too but in online scenario, may have been overlooked or could have been difficult to trouble-shoot due to fast-paced session.

When evolving perception of students was analyzed, the students were found more satisfied in 1st online session than 2nd based on quantitative data in the domain of 'Students' perception of learning'. The analysis of transcribed qualitative data however revealed that the major contributing factor was the inclusion of research methodology and development of original research question in the syllabus of 2nd online session. Despite a wide range of students in age, teaching experience and educational background, more than half of the participants did not have any experience in research. Even a few of the participants did not have even the theoretical background of research. This hampered their learning and increased the stress level [Participant # $11 - 2^{nd}$ online session: "Research intro and basics should have given more time and in this section specifically we need help as we are new in research especially Qualitative"]. Other contributing factors included the fast-paced teaching and cognitive load which has been reported in other studies as well [6]. However, regarding the perception of contents covered, teaching strategies and education environment, there was no statistical difference between the two online sessions.

The recommendations by the students reflect the need of stepping-up the technical support for students in the form of robust internet connection with back up. Moreover, duration of sessions can be reduced or the whole session can be split with a break of two-days in between.

E. Conclusions

This study highlights the evolving perception of graduate students and concludes that graduate students are increasingly satisfied in two consecutive online teaching sessions regarding conducive educational environment, educational strategies and contents covered. However, due to inclusion of complex concepts and fast-paced teaching as well as their diverse educational backgrounds, their own perception of learning depreciated in 2nd session.

F. Limitations Of Study

The number of participants were limited as all the enrolled students of Masters in HPE of a single university; and not many, were included to ensure the exposure of the students to identical education environment. However, the findings of the study cannot be generalized to all the HPE programs of the region. Moreover, faculty members' perspective was not included due to time constraint. Despite the limitations, the study offers an insight for understanding the advantages, limitations and recommendation from adult learners' perspective for improvement in online learning and teaching.

G. Recommendations

It is recommended that further studies are carried out exploring the faculty's perspective regarding the benefits, challenges and recommendations of online teaching to graduate students of HPE. Moreover, comparison of face to face contact session and online teaching session and impact of online teaching on learning outcomes can be carried-out from perspective of all stake-holders specially the HPE graduate students with diverse educational background and teaching experience.

H. Impact of Study

The study highlights the strengths and limitations of graduate program of HPE in the domain of online teaching and learning specially from students' perspective. The study emphasizes that with experienced and skilled faculty, carefully planned contents and teaching strategies, even online teaching model can be robust resulting in satisfactions of graduate students with wide range of teaching experience and educational background.

References

- Ferrel, M. N., & Ryan, J. J. (2020). The Impact of COVID-19 on Medical Education. *Cureus*, 12(3). https://doi.org/10.7759/cureus.7492
- Chick, R. C., Clifton, G. T., Peace, K. M., Propper, B. W., Hale, D. F., Alseidi, A. A., & Vreeland, T. J. (2020). Using Technology to Maintain the Education of Residents During the COVID-19 Pandemic. *Journal of Surgical Education*, 77(4), 729–732. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jsurg.2020.03.018</u>
- Adnan, M. (2020). Online learning amid the COVID-19 pandemic: Students perspectives. *Journal of Pedagogical Research*, 1(2), 45–51. https://doi. org/10.33902/jpsp.2020261309

- Mukhtar, K., Javed, K., Arooj, M., & Sethi, A. (2020). Advantages, Limitations and Recommendations for online learning during COVID-19 pandemic era. *Pakistan Journal of Medical Sciences*, 36(COVID19-S4), S27. https:// doi.org/10.12669/pjms.36.covid19-s4.2785
- Bao, W. (2020). <scp>COVID</scp> -19 and online teaching in higher education: A case study of Peking University. *Human Behavior and Emerging Technologies*, *2*(2), 113–115. https://doi.org/10.1002/hbe2.191
- Rajab, M., Gazal, A., & Alkattan, K. (2020). Challenges to Online Medical Education During the COVID-19 Pandemic. *Cureus*, *12*(7). https://doi. org/10.7759/cureus.8966
- Reimers, F., Schleicher, A., Saavedra, J., & Tuominen, S. (2020). Supporting the continuation of teaching and learning during the COVID-19 Pandemic Supporting the continuation of teaching and learning during the COVID-19 Pandemic Annotated resources for online learning.
- Khan, S. C. S. H. (2020). COVID-19, AN INFODEMIC ASSOCIATED WITH PANDEMIC: THE SOCIOECONOMIC IMPLICATIONS AND PRESSURE ON HEALTHCARE. In *Pakistan Armed Forces Medical Journal* (Vol. 70). Retrieved from http://www.gsdrc.org/
- Arshad, N., Naqi, S. A., & Kumar, J. (2020). A novel coronavirus transmission from China to Pakistan via different countries; A review. *The Professional Medical Journal*, *27*(04), 876–879. https://doi.org/10.29309/tpmj/2020.27.04.4683
- Mirza, T. M., Ali, R., Khan, H. M., Hospital, B. B., & Pakistan, R. (2020). COVID-19 And Its Preventive Measures Pak Armed Forces Med. In *J* (Vol. 70). Retrieved from https://www.pafmj.org/index.php/PAFMJ/article/ view/4186
- Ahmed, S. S., Khan, E., Faisal, M., & Khan, S. (2017). The potential and challenges of MOOCs in Pakistan: a perspective of students and faculty. *Asian Association of Open Universities Journal*, 12(1), 94–105. https://doi. org/10.1108/aaouj-01-2017-0011
- Moodle and Online Learning in Pakistani Medical Universities: An opportunity worth exploring in higher education and research PubMed. (n.d.). Retrieved August 25, 2020, from https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih. gov/30317305/
- Education: The Most Powerful Weapon for Changing the World | USAID Impact. (n.d.). Retrieved August 5, 2020, from https://blog.usaid. gov/2013/04/education-the-most-powerful-weapon/
- Educational Research: Planning, Conducting, and Evaluating Quantitative and Qualitative Research: Creswell, John W.: 9780131367395: Amazon. com: Books. (n.d.). Retrieved August 18, 2020, from https://www.amazon. com/Educational-Research-Conducting-Quantitative-Qualitative/ dp/0131367390

Impact on Mental Health of Undergraduates and The Ways to Cope Stress During Covid-19 Pandemic

Ħ

Kiran Fatima Bana^{1*}, Shaur Sarfaraz²

¹Senior Lecturer Department of Medical Education, Bahria University Medical and Dental College Karachi

² Senior Lecturer Department of Medical Education, Jinnah Sindh Medical University, Karachi *Correspondence author. Email: <u>kiranbana291@gmail.com</u>

ABSTRACT

Objectives: to evaluate the mental health status of undergraduate's students of three different programs. To correlate the related factors influencing GAD-7 score and to assess the coping methods practiced by undergraduates during COVID-19 outbreak. Study design: cross-sectional survey. Place and duration of study: from 10th to 30th May -2020 during COVID-19 lock down period among public and private universities in Karachi. Methodology: it was conducted among the medical, dental and engineering students of private sector universities of Karachi. The GADS-7 (Generalized anxiety disorder scale 7-items) validated tool was used along with the demographic variables, related stress factors and the coping skills practiced. Total 571 questionnaires were found completed in all sections. Results: from the total students (n=132-23.1%)experienced mild, (n=343-60.1%) moderate and (n=78-13.7%) had severe anxiety level on GADS-7. All related stressors were significantly associated with GAD-7 scale at p-value of < 0.01. Moreover the results depicted that there was a moderate positive correlation found (0.489, 0.342, 0.310 and 0.328) for all related stressors. Taking breaks from watching, reading news about outbreak of COVID-19, meditation and engaging in some other activities were the most frequently used coping strategies among undergraduates'. Conclusion: study has shown 96.9% drastically augmented level of anxiety. There was significant difference found in mental health of all three cohorts. There was a moderate positive correlation found for all related stressors. Taking breaks from watching, reading news about the outbreak of COVID-19 was the most frequent coping behavior practiced by all students.

Keywords: Coping method, COVID-19, dental undergraduates, medical undergraduate, mental health

A. Introduction

The COVID-19 termed as novel COVID-19 has aggressively expanded in entire world from China in December 2019 [1] and in Pakistan from February 26-2020.² The COVID-19 expressed as acute pneumonic infections.¹ It is termed as novel due to its typical features of previously unknown MERS (Middle East respiratory syndrome) in 2011 and SARS-COV-2 (Severe acute respiratory syndrome coronavirus 2) in 2002-2003.On January 30-2020; WHO declared public health emergency of international concerns [2].

Worldwide; COVID19 causes 432,437 fatalities till June-15-2020 according to the global data on Govt of Pakistan reports [3]. These escalating figures placed a huge burden on healthcare system worldwide including Pakistan. There were total 2,729 deaths, 144,478 confirmed cases, 53,721 recovered cases of COVID-19 in Pakistan till June-15 -2020 [3]. The development of vaccination or treatment against the pandemic of COVID-19 is formidable challenge for international community of developed and developing countries. Strict precautionary measures are imposed in majority of countries where case incidences and case fatalities are increasing not on daily basis but on hourly basis [2].

The precautionary measures includes closure of educational institutes, physical distancing, frequent hand washing for 20 seconds, wearing mask, social-isolation and lock down is been practiced worldwide. The COVID-19 pandemic has dreadful consequences on every aspect of human life such as economical, healthcare, educational, social and cultural [2]. In Pakistan the educational institutes were closed from March18-2020 to implement physical distancing and to prevent the local transmission of COVID-19 among students. Therefore complete lock down was imposed from March 23rd-2020 which was converted into smart lock down on May 9th -2020 in Pakistan [4].

Fear is a virus which has completely infected the general population due to poor information processed on social media. People all around the world are facing various mental disorders during this COVID-19 outbreak such as anxiety, post traumatic disorder during self-isolation and quarantine because of the uncertain consequences of this outbreak [5]. Recent study revealed the crucial role of psychiatrists to assess the psychological status of vulnerable population such as healthcare personnel, older people, children [5].

The mental health of college students were assessed in recent study conducted in China; in which 24.9% of college students were experiencing anxiety during the COVID-19 crisis [6]. The mental health of the undergraduate student is also affected during this public health emergency due to the risk factors such as academic delays, economic influence, daily life influence and lack of social support according to the study conducted in Faisalabad, Pakistan on pharmacy student [4]. However; the association of loneliness during this pandemic outbreak is unclear [7]. Though the impact of COVID-19 on psychological health of undergraduates' medical, dental and engineering students and the related stressors in Karachi Pakistan is unattended in literature to date and indeed it was the rationale of this study. There are various anxiety assessment tools used in literature to assess the psychological health of dental undergraduates [8,9].

The GAD-7 (Generalized Anxiety Disorder Scale) is 7 item validated tool used for screening and diagnosis of anxiety disorders. The GAD-7 is a modified version of "Patient Health questionnaire-PHQ" which was the first developed self-reported questionnaire to screen the general anxiety disorders in primary health care settings [6]. The GAD-7 tool is easy to score and takes approximately less than 3 minutes [6]. Now; GAD-7 is widely used in research and in clinical practice to screen anxiety disorders because of its efficiency and diagnostic reliability [6,10]

It was hypothesized that mental health of the undergraduate students is gravely affected during this public health emergency of COVID-19 outbreak. Therefore it is vital to address their stress coping ways and indeed it was the rationale of study Hence the primary objective of this study was to evaluate the levels of anxiety on GAD-7 scores. The secondary aim was to correlate the related factors influencing level of anxiety and o assess preferred coping methods practiced by dental, medical and engineering students of Karachi during COVID-19 outbreak.

B. Methods

This cross sectional survey was conducted online among dental, medical and engineering undergraduates' university students of private sector in Karachi through consecutive sampling technique. This study was executed from 10thto 30th May -2020 after approved from Bahria University Medical and Dental College (BUMDC) Karachi numbered; 50-2020. The administrative permission was obtained verbally before executing the study in engineering institute. The engineering students were included in the study to assess more comparative results. The inclusion criteria include the current medical, dental and engineering students of Private Sector Universities; repeaters and students from various allied subjects were excluded. Study consent was obtained from the participants by providing rationale of the study and anonymity of the subjects was assured. The sample size was calculated by standard formula for sample size calculation N= (Z) 2 x P (1-P) / d2 by keeping the prevalence of



24.9%.6 The calculated sample size was 288 but as to bring more significant results and keeping in mind the 20% wastage; the augmented sample size was 600.

The questionnaire comprised of five sections; in first section the participants were requested for consent and rationale of the study was written. The second section comprised of the demographic parameters such as age, gender, undergraduate course, steady family income, live with parents and any relative infected with COVID-19. The third section was regarding the psychological assessment based on GAD-7 questionnaire. The GADS-7 is a validated tool and has established internal consistency of Cronbach's $\boxtimes = 0.911$) [6]. The psychological assessment was rated as normal, mild, moderate and severe. The minimum and maximum score was 0 and 21. The 0 score is rated as normal, 1-7, 8-14 and 15-21 scores were rated as mild, moderate and severe respectively. The fourth section was regarding the preferred stress coping method/behavior during COVID-19 lockdown period and nine options were provided. The options were as take breaks from watching, reading or listening to news/stories regarding pandemic, take deep breaths and stretch, meditate, exercise regularly, get plenty of sleep, try to do some other activities you enjoy, connect with others and any other coping skills apart from the mentioned options. The last section was inquired about the related stressors of anxiety and the responses were based on four point likert scale as 0-3 same as the responses of GAD-7 tool. Participants were rated the responses as experienced during last two weeks. The content validity of the study tool was reviewed by five public health experts of the institutes and the corrections was incorporated before conducting the pilot study among fifteen students of physiotherapy. The results of pilot study were not incorporated in final data analysis. Total 600 questionnaires were emailed among the targeted students. Total 571 questionnaires were found completed in all sections.

The data was analyzed on SPSS version 23. P-value <0.05 was considered as statistically significant. Mean was calculated for age, frequency was calculated for gender, undergraduate course, steady family income, lived with parents and any relative infected with COVID-19. Kolmogorov-Smirnov and Shapiro-Wilk test was used to check the normality of data. The parametric tests were performed when data was normally distributed and nonparametric analysis was carried out in case of not normally distributed. Association of demographic variables in three cohorts of students was analyzed with chi square and fisher exact test. Kruskal Wallis test was performed to compare the GAD-7 score among all three cohorts of undergraduate students. The linear regression analysis was performed for the related stressors such as academic delays, economic influence, social support and daily life influence and GAD-7

scores during COVID-19 among students of three programs and was expressed as R.

C. Results

The mental health of the students was assessed on GADS-7 scale as normal, mild, moderate and severe levels. From the total majority of students (n=343-60.1%) experienced moderate anxiety level on GADS-7 scale-Table-1.

Levels of Anxiety	n= (%)
Normal	18 (3.2)
Mild	132(23.1)
Moderate	343(60.1)
Severe	78 (13.7)

Table 1. Undergraduates students with levels of anxiety on GAD-7

There were total (n=203-35.5%) medical, (n=228-39.9%) dental and (n=140-24.5%) engineering undergraduates. The mean age of the students was 21.75 ± 2.39 . Majority of participants were female 417 (73%) students. From the total subjects (n=453-79.3%) lived in urban areas, (n=401-70.2%) have steady family income, (n=501-87.7%) lived with parents and (n=120-21%) students' relative or acquaintance were infected with COVID-19 (Table-2).

Table 2. Levels of anxiety and demographic factors of students duringCOVID-19 pandemic

Demographic	N (%)	Normal	Mild	Moderate	Severe	P-Value
variables	571	(n=18)	(n=132)	(n=343)	(n=78)	
Gender						
Male	154 (27)	5(27.7)	28 (21.2)	101 (29.4)	20 (25.6)	0.05**
Female	417 (73)	13 (72.2)	104 (78.7)	242 (70.5)	58(74.3)	
Residential Place						
Urban	453 (79.3)	17(94.4)	117 (88.6)	260 (75.8)	59(75.6)	0.01*
Urban rural	87 (15.2)	1 (5.5)	11 (8.3)	62 (18)	13(16.6)	
Rural	31(5.4)	0 (0)	4 (3)	21 (6.1)	6 (7.6)	

Steady family In-						
come						
	401 (70.2)	16 (88.8)	111 (84)	219 (63.8)	56(71)	< 0.01**
Yes		00(111)	$a_{1}(1)$		a a(a a)	
N.	170 (29.7)	02(11.1)	21 (16)	124 (36.1)	23(29)	
NO						
Live with parents						
Yes	501(87.7)	16 (88.8)	126 (95.4)	292 (85.1)	67(85.8)	0.01**
No	70 (12.2)	02 (11.1)	6 (4.5)	51 (14.8)	11(14.1)	
Relative or fami- ly got COVID-19						
Vac						
105	120 (21)	2(11.1)	8(6)	88 (25.6)	22(28.2)	< 0.01**
No		- ()	- (-)		(_0)	
	451 (78.9)	16 (88.8)	124 (94)	255 (74.3)	56(71.7)	
*Chi square **						
Fischer exact test						

Table-2 revealed the demographic factors which influenced levels of anxiety of during COVID-19 outbreak. Female students were found to have greater levels of severe anxiety as compare to male students. The students lived in urban areas, steady family income, lived with parents experienced mild levels of anxiety at (88.6%, 84%,95.4%) respectively. Living in urban areas, steady family income, lived with parents were the protective factors towards anxiety. There was statistically significant difference found in levels of anxiety and students' residential place, steady family income and lived with parents during COVID-19 on GAD-7 scale at p-value of 0.01, < 0.01 and 0.01 respectively. Relative or acquaintance got infected with COVID-19 was a risk factor for anxiety. In our study; (28.2%) students experienced severe level of anxiety as their relatives were infected with COVID-19 and calculated p-value was < 0.01.

There was statistically significant difference found between the GAD-7 score among all three cohorts of undergraduates at p-value=0.034. (Table 3)

В	P-Value		
Median		10.0	
Percentiles	Q1	7.0	
	Q3	14.0	
MBBS n= 203			
Median		9.0	
Percentiles	Q1	7.0	
	Q3	13.0	0.03*
Engineering r	n=140		
Median		10.5	
Percentiles	Q1	8.0	
	Q3	14.0	
*Kruskal Wal	lis Test		

Table 3. Comparing the GAD-7 score of three cohorts of undergraduatestudents

The related stressors of COVID-19 included economic influence, academic delays, influence on daily life and social support. The linear regression analysis revealed that the GAD-7 scores were positively associated with the related stressors at p-value of 0.000. There was moderate and positive correlation found as (0.489, 0.342, 0.310 and 0.328) for all related stressors and GAD-7 score. Moreover there was highest R score found as 0.489 for worried about economic influence-table 4.

Table 4. GAD-7 score and the related stressors of COVID-19

Related Stressors	GAD-7 Score R	P-Value
Worried about economic influences	0.489**	< 0.01
Worried about academic delays	0.342**	< 0.01
Influence on daily life	0.310**	< 0.01
Social Support	0.328**	< 0.01
R=Regression analysis**		

Graph-1 depicted that taking breaks from watching, reading news regarding the outbreak of COVID-19 was practiced by n=395 students; meditation by (n=231) students and engaging in some other activities were the most frequently used coping methods (n=295) practiced by all three cohorts of

students. On the other hand meditation and get plenty of sleep was the second most equally used coping behavior in MBBS and engineering students. Eat healthy and well balanced meal was approximately equally enjoyed among all three groups of students. There was statistically significant difference found at (p-value=< 0.01) between the copying methods of all three cohorts of students. Therefore the results of the study were accepting the research hypothesis that mental health of the undergraduates was gravely affected during this COVID-19 pandemic.



Chi-square-< 0.01

Graph 1. Coping ways during COVID-19 outbreak practiced by undergraduate students

D. Discussions

According to various studies; the mental health of undergraduate students was expressed as psychological distress, depression, high level of anxiety and stress due to routine challenges of teaching and assessment [11-14]. However; this study was aimed to assess the impact of COVID-19 outbreak on mental health of undergraduate students. Though this study has shown 96.9%level of anxiety during COVID-19 outbreak. The drastically increased level of anxiety in our study might be related to closure of educational institutes, lock down period and social distancing.

Interpersonal communication is decreased in this social distancing phase which is one of the important reasons to deteriorate the mental health of the students [6]. Even if emergency remote teaching has been executed in various educational institutes but it is difficult to conduct clinical content on virtual student environment which might be the reason of increase level of anxiety and fear of future employment [6]. The similar levels of stress were reported by the study of Kevin A conducted Karnataka, India in 2020 [14] in this study, potential psychosocial, academic and environmental stressors was assessed by using Perceived Stress Scale (PSS) among n=301 MBBS students. Moreover; in this study Kevin A¹⁴ reported higher PSS score in 2nd year MBBS students and the potential academic stressors were (92.4%) inadequate study leave, (84.1%) vastness of academic curriculum, (70.4%) of poor quality of food in mess or home, (60.1%), accommodation away from home, and (48.5%) students had high parental expectations [14].

However among medical students the global prevalence of psychosocial disorder was 33.8%.¹⁵In our study female students were found to be more affected with this pandemic situation comparing to male students. Increased level of anxiety reflecting compromised psychological health and analogous results were revealed from the study conducted in UK [7] during COVID-19 outbreak revealed that being a female of younger student age, having insufficient household income and having no employment were the risk factors for severe classification of loneliness and mental health ailments. Conversely no significant gender difference was found in our study as COVID-19 outbreak has similar psychological effects on general population irrespective to gender [6].

It is indicated in that demographic factors such as living in urban areas, steady family income, live with parents and any relative or acquaintance got infected with COVID-19 were associated with general anxiety disorder scale-7 items; as living in urban areas has conducive effects on student's anxiety level due to available resources [6,16]. Living with parents and sound family finance has positive effects on the stress level.

These results were comparable with the study of China [6]. Moderate anxieties in medical students was found higher and severe anxiety was greater in engineering students in our study. These results were contrary with the study of Naseem S in 2017 [17] and discovered the high prevalence of depression among medical students as compare to engineering students. According to literature more stress was observed in medical students as compare to engineering students [18]. According to the study conducted in Peshawar, Pakistan by Ali M in 2018 [19] revealed that among four medical students every three medical students were experiencing mental stress. On the other hand; increase psychological distress was found in medical/dental students of clinical years and in unmarried students according to the study conducted in Jeddah [20].

Our study findings demonstrated positive and significant correlation between related stressors and GAD-7 scores on mental health during



COVID-19. The worried about economic situation of the families influenced more on mental health of undergraduates than other stressors during the pandemic as people are isolated in their homes and complete and partial lock down was enforced and these results are in consistent with the study of China [6]. In literature [21] social support is known as health promoting agent and act as buffer against all life stressors across all cultures. However literature evident that the most usual effecting stressors were academic concerns, fear of poor performance in examination, lack of recreation, loneliness, living in hostel or rental houses and family problem [21].

In contrast recent study reported that facing financial problem, poor social support, lack of interest in their field of study and unresolved conflict with roommate were the risk factors of stress among engineering students in Ethiopia [22]. To get rid of the stress is really very essential to evade the emotional losses and find the appropriate behavior or skill to deal with public health emergency among undergraduates. Otherwise this stress can ends up in "increased utilization of maladaptive (dysfunctional) coping methods" [22].

The most preferred coping skills practiced by students in this study were taking breaks from watching news and television along with getting engaged in activities they enjoy. According to study conducted in Brazil; [23] the escape and avoidance coping skills enable students to mindfully handle the stress. As the alarming sensational headline regarding COVID-19 pandemic have multiply the stress level [6]. However in a non pandemic conditions positive reframing, praying or spiritual activity, followed by watching movies, communication with friends and family support was commonly practiced coping skills [14]. In our study, meditation and get plenty of sleep was the second most equally used coping behavior to reduce the stress caused by this outbreak. Spiritual activity affects negatively and positive thinking helps medical students to reduce stress and surprisingly the strong coping strategy reported was social support. Social support from love partner or friend is buffering stress related problems among youngsters and not the family support [14].

According to the study of [24] conducted during COVID-19 among nurses to assess their coping strategies and emotional response; it indicated that nurses have strong emotional response and were using problem focus coping strategy.

The limitation of the study cannot be ignored. Due to subjective nature of study it was unfeasible to assess temporal relationship between mental health and steady family income, living with parents, preferred coping skills. The causal sequence can be observed by adding the variables of students of private and public sector, year of undergraduate study, increase sample size, academic performance, and curriculum modification such as remote teaching in public health emergencies and health promoting behavior during COVID-19 outbreak, [5] motivation and validated coping tool in future. The data can be generalized to the entire undergraduate students of Pakistan cautiously due to the pandemic outbreak

It is recommended to start systemic online counseling sessions in this remote educational era so that the students can seek assistance from professional counselors to get appropriate psychological support or care [11]. There are universities having strong mentoring system such as BUMDC; to provide one to one positive reinforcement to every undergraduate. Additionally, universities should work on to modify the stressful academic content and try to implement necessary changes. As there is a change in learning environment, new engaging strategies of assessment, teaching and learning should be incorporated and a multidisciplinary approach would be fruitful and appropriate.

E. Conclusions

Study has shown 96.9% drastically augmented level of anxiety. There was significant difference found in mental health of all three cohorts. There was a moderate positive correlation found for all related stressors. Taking breaks from watching, reading news about the outbreak of COVID-19 was the most frequent coping behavior practiced by all students.

Conflict Of Interest

Not declared

Acknowledgement

The authors are grateful for the support received from all the students to fill the questionnaire during this pandemic.

Funding: This research did not receive any specific grant from funding agencies in the public, commercial, or not-for-profit sectors.

References

- Yang C, Qiu X, Fan H, Jiang M, Lao X, Zeng Y, et al. Coronavirus disease 2019: reassembly attack of coronavirus. Int J Environ Health Res [Internet]. 2020;00(00):1–9. Available from: https://doi.org/10.1080/09603123.2020.1 747602
- Fatima K, Ali M, Rizvi KF, Ahmed S. COVID-19 : A Global Challenge and Its Remedy through Natural Foods. 2020;10(2):87–8.

- COVID-19 Statistics Pakistan .Available at: http://covid.gov.pk/stats/pakistan. (Accessed on 6/15/2020).
- Salman M, Asif N, Mustafa ZU, Khan TM, Shehzadi N, Hussain K, Tahir H, Raza MH, Khan MT. Psychological Impact of COVID-19 on Pakistani University Students and How They Are Coping. medRxiv. 2020 Jan 1.Available from doi: https://doi.org/10.1101/2020.05.21.20108647 (Accessed on 6/5/2020).
- Banerjee D. The COVID-19 outbreak: Crucial role the psychiatrists can play. Asian journal of psychiatry. 2020 Apr; 50:102014. Available from: doi: 10.1016/j.ajp.2020.102014. (Accessed on 4/29/2020).
- Cao W, Fang Z, Hou G, Han M, Xu X, Dong J, et al. The psychological impact of the COVID-19 epidemic on college students in China. Psychiatry Res [Internet]. 2020;287(March):112934. Available from: https://doi. org/10.1016/j.psychres.2020.112934 (Accessed on 4/29/2020).
- Bu F, Steptoe A, Fancourt D. Loneliness during lockdown: trajectories and predictors during the COVID-19 pandemic in 35,712 adults in the UK. medRxiv. 2020 Jan 1. Available from: doi: https://doi.org/10.1101/2020.05 .29.20116657. (Accessed on: 5/2/2020).
- Ali K, Fatima A, Ilyas F, Khan M, Abbassi Z. Impact of Anxiety and Depression on Temporomandibular Joint Disorders among Sample of Dental Undergraduates of Karachi. J Pakistan Dent Assoc. 2016;25(4):143–9.
- Sufia, Shamta WL. Burnout among Undergraduate Dental Students at a Public Academic Institution in Karachi, Pakistan. J Pakistan Dent Assoc [Internet]. 2016;25(4):131–6. Available from: http://www.jpda.com.pk/burnoutamong-undergraduate-dental-students-at-a-public-academic-institutionin-lahore-pakistan. (Accessed on 4/2/2019).
- Ibrayeva Z, Aldyngurov D, Myssayev A, Meirmanov S, Zhanaspayev M, Khismetova Z, et al. Depression, anxiety and somatic distress in domestic and international undergraduate medical students in Kazakhstan. Iran J Public Health. 2018;47(6):919–21.
- Sarkar S, Gupta R, Menon V. A systematic review of depression, anxiety, and stress among medical students in India. Journal of Mental Health and Human Behaviour. 2017 Jul 1;22(2):88.Available at: **DOI:** 10.4103/jmhhb. jmhhb_20_17. (Accessed on 4/2/2020).
- Habib MA, Rahman MA, Manara A, Ayub M, Begum N, Hossain S. Stressors perceived by the clinical undergraduate medical students towards the end of course. Bangabandhu Sheikh Mujib Med Univ J. 2019;12(2):99–104.
- Elkholy MM, El-sayed ET, Sedrak AS, Raouf NA. Prevalence and Predictors of Burnout Syndrome among Medical Students of Cairo University. Egypt J Community Med. 2019;37(3):83–92.
- John KA, Naik PR. Do the undergraduate medical students perceive stress and what are the stressors? Int J Community Med Public Heal. 2020;7(3):877.
- Steiner-Hofbauer V, Holzinger A. How to cope with the challenges of medical education? Stress, depression, and coping in undergraduate medical students. Academic Psychiatry. 2020 Feb 20:1-8.Available at: https://doi. org/10.1007/s40596-020-01193-1. (Accessed on 4/2/2020)
- Quek TTC, Tam WWS, Tran BX, Zhang M, Zhang Z, Ho CSH, et al. The global prevalence of anxiety among medical students: A meta-analysis. Int J Environ Res Public Health. 2019;16(15).
- Naseem S, Munaf S. Suicidal Ideation, Depression, Anxiety, Stress, And Life Satisfaction Of Medical, Engineering, And Social Sciences Students. J Ayub Med Coll Abbottabad. 2017;29(3):422–7.
- Chenganakkattil S, K. Jibin Babu, Hyder S. Comparison of psychological stress, depression and anxiety among medical and engineering students. Int J Res Med Sci. 2017;5(4):1213. Available at: DOI: http://dx.doi. org/10.18203/2320-6012.ijrms20170912. (Accessed on 4/2/2020).
- Ali M, Sethi MR, Irfan M. Psychological Distress Among Undergraduate Medical Students of Peshawar, Pakistan. JPMI J Postgrad Med Inst [Internet]. 2018;32(2):194–7. Available from: http://search.ebscohost.com. proxy-ub.rug.nl/login.aspx?direct=true&db=aph&AN=130885919&site=e host-live&scope=site
- Aboalshamat K, Jawhari A, Alotibi S, Alzahrani K, Al-Mohimeed H, Alzahrani M, et al. Relationship of self-esteem with depression, anxiety, and stress among dental and medical students in Jeddah, Saudi Arabia. J Int Med Dent. 2017;4(2):61–8.
- Jibeen T. Perceived Social Support and Mental Health Problems Among Pakistani University Students. Community Ment Health J. 2016;52(8):1004– 8.
- Reta Y, Samuel T, Mekonnen M. Mental distress and associated factors among undergraduate engineering students of Hawassa University, Ethiopia. J Multidiscip Healthc. 2020;13:99–107. doi: <u>10.2147/JMDH.S238113</u>
- Bassols AMS, Carneiro BB, Guimarães GC, Okabayashi LMS, Carvalho FG, da Silva AB, et al. Stress and coping in a sample of medical students in Brazil. Rev Psiquiatr Clin. 2015;42(1):1–5.
- Huang L, rong Liu H. Emotional responses and coping strategies of nurses and nursing college students during COVID-19 outbreak. MedRxiv. 2020 Jan 1.Available at: **doi:** https://doi.org/10.1101/2020.03.05.20031898. (Accessed on 2/4/2020).



Preceptor-Learner Collaborative Learning at The Interprofessional Demonstration Case Discussion

Ħ

Chia-Lun Lee¹, Jo-Chu Yen², Yu-Chih Lin^{3*}

¹Nursing Department, Kaohsiung Medical University Hospital, Kaohsiung Medical University ²Department of Clinical Education Training, Kaohsiung Medical University Hospital, Kaohsiung Medical University

³Teaching and Learning Development and Resource Centre, Office of Academic Affairs, Kaohsiung Medical University

^{*}Corresponding author. Email: springfred@gmail.com

ABSTRACT

Background and aims/objectives: the demonstration case discussion is currently the most common interprofessional education (IPE) model. However, the effectiveness of the demonstration case discussion for preceptorlearner collaborative learning is still unknown. This study tries to explore the effectiveness of preceptor-learner collaborative learning at the interprofessional demonstration case discussion. Methods: this is a correlation descriptive study. We attempt to develop the "self-assessment effectiveness scale of the Interprofessional demonstration case discussion" according to the IPEC four core abilities. The structured questionnaire contains background variables and self-assessment effectiveness scale. There are 16 items in the effectiveness scale. The average CVI scored by the experts was 0.93. There are two factors extracted by exploratory factor analysis, including Interprofessional observation (IPO) and Interprofessional application (IPA), and their total explanation variation is 68.61%. Cronbach's coefficient of the scale is 0.96. The results showed the effectiveness scale has good validity and reliability. Results: a total of 184 participants joined in this study in June-July 2020. The results showed the preceptors' scores are significantly higher than the learners. The preceptors' scores of most items are significantly higher than learners (p<0.05) except item IPA 7, IPA 8 and IPA 11. However, whether "preceptor-learner collaborative learn", whether "read the abstract in advance", and "the times of participation", there were no significant differences in the scores of each item. There is a significant difference in whether the personnel who read the case report before the meeting can actively participate in the meeting (F value=9.24, p=0.004). Conclusion: the results show preceptors' self-assessment effectiveness

is significantly higher than learners. Preceptors should take the advantages of their own experience guide learners to observe and apply in their clinical.

Keywords: collaborative learning, interprofessional education, IPEC

A. Introduction

Effective interprofessional education (IPE) enables healthcare professionals (HCPs) to perceive patients' integrated care needs, organize interdisciplinary teams, and provide patient-centred interprofessional collaborative practice (IPCP) [1-3]. The demonstration case discussion is currently the most common interprofessional education (IPE) model. The Interprofessional Education Collaborative (IPEC) in the United States proposed in 2016 the core competencies for IPCP that HCPs should possess. The core competencies are: Values/Ethics for interprofessional practice (VE), Roles/Responsibilities (RR), Interprofessional communication (CC), Team and team work (TT) [4,5]. Although Taiwan has adopted the "KAS" (Knowledge, Attitude, and Skill) thinking model to design IPE courses and evaluate the effectiveness. However, the effectiveness of the aforementioned HCPs demonstration meeting for clinical teachers and trainees is still unknown. In addition, how the curriculum design and evaluation methods correspond to the four core competencies of IPEC has not been explored. Therefore, this study expects to explore the effectiveness of preceptor-learner collaborative learning at the interprofessional demonstration case discussion

B. Methods

1. Research Design and Objects

This research is a correlation descriptive study. study with purposive sampling. The research site is a medical centre in the southern Taiwan. The research objects are HCPs engaged in clinical medical care, including physicians, clinical teachers and post-graduate staff in various health professions. A total of 184 questionnaires were collected from April to June 2020.

2. Research Tools

The questionnaire contains basic information and a self-developed "Scale for Effectiveness of IPCP Demonstration Meeting" according literature review. A total of 22 questions, using the Liker scale with five-point, from 1 point "strongly disagree" to 5 points "strongly agree", the higher score indicate the higher effectiveness of self-evaluation.

We invite six experts to evaluate the content and the average CVI of the original scale was 0.83. The CVI values of item 1 to item 16 of this scale are all higher than 0.8 and shall be retained. The CVI values of item 17 to item 22 are 0.67, 0.50, 0.50, 0.50, 0.67 and 0.67 respectively, which are all lower than 0.8, so they are deleted. After deleting items with a CVI value lower than 0.8, the average CVI scored by the experts was 0.93.

EFA was used to test the validity of the scale. After factor analysis, 16 questions are retained, and the names of the question items contained in the facet are defined as interprofessional application (IPA) and interprofessional observation (IPO). The eigen-value of the two domains behind the axis are 9.92 and 1.06 respectively, the explained variance is 61.98% and 6.63%, and the total variance is 68.61%. The Cronbach's coefficient of "Scale for Effectiveness of IPCP Demonstration Meeting" is 0.96, and the Cronbach's coefficients of IPA and IPO are 0.94 and 0.91 respectively.

3. Statistical Methods and Ethical Considerations

In this study, exploratory factor analysis (EFA) was used to test the scale. This study was reviewed by the Institutional Review Board (IRB) of the research site (IRB number: KMUHIRB-E(I)-20190384) and was implemented after approval.

C. Results

1. Basic Information of Participants

A total of 184 participants joined in this study. Nurses accounted for the largest number of participants (59.2%), other healthcare professions accounted for 22.8%, and physicians accounted for 17.9%. Clinical teachers accounted for 37.2% and trainees accounted for 54.6%.

2. The Effectiveness of Preceptor-Learner Collaborative Learning

In this study, the basic data and the results of the scale was analyzed at the same time. It was found that clinical teachers' performance in IPO (mean \pm SD = 4.7 \pm 0.4), IPA (mean \pm SD = 4.6 \pm 0.4) and overall score (mean \pm SD = 4.6 \pm 0.4) were significantly higher than the trainees (p<0.5). The clinical teachers' scores of most items are significantly higher than trainees except item A7, A8 and A11.

In addition, "whether clinical teachers lead trainees to study together", "whether to read the case summary beforehand" and "participating times in the IPCP demonstration meeting" have no difference in scores. The question item "Is there a case summary read beforehand" is compared to A3 "I can raise



patient care issues from the standpoint of a spokesperson in the discussion of the clinical medical team" reaching a significant level (F value= 9.24, p= 0.004). Therefore, there is a significant difference in whether the personnel who read the case before meeting can actively participate in the meeting and raise the care of the patient.

D. Discussions

The IPCP demonstration meeting is the most commonly used IPE and training mode in Taiwan. A detailed analysis found that the timing of clinical teacher-trainee co-learning did not produce significant results. There may be some reasons. Firstly, each clinical teacher may not have the ability to conduct pre-meeting discussion and post-meeting reflection. Secondly, whether clinical teachers conduct co-learning at an appropriate time according to the recommendations. Lastly, a more effective teacher-trainee co-learning model need to be further explored. Exploring deeper teacher-trainee co-learning benefits through qualitative feedback will be a future research direction. It is recommended that exploring deeper teacher-trainee co-learning benefits through qualitative feedback.

E. Conclusions

The results show the measurement results can be applied to the curriculum design and practical application of IPE that can enhance and enrich IPE knowledge. The preceptors' self-assessment effectiveness is significantly higher than learners. Preceptors should take the advantages of their own experience guide learners to observe and apply in their clinical.

Authors' Contributions

Study design, data collection and analysis, and manuscript preparation: C. L. L., J. C. Y., & Y. C. L.

Acknowledgments

The work was supported by the grants from Kaohsiung Medical University Hospital. Kaohsiung Medical University (KMUH108-M814).

References

- Canadian Interprofessional Health Collaborative (CIHC). A National Interprofessional Competency Framework. Vancouver, BC, 2010.
- World Health Organization (WHO). Being an effective team player. In: Patient Safety Curriculum Guide: Multi-Professional Edition. edn. Edited by World Health Organization. Geneva, Switzerland: World Health Organization, 2011;133–151.
- World Health Organization (WHO). Framework for action on interprofessional education and collaborative practice. Retrieved March 25, 2020, http://who. int/hrh/ resources/framework_action/en/index.html
- Interprofessional Education Collaborative Expert Panel. Core Competencies for Interprofessional Collaborative Practice: 2016 update. Washington, DC: Interprofessional Education Collaborative Practice, 2016..
- Interprofessional Education Collaborative Expert Panel. Core Competencies for Interprofessional Collaborative Practice: Report of an Expert Panel. Washington, DC: Interprofessional Education Collaborative Practice,2011.



Relationship Between Stress, Anxiety, and Depression with Learning Achievement in Medical Student During Online Learning in The COVID 19 Pandemic Era

Ħ

Ridha Fadhila¹, Budi Hernawan^{2*}

¹ Student of Medical Faculty of Muhammadiyah Surakarta University ² Lecturer of Medical Faculty of Muhammadiyah Surakarta University *Corresponding author. Email: bh235@ums.ac.id

ABSTRACT

The 2019 corona virus disease (Covid-19) pandemic force the colleges to conduct online learning. Online learning forces the students to be independent, adaptive new applications, and have a strong internet network. This causes stress, anxiety, and even depression in students, which may affect their academic performance. To analyze the relation between stress, anxiety, and depression with learning achievement in medical students of Muhammadiyah Surakarta University in Covid-19 pandemic era. This study used a cross sectional study design and was conducted in November 2020. There were 151 respondents in 3rd, 5th, and 7th semester who participated in this study and taken using stratified random sampling. The data collection of stress, anxiety, and depression scores was conducted using DASS 42 (Depression, Anxiety, Stress Scale 42) questionnaires and academic performance data using documentation of first blok exam scores in odd semester, there are immunology, ENT (Ear Nose Throat), and psychiatry. The data were analyzed using chi square and logistic regression. Chi square test results obtained stress p = 0.001 and OR = 3,011, anxiety p = 0.001 and OR = 3,054, and depression p = 0.094. Logistic regression test results of p value for stress, anxiety, and depression were obtained 0.024, 0.033, 0.172, and R2 value of 15%, so the equation Y= -1,314 + 0.831X1 + 0.797X2 + 0.542X3.

Keywords: Stress, anxiety, depression, learning achievement



Α. Introduction

Coronavirus disease 2019 (Covid-19) outbreak that has hit 215 countries in the world, presents its own challenges for educational institutions, especially universities. The government has banned crowding, social restrictions, maintaining physical distance, wearing masks, and always washing hands to fight Covid-19. The ministry of education and culture has banned universities from conducting lectures face-to-face and ordered to hold lectures or online learning [11]. Universities are required to be able to do online learning [7].

Online learning systems can affect a student's mental health condition. Learning tasks are the main factors causing stress during the Covid-19 pandemic [13]. Online learning makes students feel anxious because they have to adapt to applications that they have never used before [5]. Unstable networks during online learning or exams can add to student anxiety. Prolonged and constantly occurring anxiety disorders can cause stress that interferes with daily activities. Untreated if not treated immediately can lead to more serious psychological problems such as depression. These psychological disorders can interfere with learning by lowering the ability to focus, decrease memory, interfere with the ability to connect one thing with another, and can decrease the arousal or passion to do activities. This can affect student outcomes or achievements [8].

Learning achievement is one of the indicators to know the success of an educational process where high learning achievement indicates good knowledge. Learning achievement in Indonesia is important to improve because it can affect the competitiveness of other countries. According to data obtained from the Global Talent Competitiveness index report 2019 ranked Indonesia at 67th out of 125 other countries with a score of 38.61 [10].

Based on Maia & Dias research results (2020) showed that students evaluated during the pandemic showed much higher increases in anxiety, depression, and stress. Research conducted by Hasanah et al. (2020) obtained the results of research on the majority of psychological problems experienced by students in the process of online learning, namely anxiety.

Research conducted by Dewi (2020) shows that student achievement during the online learning period is caused by the Covid 19 pandemic at most on the achievement index of 3.00-3.49 as much as 52% at mild anxiety of 78.9%. Research conducted by Febriana (2018) showed that there is a significant relationship between stress and learning achievement. Zavera (2018) stated that there is a significant relationship between anxiety levels and student academic achievement in Bandung. This is in line with research conducted by Hasibuan & Riyandi (2019) which stated that there is a significant relationship

between the level of anxiety symptoms and the student achievement index of the Faculty of Medicine, Muhammadiyah University of North Sumatera.

Researchers are interested in conducting research because there is still no analytical research on the relationship of stress, anxiety, and depression to the learning achievements of students of the Faculty of Medicine during online learning in the Covid-19 pandemic.

B. Methods

This research uses analytical observational research design with cross sectional approach. This research method was used to look at the relationship between stress, depression, and anxiety as free variables with learning achievement as variables bound at one time. This research was conducted online using google form while complying with existing health protocols. The implementation time is November 2020. The subject of this study was a student of Doctor Education Program of the Faculty of Medicine, Muhammadiyah Surakarta University as many as 151 respondents. The restriction criteria in this study include which consists of: active colleges Doctor Education Study Program Faculty of Medicine, Muhammadiyah Surakarta University, physically and spiritually healthy, willing to be a research respondent, and follow online learning activities. Exclusion criteria consists of: colleges who has a previous history of psychiatric disorders, does not fill out the entire questionnaire, and who in the last 3 months experienced the death of a family member / occurred a parent divorce. Respondents to this study were selected with stratified random sampling techniques. Data collection of stress, anxiety, and depression using DASS 42 questionnaire and learning achievement data using the first blok exam score in this odd semester, namely: immune, ENT (Ear Nose Throat), and psychiatry blok. Data is analyzed using computer software. Bivariate analysis using Chi Square. Multivariate analysis using logistic regression. This research has been approved by the Health Research Ethics Commission of the Faculty of Medicine, Muhammadiyah Surakarta University with number 3084/B.1/ KEPK-FKUMS/XI/2020.



Variable	Amount	Present (%)
Stress		
Stress	71	47,0
No Stress	80	53,0
Anxiety		
Anxious	83	55,0
No Worries	68	45,0
Depression		
Depression	39	25,8
No Depression	112	74,2
Learning Achievements		
Good	87	57,6
Not Good	64	42,4

Table 1. Characteristics of respondents

Data from table 1 shows the number of respondents in the study was 151 students. Students who experienced stress as much as 71 (47.0%), students who experienced anxiety as much as 83 (55%), students who experienced depression as much as 39 (25.8%), and students who received not good learning achievement as much as 64 (42.4%).

Table 2. Results of bivariate analysis of stress with learning achievement

Learning achievements				Value P	OR value		
			Good	Not good	Total		
Stress	No stress	N	56 (37,1%)	24 (15,9%)	80 (53%)	0,001	3,011
	Stress	Ν	31 (20,5%)	40 (26,5%)	71 (47%)		
	Total	Ν	87 (57,6%)	64 (42,4%)	151 (100%)		

In table 2 shows data that out of 80 respondents who did not experience stress there were 24 respondents who got not good learning achievements (15.9%), while out of 71 respondents who experienced stress there were 40 respondents who got not good learning achievements (26.5%).

			Learning fea	ist		Value P	OR value
2			Good	Not good	Total		
Anxiety	Not anxious	N	49 (32,5%)	19 (12,6%)	68 (45,0%)	0,001	3,054
	Anxious	N	38 (25,2%)	45 (29,8%)	83 (55,0%)		
	Total	N	87 (57,6%)	64 (42,4%)	151 (100%)		

T.1.1.	D 1(.	1		C	1	1.1.	1	1	
Table 3	Results	s of anai	VSIS OI	i anxierv	Divariate	with	learning	achieven	rent
14010 5.	recourte	or arran	,010 01	aminer	or , ar race	*****	rearming	actific (c)	

In table 3 showed data that out of 68 respondents who did not experience anxiety there were 19 respondents who got not good learning achievements (12.6%), while out of 83 respondents who experienced anxiety there were 45 respondents who got not good learning achievements (29.8%).

Table 4. Results of analysis of depression bivariate with learning achievement

			Learning ac	hievements		Value P	OR value
			Good	Not good	Total		
Depres Not	Not depressed	N	69 (45,7%)	43 (28,5%)	112 0,094 (74,2%)	0,094	0,534
	Depressio n	N	18 (11,9%)	21(13,9%)	39 (25,8%)		
	Total	N	87 (57,6%)	64 (42,4%)	151 (100%)		

In table 4 showed data that out of 112 respondents who did not experience depression there were 43 respondents who got not good learning achievements (28.5%), while out of 39 respondents who experienced depression there were 21 respondents who got not good learning achievements (13.9%).

The results of bivariate analysis in this study showed that all variables are eligible to be included in multivariate analysis p<0.25 value and variable to 3 outcomes. The multivariate analysis used is logistic regression analysis because the variables tied to this study are categoric variables.

V. 11. D		Value		95.% C.I f	95.% C.I for EXP (B)		
variable	D	р	(B)	Minimal	Maximum		
Stress	0,831	0,024	2,296	1,118	4,717		
Anxiety	0,797	0,033	2,219	1,065	4,627	$R^2 = 0,150$	
Depression	0,542	0,172	1,719	0,790	3,743		
Konstanta	-1,314	0,000	0,269				

Table 5. Multivariate analysis results

In table 5 variable stress shows a value of p= 0.024 (p<0.05) which states there is a relationship between stress and learning achievement and in the anxiety variable shows a value of p=0.033 (p<0.05) which states there is a relationship between anxiety and learning achievement, but the depression shows the result of p=0.172 (p>0.05) which states there is no significant relationship between depression and learning achievement in students of the Faculty of Medicine, Muhammadiyah Surakarta University during online learning.

D. Discussions

The results of bivariate analysis between stress and learning outcomes obtained a value of p = 0.001 (p < 0.05) and so it can be concluded that there is a meaningful relationship between stress and learning achievement OR= 3,011 so that respondents who experience stress will be at risk 3,011 times with not good learning achievement. The results of this study are in line with Febriana (2018) at the Faculty of Medicine, Muhammadiyah University of Surakarta, which states that there is a meaningful relationship between stress to learning achievement indicated by the value p=0.001 (p<0.05). Pratama (2014) also mentioned that there is a significant relationship between stress levels and learning achievement with a value of p=0.004 and mentioned that the negative relationship direction means that the higher the student stress level, the lower the learning achievement. Stress in the academic environment is the situation most often experienced by every student up to the student, whether studying at the school level or in college. This is due to the many academic demands that must be faced, such as exams, assignments, practicum and many other [23].

There are many relationships between learning achievement and the soul, namely psychic factors have a very important role in the learning process and its results. Moods, emotions and feelings are decisive. Psychological circumstances can affect behaviour, the relationship between an individual and the achievements achieved by a person such as achievement in student learning achievement. Things that affect learning achievement due to impaired physical health due to stress experienced by a student can cause students easily tired, difficult to concentrate, and headaches that interfere with the student during the learning process or during the exam resulting in the student's learning achievement is not maximal. Students with lower stress levels achieve good learning achievement [17].

The results of bivariate analysis between anxiety and learning achievement obtained a value of p = 0.001 (p < 0.05) so that it can be concluded that there is a meaningful relationship between anxiety and learning

achievement and OR= 3,054 so that respondents who experience stress will be at risk 3,054 times with not good learning achievement. Kusumastuti (2020) stated that from the results of the review literature obtained a value of p<0.05 which means there is a significant relationship between anxiety and learning achievement. Based on systematic reviews anxiety has a negative relationship with student academic achievement. This means that the higher the anxiety experienced by students, the lower the level of academic achievement.

Azizy *et al.* (2019) also mentioned that there is a significant relationship between anxiety levels and academic achievement had p value= 0.021 (p<0.05). Syokwaa (2014) also stated that there is a significant relationship between anxiety levels and academic achievement indicated by a value of p= 0.000 (p<0.05). High anxiety influences a person to work effectively, affecting academic achievement. Students who are able to maintain physical and psychological health can achieve better academic achievement [1]. High anxiety can affect memory performance, decrease memory, and interfere with learning concentration [22].

The result of bivariate analysis between depression and learning achievement obtained p value= 0.094 (p>0.05). This result is in accordance with Septianto's research (2014), that there is no relationship between depression and student learning achievement of UIN Syarif Hidayatullah Jakarta Faculty of Medicine indicated by the results of p= 0.666 (p>0.05). The same result was also obtained in maulida research results (2016) obtained a value of p= 0.0912 (p>0.05), which means there is no significant relationship between depression and student learning achievement doctor education University of Tanjungpura. Depression is just one of the many other factors that can affect learning achievement. These factors include intelligence, physical health, high motivation, and environmental factors such as the learning environment and residence [15].

The results obtained are not in line with Praptikaningtyas's research (2019) showed from analysis correlation results obtained p value= 0.004 (p<0.05), which means there is a relationship between significant variables. From these results it is concluded that the nul hypothesis is rejected and alternative hypotheses are accepted so that there is a relationship between depression rates in adolescents and academic achievement. The correlation test also showed a correlation coefficient value of -0.226 which stated that the relationship between depression levels and academic achievement had a weak relationship. Negative signs (-) in the correlation coefficient have a negative relationship meaning, which means when the level of depression obtained is low, then the academic achievement obtained will be high.

The multivariate analyzed with logistic regression obtained meaningful value only on variable stress and anxiety only. From the table can be obtained the value of R2 of 0.150, which means that in the three variables free together can affect the bound variable by 15%, while for 85% it is influenced by other variables that i do not research. Obtained B values on the three variables are positive value 0.831, 0.797, and 0.542 so that the logistics regression equation obtained this research Y = -1.314 + 0.831X1 + 0.797X2 + 0.542X3.

In variable stress obtained a value of p= 0.018 (p<0.05), which means there is a meaningful relationship between stress and learning achievement. This is in line with research conducted by Febriana (2018) which stated that stress and learning achievement have meaningful relationships, evidenced by the results of logistical regression value p= 0.004 (p<0.05). Asshiddiqie (2019) also mentioned that there is a meaningful relationship between stress and learning achievement in students of the Faculty of Medicine, Muhammadiyah University of Surakarta with a value of p= 0.000 (p<0.05) in the results of logistic regression. Stress can affect students' learning interests. Interest in learning is a tool to trigger student learning motivation so that there are several factors that can optimize learning motivation, namely goals, learning ability, student conditions, environmental conditions, and dynamic elements in learning. Many of these incidents caused among them not to continue their studies, not the spirit of learning and others [4].

The results of the logistics regression test of anxiety variables get a value of p=0.047 (p<0.05) which means there is a meaningful relationship between anxiety and learning achievement. Hasibuan & Riyandi (2019) also mentioned that there is a significant relationship between anxiety and learning achievement indicated by a value of p=0.05. Factors that influence the difference in anxiety levels of Faculty of Medicine students include three areas, namely lifestyle problems, learning style, and psychological factors. Lifestyle problems include lack of rest and physical activity, bad nutrient intake, and inefficient time management. Ineffective learning strategies such as studying all night before exams, lack of understanding and material review are also important factors in the onset of anxiety. Psychological factors that play a role in the occurrence of anxiety are negative and irrational thoughts about the course of the exam, and fear of not being able to control the situation at the time of the exam.

Depression variables do not get meaningful results indicated by the value p=0.152 (p>0.05). This is in line with Setiawan's research (2015) which stated that there is no meaningful relationship between depression and student learning achievement that is indicated with a value of p=0.5 (p>0.05). The research conducted by Saputri (2017) showed the value of p=0.497 (p>0.05),

this indicates that there is no meaningful relationship between depression and learning achievement.

E. Conclusions

From the study it was concluded that there is a significant relationship between stress and anxiety to learning achievement and anxiety has a greater influence compared to stress on student learning achievement during online learning. This research can be developed again by adding a wider sample so that it is not limited to one institution / faculty or one place and is expected to expand the categories of stress, anxiety, and depression.

References

- Afolayan, J.A., Donald, B., Onasoga, O., Babafemi, A., & Juan, A, Relationship between anxiety and academic performance of nursing students niger delta university, AASR, 2013, vol. 5, pp. 25-33.
- Asshiddiqie, J, Relationship Stress Levels, Sleep Quality, Depression Levels and Gadget Use with Medical Student Learning Achievements, Thesis, 2019, Muhammadiyah Surakarta University.
- Azizy, I. V., Mustikawati, I. F., & Ulfa, M., Relationship Between Personality Type and Anxiety Level with Academic Achievement of Students of Doctor Education Study Program of Muhammadiyah University of Purwokerto, Journal of Saintika Media, 2019, vol. 1, pp. 78–83.
- Demolingo, D. P. A., Kalalo, F., Katuuk, M., Stress Relationship with Motivation to Study in Students Semester V Nursing Studies Program Faculty of Medicine Sam Ratulangi University Manado, Journal of Nursing, 2018, vol. 1, pp. 1-6.
- Dewi, E. U., The Effect of Anxiety During Online Learning During the Covid-19 Pandemic on Student Learning Achievements Stikes William Surabaya. Journal of Nursing, 2020, vol. 1, pp. 18–23.
- Febriana, V., Relationship of Stress and Anxiety Levels with Pretasi Belajar Mahasiswa Fakultas Kedokteran Muhammadiyah Surakarta University, Thesis, 2018, Muhammadiyah Surakarta University.
- Firman, F., & Rahayu, S., Online Learning in midst of Covid-19 Pandemic, Indonesian Journal of Educational Science (IJES), 2020, vol. 2, pp. 81–89.
- Hasanah, U., Ludiana, Immawati, & Livana, P. H., Psychological Picture of Students in the Learning Process During the Covid-19 Pandemic, Journal of Mental Nursing, 2020, vol. 3, pp. 299–306.
- Hasibuan, S.M., & Riyandi, T. R., Effect of Anxiety Symptom Level on Academic Achievement Index in Students of Class 2016 Faculty of Medicine, Muhammadiyah North Sumatra. University, Biomedical Journal: Jbm, 2019, vol. 3, pp. 137–143.

- INSEAD., The Global Talent Competitiveness Index (1 ed), Fontainebleau, France: INSEAD, 2019.
- Kemendikbud.go.id. (2020, May 8). Circular Letter of the Ministry of Education and Higher Education No. 1 of 2020. Retrieved October 20, 2020, from http://pgdikmen.kemdikbud.go.id/read-news/surat-edaran-mendikbudnomor-1-tahun-2020.
- Kusumastuti, D, Anxiety and Academic Achievement in College Students, Jurnal Magister Psikologi UMA, 2020, vol. 1, pp. 22–33.
- Livana, P. H., Mubin, M.F., & Basthomi, Y., Causes of Student Stress During the Covid-19 Pandemic, Journal of Mental Nursing, 2020, vol. 2, pp. 203–8.
- Maia, B. R. & Days, P.C. Anxiety, depression and stress in university students: the impact of COVID-19. Psychology Studies (Campinas), 2020, vol. 37, pp. 1–8.
- Maulida, S.R, Relationship of Depression Symptoms and Achievement Index (IP) In Students of Doctor Education Study Program, Faculty of Medicine, University of Tanjungpura Class of 2014, Thesis, University of Tanjungpura, 2016.
- Praptikaningtyas, A. A. I., Wahyuni, A. A. S., & Aryani, L. N. A., Relationship of Depression Level in Adolescents with Academic Achievement of Students of Sma Negeri 4 Denpasar, Udayana Medika Journal, 2019, vol. 7, pp. 1–5.
- Rahmi, N, Stress Level Relationship with Student Learning Achievement Level II Prodi D-III Midwifery Banda Aceh Department of Midwifery Poltekkes Kemenkes Nad Ta. 2011/2012, ISU Journal, 2013, vol. 2, pp. 1-4.
- Saputri, A. R., Relationship of Stress, Anxiety, and Depression Levels with Academic Achievement Level in Aliyah Santri at Pondok Pesantren Darul Ihsan Tgk. H. Hasan Krueng Kalee, Darussalam, Aceh Besar, Aceh, Thesis, UIN Syarif Hidayatullah Jakarta, 2017.
- Setiawan, M.M., Relationship of Depression Level with Cumulative Achievement Index in Students of The Faculty of Medicine maranatha Christian University Semester Six Class 2012, Thesis, Maranatha Christian University, 2015.
- Septianto, R., Relationship Between Depression Level with Modulclinical Reasoning I Value in UIN Doctor Education Student Syarif Hidayatullah Jakarta Class of 2013, Thesis, UIN Syarif Hidayatullah Jakarta, 2014.
- Syokwaa, S.K.A., Aloka, P.J.O., & Ndunge, S.N.F., The relationship between anxiety levels and academic achievement among students in selected secondary schools in Lang'ata district Kenya, MCSER Publishing, 2014, vol. 3, pp. 403-13.
- Vitasari, P., Wahab, M.N.A., Othman, A., Herawan, T., & Sinnadurai, S.K., The relationship between study anxiety and academic performance among engineering students, ICMER, 2010, vol. 8, pp. 490-7.

- Waqas, A., Khan, S., Sharif, W., Khalid, U., & Ali, A., Association of Academic Stres With Sleeping Difficulties in Medical Students of a Pakistani Medical School, PeerJ, 2015, vol. 2, pp. 2-11.
- Zavera, D. F., The Relationship Between Anxiety Level and Student Academic Achievement in Bandung, FOCUS, 2018, vol. 3, pp. 11–16.



Covid-19 The Pinnacle of Technology Enhanced Teaching-Faculty Needs Assessment

Ħ

Maryam Barkat^{1*}, Gulshan Ara Saeed²

¹Mhpe Scholars/ Senior Registrar Surgery Rawalpindi Medical University ²Mhpe Scholars /Professor of Gynaecology Shifa Tameer-e-Millat University

*Corresponding author. Email: <u>maryambarkat@yahoo.com</u>

ABSTRACT

Introduction: undergraduate Medical education in Pakistan like most countries world-wide is a full time on campus program. The curriculum design, teaching strategies, assessments and evaluations are planned according to face to face teaching learning format. With the onset of the Covid-19 pandemic all educational institutions scrambled to convert their programs to a compatible online version. Now that the urgency has waned it is time to do a comprehensive faculty needs assessment regarding technology enhanced teaching to equip them with the appropriate skill and strengthen their selfefficacy to avoid faculty stress and burn out. The purpose of this study is to assess the training needs for technology enhanced teaching in faculty members of academic medical centres in Pakistan. Material and methods: a randomized survey of faculty members of different medical and dental colleges across Rawalpindi, Islamabad from various institutions was done to assess the faculty teaching experience during Covid-19 pandemic and the faculty needs coming forth. These included members currently teaching undergraduate students for more than 2 years with regular class schedule. The survey questionnaire used was validated by 3 experienced medical educationists and piloted on 5 faculty members. Institutional Review board approval was sought from STMU and RMU. Results: ninety faculty members from various medical and dental colleges responded with 70% female participants and 30% male participants. The survey questionnaire had four main heads regarding faculty training needs: software (mean score 3.8), modes of information transfer (Mean score 4.1), assessments (mean score 4), research (mean score 4.2), providing feedback (mean score4) and student engagement (mean score 3.9). Conclusion: the

faculty has courageously overcome the barriers to technology assisted learning in the COVID emergency. However focused and committed faculty training to improve the teaching effectiveness and skills in technology enhanced teaching are the need of the hour.

Keywords: Technology enhanced teaching, teaching methodologies, faculty training, faculty needs

A. Introduction

Undergraduate Medical program is a very robust program worldwide [3]. The curriculum design, teaching strategies, assessments and evaluations are planned to address competencies of knowledge, skills and attitudes to ensure holistic learning [15]. With the onset of the Covid-19 pandemic educational institutions world-wide faced two choices. First to delay all teaching and wait for the pandemic to pass and second to use alternatives to face to face on campus curriculum delivery. All institutions had uncertainty regarding pandemic hence they scrambled to convert their programs to a compatible online version. For most institutions the decisions were taken in urgency and the technology enhanced curriculum delivery was initiated keeping student needs and requirements in the fore front [12].

Faculty as a stakeholder was a neglected entity. They were the service providers and sacrificed a lot of time and effort to make the online teaching a success [11]. As the first wave of panic and urgency has waned it is time to do a comprehensive faculty needs assessment regarding technology enhanced teaching to equip them with the appropriate skills [5]. During the last few months, they had struggled to teach the content they are expert at. But with the change in the mode of information transfer they felt less confident in their job. Their stress level and anxiety increased as they tried to familiarize themselves with new technology and strengthen their self- efficacy to avoid faculty stress and burn out [2].

The purpose of this study is to assess the training needs for technology enhanced teaching (TET) in faculty members of academic medical centres in Pakistan, as well as the challenges, support and pathway of self- learning the faculty adopted to speed learn TET in face of the COVID 19 pandemic.

152

B. Methods

1. Settings and Participants

Purposive sampling of faculty of both private and public medical college of Rawalpindi and Islamabad was done. Faculty members of Shifa college of Medicine, Shifa College of dentistry, Rawalpindi medical college, Nafees medical college, Riphah medical college, Foundation medical college and Hazrat bari Sarkar Medical College were sent survey form. To maximize response participants fulfilling eligibility criteria were sent an email message enquiring their willingness to be part of study. This was followed by sending them the survey link a week later. The participants were sent a reminder two weeks after sending the survey form. A total duration of 4 weeks was allowed for response. However, for faculty members with unknown emails the questionnaire was printed and hand filled in person by the principal investigator (PI) followed by data entry by PI.

The study protocol was approved by the Institutional Review Board of Shifa Tameer e miIllat university Islamabad, Pakistan. Informed consent was taken electronically from all participants.

2. Data Collection and Analysis

A Survey questionnaire was developed by the authors. It was reviewed and validated by 5 senior medical educationists. The questionnaire was then piloted on 4 faculty members and their observations regarding attempting the survey form on google document were co-opted. Survey items assessed: faculty experience of technology enhanced teaching in the COVID era, their ability to use the various e- teaching interfaces, their degree of satisfaction with their own competence in using e-teaching and their learning needs. Survey items included demographic data along with questions requiring 5-point Likert type scale questions with responses ranging from1 (strongly disagree) to 5(strongly agree) as well as a few open-ended questions (Supplemental Appendix S1). The 5-point Likert type scale with the above anchors was used in survey as this type of evaluation is easy to attempt rather than a yes no. Faculty needs on 7 components of technology enhanced teaching and evaluation was enquired.

Data was analysed using Microsoft excel version and SPSS version. Demographic data was analysed using percentages and mean. The quantitative Likert scale questions were analysed using t test and P value. Our survey included open ended questions to gather data that we felt was not appropriately recorded on Likert scale questioning.

C. REsults

A total of 90 completed forms were analysed. The Cronbach alpha for the questionnaire was 0.952. Demographic data of the survey population is given in table 1.

Gender	Frequency	Percentage
male	27	30
female	63	70
Designation		
Professor	8	8.9
Associate Professor	9	10
Assistant Professor	29	32.2
Senior Registrar	9	10
Instructor/ medical officer	35	38.9
Age	Mean	Standard deviation
	38.1889	7.633
Teaching experience in years	Mean	Standard deviation
	8.34	6.351
Satisfaction of faculty with software	Mean	Standard deviation
Designation		
Professor (assistant and associate)	3.87	0.885
Junior faculty (registrar, demonstrators)	3.98	1.11

Table 1. I	Demographic data
------------	------------------

Sixty six percent participants had a university email address, 56.6% had attended one or more workshops on technology enhanced teaching and 31.1% said that they had attended some workshops and seminars related to technology-based student assessments. However, 23.3% participants said that their institution arranged formal faculty training for online sessions before actually designating the task of online teaching during COVID-19.

The faculty was enquired who was their first choice for trouble shooting of online session glitches? 51.1% took help from colleagues and IT department but 47% said that their colleagues were enough for trouble shooting. The commonest issue faced during sessions was network and connectivity (27%) issues during their lecture. The means and median points of respondents' current knowledge and future needs for various educational domains (Cronbach's alpha=0.968).

Designation	ZOOM	Google class- room	Mic- rosoft teams	Zoom and Microsoft teams	Zoom and Google classroom	Google classroom and Micro- soft team
Professor (assistant and associate)	5	7	5	7	22	0
Junior faculty (regis- trar, demonstrators)	6	8	7	5	15	3

Table 2. Correlation between software	rare currently being used for teaching
pu	rpose

Table 3. Faculty	needs in	software	training
------------------	----------	----------	----------

Faculty interested for training in using	Mean	Stan. Dev.
Google classroom	3.97	1.12
Microsoft Teams	3.78	1.34
Moodle	3.87	1.24
ZOOM	3.29	1.41
Socrative	4.28	1.02
Padlet	3.98	1.12
Cumulative software training need in Assistant, Associate and Professor	3.88	0.94
Cumulative software training need in instructors and registrars	3.82	0.66

When the mean scores of software and e- educational strategy training were correlated with designation of the teachers, the need for training mean score was higher for all components in the senior group (Assistant professor and above) rather than the junior (demonstrators and Registrar) group however this difference did not reach statistical significance.

Faculty interested for training in online	Mean	Standard deviation
Voice recording with lectures	4.33	0.92
SGD and PBL	3.83	1.27
Teaching e- clerkship	4.00	1.19
Teaching virtual patients	3.82	1.19
Others	3.94	1.18

Table 4. Faculty e-educational strategy training

Cumulative training need	l	Mean	Stan. Dev
Assessment	Ass, Assoc. & Professor	4.01	1.01
	Instructors & registrars	4.16	0.82
Mode of Information	Ass, Assoc. & Professor	4.14	0.94
Transfer	Instructors & registrars	3.81	0.81
Research training	Ass, Assoc. & Professor	4.06	0.82
	Instructors & registrars	4.27	0.59
Feedback training	Ass, Assoc. & Professor	4.10	0.88
	Instructors & registrars	3.96	0.73

Table 5. Comparison of means between junior and senior faculty

The mean score by faculty for needs in training regarding student engagement and motivation were 4.14 in senior faculty and 4.07 in instructors and registrars.

	Workshop	Webinar	Lectures	Asynchronous	Synchronous	Face to face
Strongly agree	63.3%	40%	11.1%	52.2%	35.6%	44.4%
Agree	17.8%	25.6%	14.4%	26.7%	10%	14.4%

Table 6. Method of training for faculty needs

D. Discussions

Covid-19 pandemic halted the world and even developed countries seemed un-prepared for it in many ways. As the world struggled to find a cure many countries went into a lockdown to prevent and slow the spread. Due to COVID, educational institutes closed till indefinite period of time. Thus, came the debate of "how to smoothly run the education program" and the importance of online education.

The debate of training faculty to teach undergraduate medical competencies effectively online has closely followed online learning student issues. In our survey on use of different teaching soft wares ZOOM along with the combination of Google class room was opted by 41.1% of the teachers. ZOOM was the favorite as 66.6% respondents used it. Their mean satisfaction score with the interface was high as they labeled it as easy to self-learn and use. However due to ZOOM bombing and inability to upload assignments and lectures they combined it with any other learning management system [4].

Rapid acclimatization and training of faculty to different soft wares and e-educational strategies has been a challenge. The faculty and curriculum of undergraduate medical schools is aligned and planned with on campus face to face teaching of competencies in mind (Conrad,2004). In our study since most teachers during COVID teaching had uploaded lectures in power point format. They felt that adding voice recorded explanations would help building student concepts. This feeling was shared in other international studies [10] [6].

Junior Faculty felt difficulty on online clinical assessments and was of the view that they needed greater training in designing e-OSCE. Assessment needs regarding both cognitive, skills and attitudes were inquired in the survey. Online skills and attitude assessments need logistics and training for high fidelity assessments. Online assessments are marred by cheating thereby decreasing their reliability [8]

Research learning questions spanned from project planning, proposal writing, and analysis till referencing using different citation managers. Junior faculty had greater mean score in Research training. The highest scores 93.3% were for "project planning", "proposal writing" had 53.3% faculty strongly agreeing for training. This was followed by proposal grading with 51.1% strongly agreeing to need for training. Similarly, 41.1% strongly agreed that reference manager training was needed. This could be due to the fact that Research component is not rigorously taught in undergraduate level and most of Research writing is self-directed learning of medical graduates [14].

The survey questionnaire inquired regarding faculty training in different online teaching strategies such as video lectures, PBL and clinical modules. Faculty felt that teaching clinical modules was as big a challenge as their assessment. They had high scores in training needs in clinical subjects. The lack of training and time were common barriers in online education [7]. Faculty indicated that they are ill-equipped and not formally trained in use of e-tools for education and assessment. In our survey teachers in clinical years were especially concerned with holistic learning of their students and wanted faculty training sessions on soft wares and e-strategies to impart knowledge, skills and attitudes online effectively. Other researchers have also reported online undergraduate medical teaching as an opportunity and a challenge [13].

Finally, when faculty was enquired regarding mode of training that they would prefer for their learning needs, the most popular training method was workshops as 63.35% participants strongly agreed to this method followed by asynchronous training 52.2%. Teaching and instructional style varies between face to face and online teaching [9].



E. Conclusions

The faculty has courageously overcome the barriers to technology assisted learning in the COVID emergency. However focused and committed faculty training to improve the teaching effectiveness and skills in technology enhanced teaching are the need of the hour.

Authors' Contributions

It was collaborative work of both authors. MB designed the faculty assessment form and distributed it. GA took an ethical approval and manuscript writing. Data collection and analysis done by both MB and GA.

Acknowledgments

The authors would like to thank Dr Rahila Yasmeen and junior colleagues for assistance with project design and their valuable feedback via filling the questionnaire which was send to them via email.

References

- Conrad D. University instructors' reflections on their first online teaching experiences. Online learn [Internet]. 2019;8(2). Available from: http:// dx.doi.org/10.24059/olj.v8i2.1826
- Borg MG, Riding RJ. Teacher stress and cognitive style. Br J Educ Psychol. 1993; 63(2):271-86. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.2044-8279.1993.tb01057.x[
- Boyle GJ, Borg MG, Falzon JM, Baglioni AJ Jr. A Structural model of the dimensions of teacher stress. Br J Educ Psychol. 1995; 65 (Pt 1):49-67. http;//doi.org10.1111/j.2044-8279.1995.tb01130.x
- Liu B, Li M, Zhou Z, Guan X, Xiang Y. Can we use interleukin-6 (IL-6) blockade for coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19)-induced cytokine release syndrome (CRS)? J Autoimmune. 2020; 111(102452):102452. https://doi.org/10.1001/jamaophthalmol.2020.1291.Kurup
- Curry JR, O'Brien ER. Shifting to a wellness paradigm in teacher education: A promising practice for fostering teacher stress reduction, burnout resilience, and promoting retention. Ethical Hum Psychol Psychiatry. 2012;14(3):178-91 https://doi.org/10.1891/1559-4343.14.3.178
- Dray BJ, Lowenthal PR, Miszkiewicz MJ, Ruiz-Primo MA, Marczynski K. Developing an instrument to assess student readiness for online learning: a validation study. Distance educ. 2011; 32(1):29-47. https://doi.org/10.1080 /01587919.2011.565496

- Frazer C, Sullivan DH, Weatherspoon D, Hussey L. Faculty perceptions of online teaching effectiveness and indicators of quality. Nurs Res Pract. 2017; 2017:9374189. <u>https://doi.org/10.1155/2017/9374189</u>
- Hewson C, Charlton JP. An investigation of the validity of course-based online assessment methods: The role of computer-related attitudes and assessment mode preferences. J Comput Assist Learn. 2019;35(1):51–60. https://doi.org/10.1111/jcal.12310
- Jaffee D. Virtual transformation: Web-based technology and pedagogical change. Teach Sociol. 2003; 31(2):227. https://doi.org/10.2307/3211312
- Goodheart E. Faculty Development. ADE bull. 1978; 13-6. https://doi. org/10.1632/ade.56.13
- Lockyer J, Carraccio C, Chan M-K, Hart D, Smee S, Touchie C, et al. Core principles of assessment in competency-based medical education. Med Teach. 2017; 39(6):609–16. https://doi.org/10.1080/0142159X.2017.1315082
- Miller DG, Pierson L, Doernberg S. The role of medical students during the COVID-19 pandemic. Ann Intern Med. 2020; 173(2):145–6. <u>https://doi.org/10.7326/M20-1281</u>
- Spilt JL, Koomen HMY, Thijs JT. Teacher wellbeing: The importance of teacherstudent relationships. Educ Psychol Rev. 2011; 23(4):457–77. https://doi. org/10.1007/s10648-011-9170-y
- Taylor DCM, Hamdy H. Adult learning theories: implications for learning and teaching in medical education: AMEE Guide No. 83. Med Teach. 2013; 35(11): e1561-72. https://doi.org/10.3109/0142159X.2013.828153
- Yusoff MSB, Arifin WN. Educational environment and psychological distress of medical students: The role of a deep learning approach. J Taibah Univ Med Sci. 2015; 10(4):411–8. https://doi.org/10.1016/J.JTUMED.2015.08.005



Online Learning on Medical Students, Challenges and Strategies: Cross-Sectional Study in the UAE

Ħ

Farwa Kazmi^{1*}, Priyadarshini Ray¹, Selva Prakash Damodharan¹, Jayadevan Sreedharan²

¹Medical student, Gulf Medical University, Al-Jurf, Ajman, UAE ²Professor of Epidemiology and Biostatistics, Gulf Medical University, Al-Jurf, Ajman, UAE ^{*}Corresponding author. Email: *farwakazmi12@gmail.com*

ABSTRACT

Background, Aim and Objectives: owing to the Covid-19 pandemic, medical institutions adopted online learning. However, it presented with challenges including technical issues, and feeling overburdened. The objective was to assess the challenges faced by medical students with online learning. This would help medical institutions to calibrate their online learning environment and improve learning experience. Methods: this cross-sectional study was conducted among 98 students from Gulf Medical University in Ajman, UAE. Students included were from: first till fourth year; 18 years or older; of all genders and nationalities; who accepted to participate in the study. Convenience sampling technique was utilized to recruit participants. After receiving the IRB approval, the questionnaire was sent to participants through Google forms. The collected data was stored in a Google Spreadsheet. SPSS version 27 was used to analyze the data. The data was presented in descriptive statistics to assess the effects of online education on medical students. Results: according to the responses, challenges faced by medical students included: feeling overburdened by increased numbers of online notes and assignments (77.6%); getting distracted during discussions/lessons due to background noises (75.5%); facing connectivity issues during online sessions or assessments (71.4%); experiencing health issues such as headaches, vision problems because of increased use of digital devices (66.3%); experiencing technical issues with device, browser or software during online sessions or assessments (66.3%); feeling uncomfortable with turning on camera from home (66.3%); lacking motivation to study due to a lack of face-to-face interaction (66.3%); device shutting down unexpectedly during online sessions or assessments (52.0%).

Conclusion and Recommendations: significant issues were faced by students during online learning. Studies should be conducted on a larger scale to find more practical solutions which can be implemented.

Keywords: Online learning, medical students, Covid-19

A. Introduction

The COVID-19 pandemic brought in a lot of changes around the world. One such change occurred in the medical education system. Universities adopted online education during the pandemic. According to a recent synthesis of the global responses by universities to the COVID-19 pandemic, majority of universities had adopted online learning [1].

However, online learning comes with its own challenges. A study conducted highlighted that the major issue in online education was whether it can provide an interactive learning environment for the students [2]. The findings showed that the students were concerned about the limited interaction opportunities provided by the technology as they indicated dissatisfaction with the one-way communication [2]. Another issue highlighted was the absence of development of social relationships among the students, that may have impeded their interaction causing the students to feel uncomfortable in expressing their views and sharing their perspectives when they did not know each other [2].

For some, the absence of face-to-face interactions was a hindrance for relationship building, leading to adverse consequences for learning and completing tasks [3]. Similarly, the lack of face-to-face time with instructors occasionally adversely impacted the quality of feedback and clarity of instructions [3]. Students also reported having issue with asynchronous communication environment as it presented challenges for communicating clearly, collaborating, sharing the workload, and establishing relationships [3]. Some students found it difficult to understand others' point of view or had their own points misunderstood [3].

Technical issues was another challenge faced by students as many cited cumbersome navigation, the lack of intuitive functions, the multiple number of board sites and discussion areas used, and difficulty tracking assignments and resources [3]. They also reported difficulties in tracking, viewing, and responding too long, complex discussion threads [3]. Furthermore, technical issues such as insufficient computer hardware or software, inadequate computer

and typing skills, and slow or unavailable internet access at home are among the commonly reported challenges [3]. Lack of participation among students and lack of feedback from instructors are major hindrances to effective online collaboration [4].

The COVID-19 pandemic has highly impacted the medical education system as online education was adopted in many countries, including UAE. Studies have shown that students encounter one or more challenges in their online learning experiences [5]. This research was conducted in order to assess the challenges faced by medical students during COVID-19 pandemic with online teaching and learning. This would help the medical institutions to calibrate their online environment and improve the learning experience for students.

B. Material and Methods

It was a cross-sectional study conducted on the students of Gulf Medical University, Ajman, UAE. The inclusion criteria were: students from GMU in years one to four, all genders, all nationalities, and those who accept to participate in the study. The exclusion criteria were: students who refused to give informed consent and who were not available at the time of data collection.

This was a population study and was conducted among 98 students. The study setting was Gulf Medical University, Ajman, UAE. The duration of study was one month. Study instrument and validation procedure included a selfadministered questionnaire that was developed by the research team and was validated by 3 experts. The questionnaire was sent to the participants through Google forms.

Ethical approval from IRB was a mandatory requirement for research, informed consent was obtained from participants before enrolling them into the study, respondents were informed about their rights to participate in the study and about the objectives of the study. The study was anonymous, confidentiality of the information was respected and only the research team and members of IRB had access to the data.

The study was feasible. It did not include lab analysis nor payment by the respondents. The questionnaire did not include any sensitive questions.

SPSS version 27 was used to analyze the data. The data was presented in descriptive statistics that included tables, figures and text format, to assess the effects of online education on medical students.

C. Results

There were 72 females (73.5%) and 26 males (26.5%) who participated in this study. Out of the total participants, 32.3% were below the age of 20, 38.5% of the participants were between the ages of 20 and 21, and 29.2% of the participants were above the age of 21. 71.0% of the participants, below the age of 20, were females while only 29.0% were males. 73.0% of the participants, between the ages if 20 and 21, were females while only 27.0% were males. 75.0% of the participants, above the age of 21, were females while only 25.0% were males.

Gender	Age				Total			
	<20		20-21		>21			
	No.	%	No.	%	No.	%	No.	%
Female	22	71.0	27	73.0	21	75.0	70	72.9
Male	9	29.0	10	27.0	7	25.0	26	27.1
total	31		37		28		96	

Table 1. Distribution of participants according to age and gender

Figure 1 shows the connectivity difficulties faced by participants. There were 70 students (71.4%) who faced connectivity issues during online sessions or assessments, 65 participants (66.3%) experienced some sort of technical issues with the device, browser or software during online sessions or assessments and only 13 participants (13.3%) found the software or programs used for online learning difficult to use.



Figure 1. The connectivity difficulties faced by participants

Figure 2 shows device difficulties faced by participants. There were 51 participants (52.0%) who experienced sudden or unexpected shut down of device during online sessions or assessments. 9 participants (9.2%) felt that they did not have enough knowledge to use the devices and programs properly. 13 participants (13.3%) did not have adequate resources and devices for online learning.



Figure 2. Device difficulties faced by participants

Figure 3 shows personal and educational challenges faced by participants. Out of the total, 65 participants (66.3%) were uncomfortable with turning on the camera from home, 53 participants (54.1%) experienced behavior and mood changes because of a lack of social interaction, 65 participants (66.3%) experienced health issues such as headaches, vision problems - like increased eve strain and/or blurred vision - because of the increased use of digital devices, 64 participants (65.3%) found themselves disconnected because of lack of face-to-face interaction, 65 participants (66.3%) lacked motivation to study due to a lack of face-to-face interaction, 55 participants (56.1%) felt hesitant interacting online because people listen and may record what they are saving, 74 participants (75.5%) felt distracted by the background noises during the sessions, 65 participants (66.3%) felt like they are developing a sedentary lifestyle because of doing everything online, 13 participants (13.3%) had difficulty in communication and understanding because of language barrier, 29 participants (29.6%) felt uncomfortable because of the off-topic discussions on group forums, 57 participants (58.2%) found it difficult to monitor their progress in classes with online learning, 42 participants (42.9%) felt that a lack of tutor supervision made them doubt their work, 58 participants (59.2%) felt that there was a lack of feedback from the instructors, 76 participants (77.6%) felt overburdened by the increased numbers of online notes and assignments.





Figure 3. Personal and educational challenges faced by participants

Discussion And Conclusions D.

Significant issues were faced by students during online learning. Based on the challenges faced by students in online education, researchers have also conducted studies in how to overcome these challenges. It includes ensuring that the instructors engage students in collaborative activities in their online courses and instructor's role is more emphasized during collaborative learning; finding ways of motivating the students in order to increase their level of participation in collaborative learning; finding ways of motivating the instructors in order to make them more active in monitoring students' collaboration and come up with mechanisms of training instructors with e-pedagogy skills which can enhance collaborative learning; finding ways of increasing internet bandwidth in order to avail more bandwidth to students who are studying online [4]. Encouraging students to participate in face-toface sessions can help them to develop social support networks for learning [2]. Overall, more studies should be conducted on a larger scale to find more practical solutions which can be implemented since numerous universities from different countries have adopted online teaching and learning.

Acknowledgments

Our sincere gratitude goes out to all the members of the Gulf Medical University Community Medicine Department for their support. We would like to extend our sincere gratitude to Prof. Jayadevan for his support and guidance. We would like to thank the President, Provost, Dean of graduate studies for their administrative support, and our batch mates for their support and being a source of strength.
References

- Crawford J, Butler-Henderson K, Rudolph J, Glowatz M. COVID-19: 20 countries' higher education intra-period digital pedagogy responses. Journal of Applied Teaching and Learning 2020;3(1):1-20.
- Ng KC. Replacing Face-to-Face Tutorials by Synchronous Online Technologies: Challenges and pedagogical implications. International Review of Research in Open and Distance Learning 2007;8(1).
- Dyrbye L, Cumyn A, Day H, Heflin M. A qualitative study of physicians' experiences with online learning in a masters degree program: Benefits, challenges, and proposed solutions. Medical Teacher 2009;31(2):40-46. https://doi.org/10.1080/01421590802366129.
- Muuro ME, Wagacha WP, Kihoro J, Oboko R. Students' Perceived Challenges in an Online Collaborative Learning Environment: A Case of Higher Learning Institutions in Nairobi, Kenya. International Review of Research in Open and Distributed Learning 2014;15(6):132-61. https://doi.org/10.19173/ irrodl.v15i6.1768.
- Beaudoin MF, Kurtz G, Eden S. Experiences and Opinions of E-learners: What Works, What are the Challenges, and What Competencies Ensure Successful Online Learning. Interdisciplinary Journal of E-Learning and Learning Objects 2009;5.



Are Values Valuable? Role of Values in Clinical Decision Making Among Medical Students of A Public Sector Institute of A Developing Country

Ħ

Mehwish Kaneez¹, Noman Ahmed Chaudhary², Syed Muhammad Jawad Zaidi¹, Hamza Waqar Bhatti^{2*}

¹Final Year Medical Student, Rawalpindi Medical University, Rawalpindi,, Pakistan ² House Officer, Rawalpindi Medical University, Rawalpindi, Pakistan ^{*}Corresponding author. Email: *hamzawaqarbhatti@gmail.com*

ABSTRACT

Values which may affect the decision-making skills of clinicians may develop during the time they spend learning clinical sciences in the hospital as medical students. Published qualitative literature suggests that the students who prioritized different values, showed much greater conviction and firmness in their clinical decision-making skills. This qualitative study was conducted from December 2019 to March 2020 which included 120 MBBS students from the third, fourth, and final year along with recently graduated students from Rawalpindi Medical University, Pakistan. The students who ranked equality higher also considered patient safety less frequently which shows that promoting same treatment options for all the patients can compromise on patient safety. We also found that the students who ranked professionalism higher considered self-awareness more frequently which shows that greater self-awareness has been linked to more professional behaviour.

Keywords: Clinical decision making, values, patient safety



Α. Introduction

Decision making is a cognitive process for the selection of a strategy or an approach among all different possible alternatives [1]. Clinical decision making is a complex multifactorial process and important aspects such as clinical knowledge, reasoning, skills, and experience may affect it. In addition to these aspects, other factors such as culture, ethics, personality, and values may also have important implications for clinicians in making clinical decisions for patients. Clinical decision making is the crux of daily clinician-patient interaction, as physicians constantly make decisions for and with the patients for delivery of quality health care [2].

The rapid advancement in medical care, vast options for diagnostic evaluation, and extensive treatment possibilities make clinical decisionmaking a challenging task for the clinicians. Moreover, theories have suggested that personal and professional values can significantly influence the decisionmaking skills of the clinicians. These values may complement the decisionmaking skills of clinicians or may counteract to negatively impact this skill, resulting in personal biases of which the clinician might be unaware. These biases may compromise the patients' quality of life and the quality of healthcare delivered to them. To reduce the physicians' unconscious biases a new, constructive patient-centered care approach has been introduced in the health care system and the conventional paternalistic approach has been disregarded. Shared decision making (SDM) is an approach in which the clinical decisions are made by patients and professionals mutually. In SDM, patients' perspectives, preferences, social factors, and clinical aspects are taken into consideration to improve patient's knowledge, level of trust, satisfaction as well as compliance with the provided treatment.

The values which may affect the decision-making skills of clinicians may develop during the time they spend learning clinical sciences in the hospital as medical students. Published qualitative literature suggests that the students who prioritized different values such as truth, spirituality, and human dignity, showed much greater conviction and firmness in their clinical decision-making skills. Moreover, another study suggested that the students who prioritized values of comfort over equality showed poor decision-making skills as compared to those who preferred equality. The present studies focus on ethical considerations and dilemmas in making clinical decisions but the role of values in effecting such decisions is largely under-researched. The gap in knowledge regarding how these values affect the decision-making abilities of medical students demands the need for a study like ours to be done.

The study aims to assess the factors that are important in clinical decision making among medical students and to investigate the effect of values on making clinical decisions for patients. A clear understanding of these values in affecting clinical decision making can aid in assessing the current practices and highlight potential areas that will need improvement in developing a good doctor-patient relationship. Therefore, according to the bio-psycho-social model, there is an urgent need to evaluate the role and potential effects of values in clinical decision making among medical students.

B. Material And Methods

This qualitative study was conducted from December 2019 to March 2020 which included 120 MBBS students from the third, fourth, and final year along with recently graduated students from Rawalpindi Medical University, Pakistan. The students were interviewed with four clinical scenarios in which they were asked to mention the factors that they considered were important for making a clinical decision. The responses of the students were recorded by the investigators. After the interview, the students were asked for rank-ordering a set of eleven values on a scale from most to least important. The students who refused to take part in the study were excluded. Ethical permission was granted by the Ethical Review Board, Rawalpindi Medical University.

1. The Health-Care Practitioner Values Scale (Quantitative Part)

The HPVS [3] incorporated personal and professional values: authority, capability, pleasure, intellectual stimulation, critical thinking, equality, altruism, spirituality, tradition, professionalism, and safety. Participants were asked to rank these values according to the importance of each to them as a guiding principle in their health-care practice. The most important value was ranked as 1 and the least important as 11.

2. Clinical Decision-Making (Qualitative Part)

Participants were asked to list as many factors that mattered to them and their patients for making a clinical decision for each of the four clinical scenarios. There were no right or wrong answers. The clinical scenarios were adopted from Moyo M et al. [4] Permission to use the clinical scenarios, as well as the scale, was taken from the author of the referenced study.

3. Data Analysis

Data was entered and analyzed using spss v 25. Qualitative variables were expressed as frequencies and percentages and quantitative ones as mean and sd. Each value was ranked on a scale from 0(least important) to 11(most

important). In each of the clinical scenarios the difference between the mean ranks was found. Cohen's D was used to find the effect size of mean difference between the ranks. The difference of mean ranks for each value was compared between the students who considered a certain value most or least important in clinical decision making in each of the four clinical scenarios. P value less than 0.05 was considered significant

C. Results

- 1. In the PSA Scenario
 - The students who ranked equality higher considered patient safety less frequently than the students who placed equality at lower rank (p=0.032, Cohen's D=0.041)
 - The students who ranked altruism higher considered their selfawareness less frequently than the students who placed altruism at lower rank (p=0.037, Cohen's D=0.902)
 - The students who ranked intellectual stimulation higher considered their self-awareness more frequently than the students who placed intellectual stimulation at lower rank (p=0.009, Cohen's D=0.814)
 - The students who ranked professionalism higher considered their self-awareness more frequently than the students who placed professionalism at lower rank (p=0.01, Cohen's D=0.55)
 - The students who ranked safety higher considered their selfawareness more frequently than the students who placed safety at lower rank (p=0.011, Cohen's D=0.85)
 - The students who ranked spirituality higher considered their selfawareness less frequently than the students who placed spirituality at lower rank (p=0.001, Cohen's D=0.64)
 - The students who ranked capability higher considered service cost less frequently than the students who placed capability at lower rank (p=0.046, Cohen's D=0.486)
 - The students who ranked professionalism higher considered service cost more frequently than the students who placed professionalism at lower rank (p=0.012, Cohen's D=0.511)
 - The students who ranked safety higher considered service cost more frequently than the students who placed safety at lower rank (p=0.004, Cohen's D=0.56)

2. In the Isoteratoin Scenario

- The students who ranked authority higher considered patient perspectives less frequently than the students who placed authority at lower rank (p=0.03, Cohen's D=0.403)
- The students who ranked intellectual stimulation higher considered family and social circumstances less frequently than the students who placed capability at lower rank (p=0.025, Cohen's D=0.52)
- The students who ranked morality higher
- symptom and treatment efficacy more frequently than the students who placed spirituality at lower rank (p=0.009, Cohen's D=0.47)

3. In the End of Life Scenario

- The students who ranked Altruism higher considered symptom and treatment efficacy less frequently than the students who placed altruism at lower rank (p=0.034, Cohen's D=0.466)
- The students who ranked capability higher considered service cost more frequently than the students who placed capability at lower rank (p=0.04, Cohen's D=0.51)

4. In the Botox Scenario

- The students who ranked spirituality higher considered patients' perspectives less frequently than the students who placed spirituality at lower rank (p=0.003, Cohen's D=0.472)
- The students who ranked spirituality higher considered patients' safety more frequently than the students who placed spirituality at lower rank (p=0.037, Cohen's D=0.40)



Figure 1. Showing box plot of mean ranks of the values

D. Discussions

Values play an important role in treatment decisions made by health care providers. It plays an important role not only in everyday clinical decisions but also in advanced treatment plans [5].

In our study it was observed that pleasure had the highest mean rank which shows that it was the most important value medical students considered in their clinical decision making. This is in contradiction to the study by Moyo M et al. where pleasure was one of the least ranked values in clinical decision making [4].

Our study showed that spirituality and authority ere the second most commonly ranked values in clinical decision making. The study by Moyo M et al. showed that medical students ranked spirituality on the top [4]. Many other studies have reported that spirituality affects the decisions made by health care providers [7-9]. In our study spirituality was linked to different decision factors depending upon the clinical scenario which shows that spirituality influences the clinical decision making in a multi-dimensional way.

We also observed that authority was the second most common along with spirituality that influenced the clinical decision making by the medical students. This might be because of the authoritative role which the society gives to the doctors. Most of the people like and trust doctors to make clinical decisions on their behalf. This is the same reason most of the students did not consider patient perspective as an import decision factor in clinical decision making because most of the doctors by default assume an imposing role in providing treatment options to their patients. However, this trend is changing now with increasing awareness of treatment options available now. We also found that the students who ranked authority higher compromised on patient safety as compared to those who did not rank authority higher.

In all of the scenarios given, the students considered patient safety and symptoms and treatment efficacy as the most important decision factors. This is because of the increased stress laid upon patient safety in medical education [10-12]. They considered service cost less important. However, service cost plays an important role in deciding treatment options both by the patient and doctors especially in a public sector hospital.

The students who ranked equality higher also considered patient safely less frequently which shows that promoting same treatment options for all the patients can compromise on patient safety. We also found that the students who ranked professionalism higher considered self-awareness more frequently which shows that greater self-awareness has been linked to more professional behavior.

E. Conclusions

Medical values play a pivotal role in clinical decision making for health care professionals. Shared decision making is the new approach in modern medicine. Proper training should be given to young budding doctors for this.

Authors' Contributions

Mehwish Kaneez conceived the idea , designed the analysis and contributed to the final manuuscript preparation. Noman Ahmed Chaudhary contributed in data analysis and paper writing,Syed Muhammad Jawad Zaidi and Hamza Waqar Bhatti contributed in data collection, paper writing and preparation of the final manuscript.

Acknowledgments

The authors acknowledge Mpatisi Moyo from University of Auckland, Department of General Practice and Primary Health Care, Auckland, New Zealand and co-authors for permission and providing with sufficient material for this study.

References

- Ofstad EH, Frich JC, Schei E, Frankel RM, Gulbrandsen P. What is a medical decision? A taxonomy based on physician statements in hospital encounters: A qualitative study. BMJ Open. 2016;6(2)
- Hajjaj FM, Salek MS, Basra MKA, Finlay AY. Non-clinical influences on clinical decision-making: A major challenge to evidence-based practice. J R Soc Med. 2010;103(5):178
- Moyo M, Goodyear-Smith FA, Weller J, et al. Healthcare practitioners' personal and professional values. Adv Health Sci Educ Theory Pract. 2016;21:257–86.
- Moyo M, Shulruf B, Weller J, Goodyear-Smith F. Effect of medical students' values on their clinical decision-making. Journal of primary health care. 2019 Apr 1;11(1):64-74.
- Karel MJ. The assessment of values in medical decision making. Journal of Aging Studies. 2000 Dec 1;14(4):403-22
- Ramondetta L, Brown A, Richardson G, et al. Religious and spiritual beliefs of gynecologic oncologists may influence medical decision making. Int J Gynecol Cancer.2011;21(3):573.doi:10.1097/IGC.0b013e31820ba507

- Ecklund EH, Cadge W, Gage EA, et al. The religious and spiritual beliefs and practices of academic pediatric oncologists in the United States. J Pediatr Hematol.Oncol.2007;29(11):73642.doi:10.1097/MPH.0b013e31815a0e39
- Curlin FA, Lantos JD, Roach CJ, et al. Religious characteristics of US physicians. J Gen Intern Med. 2005;20(7):629-34.doi:10.1111/j.15251497.2005.0119.x
- Catlin EA, Cadge W, Ecklund EH, et al. The spiritual and religious identities, beliefs, and practices of academic pediatricians in the United States. Acad Med. 2008;83(12):1146–52. doi:10.1097/ACM.0b013e31818c64a5
- Christianson CE, McBride RB, Vari RC, et al. From traditional to patientcentered learning: curriculum change as an intervention for changing institutional culture and promoting professionalism in undergraduate medical education. Acad Med. 2007;82(11):107988.doi:10.1097/ ACM.0b013e3181574a62
- Markakis KM, Beckman HB, Suchman AL, et al. The path to professionalism: cultivating humanistic values and attitudes in residency training. Acad Med. 2000;75(2):141–49. doi:10.1097/00001888-200002000-00009
- Laine C, Davidoff F. Patient-centered medicine. A professional evolution. JAMA. 1996;275(2):152–6. doi:10.1001/jama.1996.03530260066035

The Covid-19 and Its Impact on Public's Mental Health

Ħ

Fajar Fatima*

Riphah International University, Pakistan *Corresponding author. Email: *misbah.ghous@riphah.edu.pk*

ABSTRACT

Background: the outbreak of the COVID-19 in the 21st century and its spreading around the globe is badly impacting on the mental health of public on a large scale. Although all resources and psychological support provided to the people to reduce the risk of spreading of the corona virus by the government but still people are afraid, conscious, confused, anxious and stressed. METHODS: An online questionnaire was used as a research source to gathered data from different people with different mind sets including student community working men, workingwomen and the unemployed and common people of our society. It was a cross sectional study conducted Dec 20. The Warwick-Edinburgh Mental Wellbeing Scale (WEMWBS) was used with few more questions. The demographic data is reported on the basis of percentage of public's responses. RESULTS: Total 302 participants responded with mean age (30.21±4.21) out of which 80.1% were students 7.6% were working men, 10% were working women and 2.3% were un-employed and 24.6% were males and 72.1% were females. With the mean scoring (45.77±9.96) of WEMWBS and with this the responses reported that 54.2% claimed that they rarely lost any of their friends and family member.31.6% were in fear of losing their close ones. 18.6% were often worried about the fear of not having food in days ahead.15% people claimed that they are losing interest in people. 11% rarely thought about suicide attempts. 22.9% were rarely frightened from the corona virus. CONCLUSION: COVID-19 affected mental health of public very badly and it is almost same in all countries. People are facing mental health issues due to the pandemic all over the world.

Keywords: Covid-19, mental health and public, anxiety, stress, fear



It is claimed that the pandemic has had a negative impact on mental health. Everyone had faced a great change in their lives. The stress level and fear were on its peak among the public. Each and every one was in the state of fear. The factors such as financial crisis, shortage of food, fear of death, social interaction, social anxiety, fear of virus, lockdown and un-employment were the main issues of stress, anxiety and fear among people.

1. Covid-19 Outbreak

The initial outbreak was reported in December, 2019 in Wuhan, China. However, in the following month (January) thousands of people in China, including many provinces (such as Hubei, Zhejiang, Guangdong, Henan, Hunan, etc.) and cities (Beijing and Shanghai) were attacked by the rampant spreading of the disease. Furthermore, the disease traveled to other countries. Mostly countries had been gone through the pandemic.

2. Mental Breakdown

Pandemic was the not that big reason as the isolation was. Isolation or lockdown was the big reason for mental breakdown. Even some of the people die because of fear. With this lockdown made people helpless. It is well known that pandemics pose a threat to mental health.

3. Lockdown Side Effects

Mostly people lost their jobs due to pandemic. Due to lockdown many kids lost their interest in studies. Schools, colleges and universities were closed due to which many students had faced educational problems. So many people had faced financial crisis and lack of food. Financial problem was one of the main issues of mental breakdown and depression among people.

B. Impact Of Covid-19 On Mental Health

The COVID-19 pandemic presents a triple global public mental health challenge: to prevent an associated increase in mental disorders and a reduction in mental wellbeing across populations to protect people with a mental disorder from COVID-19, and the associated consequences, given their increased vulnerability and to provide appropriate public mental health interventions to health professionals and careers. This challenge is compounded by the inadequate population coverage of evidence-based public mental health interventions before COVID-19, even in high-income countries. Since the start of the COVID-19 pandemic, the provision of some of these mental health interventions has become more limited by quarantine and lockdown measures. Interventions to prevent, treat, and mitigate the effects of COVID-19 are likely to adversely affect mental health, particularly in those with or at a higher risk of mental disorder.

C. Results



Figure 2. Mental health and un-employment



	None of the time		Rarely		Some of the time				All of the time	
	Fraq uan cy (n)	Perc enta ge (%)	Frieq uen cy (n)	Parc anta ge (%)	Frieq uitti cy (n)	Parc anta ge (%)	Freq uen cy (n)	Perc enta ge (%)	Frequ ency(n)	Parc enta ge (%)
ans and the source standing	×::::	1.30 .3								
During the pastfewmonths whay ou are feeling ndg oinghrough Kindly sel act 1	101	33.6	65	21.6	88	29.2	31	10.3	16	5.3
₩₽₽₽₩65×5855₽₩×,000-0886666386 98-6488₩86#5655 737	**	\$1.2	23.5	. * :	*)	5', 4	.'b	×>	28	2.0
I have been in fear of losing my friends and family	61	20.3	49	36.3	95	31.6	52	17.3	44	14.6
ຈັດເຈບັບແກລັບອັດເອັດສະເຊດການແອງ ສາມາດສຳລາແລະນີ້ມີຂອງແຂະອຸດການແອງກັ ເດັ່ນເອ ສາມເຮ	275	?&2	€11	111.1	82	89.5	161	23.4	28	H.11
t have been feeling confused	51	16.9	50	16.6	92	30.6	68	22.6	37	12.3
1 SamebauriunSingTeigenanna	117	12::	nii	X2.6	24	21.2	::≪	23!	241	\$ 5. i
I havebeenlosingintensingeople	58	19.3	47	15.6	89	29.6	62	20.6	45	15.0
Y Seame Deutstige ine Americal solidit	283	≥1.H	H.I	17.d	1111	22.8	€::	Mail.	3.2	\$si.si
I have been feelinganxious	57	18.9	53	17.6	83	27.6	70	23.3	38	12.6
< 100~ 200~10000000000000000	****	144	\$2	65	*"	2: 7	-15	28.5	125	> *
I have be an feeling suicidal	191	63.5	331	11.0	41	13.6	32	10.6	4	1.3

Table 1. Lockdown side effects

D. Discussions

The research on "The Covid-19 and its impact on public's mental health" will let more people think about the impact of covid on mental health. Every pandemic left serious impact on people minds. The mental health and mental peace are very important for any person. The economic and social disruption caused by the pandemic is devastating. Millions of people are at risk of falling into extreme poverty while the number of undernourished people is increasing and currently estimated at nearly 690 million, could increase by up to 132 million by the end of the year.

Covid-19 has had an impact on social mobility whereby schools are no longer able to provide free school meals for children from low-income families, social isolation and school dropout rates. It has also had a significant impact on childcare cost for families with young children. Additionally, there exists a wide disparity amongst populations with a higher income who are able to access technology that can ensure education continues digitally during social isolation. All these are the reasons of anxiety and depression amongst nation during the pandemic. Although all resources and psychological support provided to the people to reduce the risk of spreading of the corona virus by the government but still people are afraid, conscious, confused, anxious and stressed.

During the pandemic, concerns about mental health and substance use have grown, including concerns about suicidal ideation. In January, 2021 41% of adults reported symptoms of anxiety or depressive disorder. Suicide rates have long been on the rise and may worsen due to pandemic. Pandemic related lockdown was also the big reason of anxiety, stress and depression.

Another research with 683 US adolescents carried out 2 weeks post lockdown showed that engagement in social distancing was not significantly associated with their mental health. However, specific motivations for social distancing were related to different mental problems. Youth whose motivation was to prevent illness or avoid judgements reported greater anxiety symptoms. Those who engaged in social distancing because a friend told them had more depressive symptoms.

A US study investigated more than 10 million Google searches and assessed the changes in mental health search queries after stay-at-home measures. Topics related to anxiety, negative thoughts, sleep disturbances, and suicidal ideation increased dramatically before stay-at-home orders with a levelling of the curve after implementation. A British online qualitative study with 27 participants assessed five focus groups during the early stages of the social distancing measures (5–12 days post lockdown). The isolation resulted in significant negative impacts on mental health and well-being within a short time of policy implementation, mainly in those with low-paid or precarious employment. Reduced social interaction, economic losses, and routine changes led to psychological and emotional impact, as demotivation, loss of meaning and decreased self-worth.

This COVID-19 pandemic seems to have brought our frenzied speed of modern society to a grinding halt and has literally crushed the wings of unlimited social interaction. Under these social restrictions, individuals are forced to reconcile with this terrifying reality of isolation which can contribute to domestic inter-personal violence and boredom. Similar trends of increase in isolation and loneliness have been noticed among emergency workers and quarantined population in Wuhan, China. This has increased the prevalence of depression, anxiety, post-traumatic stress disorders and insomnia in the population. But neither life nor the society had probably readied us for this task. The concept of boredom and loneliness leads to anger, frustration on the authorities and can lead for many to defy the quarantine restrictions, which can cause dire public health consequences. Emotional unpreparedness for such biological disasters has detrimental effects, as this situation is unprecedented in all measures. It also makes us take a step back and question: is social distancing only for a specific social class; as millions of migrant laborer's, homeless individuals and daily wage workers stay stranded in their workplaces, railway and bus stations and factories with overcrowding and poor hygiene. Isolation or loneliness for them is thus different. It is being away from their origins,



their families and being deprived of basic human rights and self-dignity. Segregation from self-identity can also form the basis for loneliness, just that it reflects differently in different socio-economic strata. It is again ironic, how the construct of loneliness varies based on the social strata giving rise to dimensional psycho-social needs.

In addition to loss of Basic Psychological Needs, other research has indicated that loneliness and social isolation have negative consequences for residents' overall health and well-being [9, 10, 28]. Besides the ban on family visits, health professionals such as physicians, psychologists, physiotherapists, and service providers such as hairdressers, were no longer able to enter NHs. Except from one NH, group-based and social activities were no longer organized, and meals that were previously shared together, were now consumed alone in residents' rooms. All these safety measures increased residents' social isolation and loneliness. Similar observations have been described in other countries such as Germany [29]. It is, therefore, not surprising that the impoverished environment and the lack of regular social, cognitive and physical stimulation had an enormous impact on residents and their wellbeing. Residents described feelings of depression, hopelessness, uselessness, and sadness; some even expressed a wish to die. Those who felt infantilized or deprived of information became frustrated or even angry, resulting in resistance to the lockdown measures

E. Conclusions

COVID-19 affected mental health of public very badly and it is almost same in all countries. People are facing mental health issues due to the pandemic all over the world. The covid-19 pandemic presents a triple global public mental health challenge. During pandemic stress anxiety suicidal thoughts among the public was very common. Fear of lack of food, shortage of money, un-employment made people more stressed and made their lives miserable. This covid-19 will leave a very bad impact on people's life style and its fear and consequences will stay forever in people's mind.

Acknowledgments

I collected the data by using Google forms as a source. 302 people participated including students, employed, un-employed both helped me to conduct this research.

References

- Yang X, Yu Y, Xu J, Shu H, Liu H, Wu Y, et al. Clinical course and outcomes of critically ill patients with SARS-CoV-2 pneumonia in Wuhan, China: a single-centered, retrospective, observational study. The Lancet Respiratory Medicine. 2020;8(5):475-81.
- Huang C, Wang Y, Li X, Ren L, Zhao J, Hu Y, et al. Clinical features of patients infected with 2019 novel coronavirus in Wuhan, China. The lancet. 2020;395(10223):497-506.
- Zhang J-j, Dong X, Cao Y-y, Yuan Y-d, Yang Y-b, Yan Y-q, et al. Clinical characteristics of 140 patients infected with SARS-CoV-2 in Wuhan, China. Allergy. 2020;75(7):1730-41.
- Wu C, Chen X, Cai Y, Zhou X, Xu S, Huang H, et al. Risk factors associated with acute respiratory distress syndrome and death in patients with coronavirus disease 2019 pneumonia in Wuhan, China. JAMA internal medicine. 2020;180(7):934-43.
- Chen N, Zhou M, Dong X, Qu J, Gong F, Han Y, et al. Epidemiological and clinical characteristics of 99 cases of 2019 novel coronavirus pneumonia in Wuhan, China: a descriptive study. The lancet. 2020;395(10223):507-13.
- Phan LT, Nguyen TV, Luong QC, Nguyen TV, Nguyen HT, Le HQ, et al. Importation and human-to-human transmission of a novel coronavirus in Vietnam. New England Journal of Medicine. 2020;382(9):872-4.
- Lau H, Khosrawipour V, Kocbach P, Mikolajczyk A, Schubert J, Bania J, et al. The positive impact of lockdown in Wuhan on containing the COVID-19 outbreak in China. Journal of travel medicine. 2020;27(3):taaa037.
- Zhang Y, Jiang B, Yuan J, Tao Y. The impact of social distancing and epicenter lockdown on the COVID-19 epidemic in mainland China: A data-driven SEIQR model study. MedRxiv. 2020.
- Kapasia N, Paul P, Roy A, Saha J, Zaveri A, Mallick R, et al. Impact of lockdown on learning status of undergraduate and postgraduate students during COVID-19 pandemic in West Bengal, India. Children and Youth Services Review. 2020;116:105194.
- Adams-Prassl A, Boneva T, Golin M, Rauh C. The impact of the coronavirus Lockdown on mental health: evidence from the US. 2020.
- Gualano MR, Lo Moro G, Voglino G, Bert F, Siliquini R. Effects of Covid-19 lockdown on mental health and sleep disturbances in Italy. International journal of environmental research and public health. 2020;17(13):4779.
- Kochhar AS, Bhasin R, Kochhar GK, Dadlani H, Mehta VV, Kaur R, et al. Lockdown of 1.3 billion people in India during Covid-19 pandemic: A survey of its impact on mental health. Asian journal of psychiatry. 2020.



- Pieh C, Budimir S, Probst T. The effect of age, gender, income, work, and physical activity on mental health during coronavirus disease (COVID-19) lockdown in Austria. Journal of psychosomatic research. 2020;136:110186.
- Armbruster S, Klotzbücher V. Lost in lockdown? COVID-19, social distancing, and mental health in Germany. Diskussionsbeiträge; 2020.
- Golechha, M. (2020). COVID-19, India, lockdown and psychosocial challenges: What next? International Journal of Social Psychiatry, 66(8), 830-832. https://doi.org/10.1177/0020764020935922
- Carvalho Aguiar Melo, M., & de Sousa Soares, D. (2020). Impact of social distancing on mental health during the COVID-19 pandemic: An urgent discussion. International Journal of Social Psychiatry, 66(6), 625-626. https://doi.org/10.1177/0020764020927047
- Banerjee, D., & Rai, M. (2020). Social isolation in Covid-19: The impact of loneliness. International Journal of Social Psychiatry, 66(6), 525-527. https://doi.org/10.1177/0020764020922269

The Description of Screen Time and Dry Eye Symptoms in Students during the COVID-19 Pandemic

Ħ

Gita Yustika1*, Ulfah Rimayanti2, Muh. Yusuf Izzati1, Andi Muh. Faisal Ansar1

¹School of Medicine, UIN Alauddin Makassar, Indonesia

²Department of Ophtalmology, school of Medicine, UIN Alauddin Makassar, Indonesia

*Corresponding author. Email: gyustika@gmail.com

ABSTRACT

Background: the amount of screen time in individuals is increasing each day especially during this pandemic. Excessive screen time may result in the decreased number of eye blinks, evaporation of tears, and subsequently to dry eye disease. Objective: to obtain descriptions of the duration of screen time and dry eye symptoms in medical students during pandemic. Material and methods: this is a descriptive research. The research subjects were medical students of UIN Alauddin Makassar. The data were collected through a questionnaire containing subjects activities using gadgets per day and the Ocular Surface Disease Index (OSDI) to assess dry eye symptoms. Result: most of the subjects are 18 years old and female. The subjects average of screen time for online class is 10.3 hours per day, the other activity average screen time is 9.2 hours per day and the average total of screen time is 15.8 hours per day. In this study 11 subjects (9.48%) experienced mild dry eye symptoms, 24 subjects (20.69%) experienced moderate dry eye symptoms, and 80 subjects (68.97%) experienced severe dry eye symptoms. Conclusion: it was found that the average screen time of the subjects was 15.8 hours and according to the OSDI index, most subjects (67%) experienced severe dry eye symptoms.

Keywords: Screen time, dry eye, pandemic



Introduction Α.

The number of computer users and display devices with a monitor (screen) is increasing. In Indonesia there are 143 million internet users, making Indonesia one of the top 5 internet users in the world. The majority of internet users are teenagers and young people, although internet use has also increased in adults.[1]

Excessive screen time may result in the decrease number of eye blinks, causing imperfect blinking, evaporation of tears, and ultimately leading to Dry Eye Syndrome (DES).[2] From the research results, it was found that children who frequently use smartphones are usually prone to dry eye, this is caused by the blink reflex when using a video display terminal, including a smartphone to be reduced, as a result there is an increase in exposure to the ocular surface and eventually it can cause dry eye complaints.[3]

Allah SWT emphasizes the importance of time and the greatness of its value, as implied in the Qur'an Surah Al-Lail / 92: 1-2, Al-Fajr / 89: 1-2, Adh-Dhuha / 93: 1-2, and Al -'Ashr / 103: 1-2. Therefore, we are aware of the importance of time management for a Muslim. Before understanding time management, first so that we can really understand the essence of time, namely: time flies, it is impossible to return the most expensive treasure. Based on this, wise expressions emerge, such as "time was like a sword / knife". A sword / knife is very useful if you are good at using it, on the contrary it will endanger not only others, but also yourself, if you are not good at using it.[4]

During this pandemic, the use of gadgets as learning media has increased screen time among students, who are the biggest gadget users. Therefore, the author intends to know the description of screen time and DES events in students, especially medical students of UIN Alauddin, Makassar.

Subjects and Methods В.

This research is a quantitative research with a descriptive and cross sectional. It was conducted in the Medical Education Study Program and the Physician Profession Study Program at UIN Alauddin Makassar and RSUD Haji Makassar in December 2020.

The study population was all students of the Medical Education Study Program and the Physician Profession Study Program at UIN Alauddin Makassar who were undergoing online learning. The sample is part of the overall object under study and is considered to represent the entire population. The inclusion criteria were students of the Medical Education Study Program and the Medical Physician Profession Study Program of UIN Alauddin Makassar who were undergoing online learning and were willing to be research subjects. Exclusion criteria were incomplete questionnaire filling, history of eye surgery, abnormal palpebral anatomy, and history of systemic disease. The research data was taken using a questionnaire and a daily log on the research subjects via google form.

Research subjects (students who were selected and met the inclusion and exclusion criteria) read and agreed to the informed consent to fill out the OSDI questionnaire that had been prepared via online. The results of the OSDI score will be divided into 4 categories, namely normal, mild dry eye, moderate dry eye, and severe dry eye. The results of the total screen time will be divided into 2 categories, < 8 hours and \geq 8 hours. The difference between the group with a screen time of < 8 hours and the group with a screen time of \geq 8 hours were analysed using Mann-Whitney U Test. The statistical analyses were performed using Microsoft Excel 2016 and SPSS version 23.

C. Results

The research was conducted in December 2020. Researchers took data through a questionnaire that was filled out online by medical students of UIN Alauddin Makassar. A total of 116 students became the sample of this study. The questionnaire contains the activity in front of the screen per day and the OSDI index. The collected data were then processed using Microsoft Excel 2016 and SPSS version 23 in accordance with the research objectives and presented in table form as follows.

1. Sample Characteristics

Univariate analysis was performed to determine the distribution of characteristics of the sample studied. The characteristics studied included age, gender, screen time for online lectures, screen time other than online lectures, total screen time, use of contact lenses, use of a fan or air conditioner (AC), and duration not in front of a computer screen / cellphone.

Sample Characteristics	Results
Age	
17 years	4 (3.45%)
18 years	37 (31.90%)
19 years	24 (20.69%)
20 years	30 (25.86%)
21 years	8 (6.90%)
22 years	11 (9.48%)
23 years	2 (1.72%)

Table 1. Characteristic distributions of research samples



Sex Male Female	21 (18.10%)
Screen time Online class Other than online class Total	10.3 hours 9.2 hours 15.8 hours
Use of Contact Lenses	13 (11%)
Non-Screen Duration	4.5 hours

Table 1 shows the characteristics of the research sample in the form of age, gender, screen time for online lectures, screen time other than online lectures, total screen time, use of contact lenses, use of fans or air conditioners (AC), and non-screen duration. Based on age, most respondents were 18 years old, namely 37 people (31.90%). Based on gender, the majority of respondents were female, namely 95 people (81.90%). The average screen time for online class was about 10.3 hours per day, the average screen time for other than online class was 5.5 hours per day, and the total screen time was obtained an average of 15.8 hours per day. 11 people (11%) wear contact lenses. An average use of the fan / AC was 14.1 hours per day is obtained. The average non-screen duration was 4.5 hours per day.

2. Dry Eye Symptoms Using the OSDI Index

Univariate analysis was performed to determine the distribution of dry eye symptoms in the sample studied using the OSDI index. Dry eye symptoms are classified into mild, moderate, and severe.

Dry eye symptoms	Results
Normal	1 (0.86%)
Mild dry eye	11 (9.48%)
Moderate dry eye	24 (20.69%)
Severe dry eye	80 (68.97%)

Table 2. The distribution of dry eye symptoms using the OSDI index

Table 2 shows the distribution of Dry Eye symptoms using the OSDI index in the study sample. It was found that most respondents suffered from severe dry eye symptoms, namely 80 people (68.97%). Respondents suffering from moderate dry eye symptoms were 24 people (20.69%). Respondents who suffered from mild dry eye symptoms were 11 people (9.48%). Meanwhile, normal respondents were 1 person (0.86%).

3. Distribution of Dry Eye Symptoms by Sex

Univariate analysis was performed to determine the distribution of dry eye symptoms based on the sex of the sample.

Dry eye symptoms	Male	Female
Normal	0 (0.00%)	1 (1.05%)
Mild dry eye	1 (4.76%)	10 (10.53%)
Moderate dry eye	4 (19.05%)	20 (21.05%)
Severe dry eye	16 (76.19%)	64 (67.37%)
Total	21 (100.00%)	95 (100.00%)

Table 3. Distribution of dry eye symptoms by sex

Table 3 shows the distribution of Dry Eye symptoms based on gender. In the normal category, it was found that 1 person (100%) was female. In the category of mild dry eye symptoms, 10 people (90.91%) were female and 1 person (9.09%) male. In the moderate dry eye symptom category, it was found that 20 people (83.33%) were female and 4 (16.67%) male. In the category of severe dry eye symptoms, it was found that 64 people (80.00%) were female and 16 people (20.00%) were male.

4. Distribution of Dry Eye Symptoms by Screen Time

Univariate analysis was performed to determine the distribution of dry eye symptoms based on the duration of the sample screen time. Screen time is divided into < 8 hours and \geq 8 hours.

Dry eye symptoms	< 8 hours	>= 8 hours	P Value
Normal	0 (0.00%)	1 (0.88%)	
Mild dry eye	0 (0.00%)	11 (9.65%)	
Moderate dry eye	0 (0.00%)	24 (21.05%)	0.822
Severe dry eye	2 (100.00%)	78 (68.42%)	
Total	2 (100.00%)	114 (100.00%)	

Table 4. Distribution of dry eye symptoms based on screen time

Table 4 shows the distribution of dry eye symptoms according to screen time. In the normal category, there was 1 person (0.88%) with a screen time of \geq 8 hours and none (0.00%) with a screen time < 8 hours. In the mild dry eye category, 11 people (9.65%) had screen time \geq 8 hours and none (0.00%) with a screen time < 8 hours. In the moderate dry eye category, there were 24



people (21.05%) with a screen time ≥ 8 hours and none (0.00%) with a screen time < 8 hours. In the severe dry eye category, there were 78 people (68.42%) with a screen time of \geq 8 hours and 2 (100.00%) at a screen time < 8 hours. The P value of 0.822 indicates that there is no significant relationship between the group with a screen time of < 8 hours and the group with a screen time of ≥ 8 hours.

D. Discussions

The questionnaire data was collected on 116 students as research subjects. Based on age, the results of this study showed that most respondents were 18 years old, namely 37 people (31.90%). The incidence of dry eye increases with age due to decreased function of the lacrimal gland[5], but in this study we cannot conclude that there is a relationship between age and the incidence of dry eye due to the adjacent population. In the younger age group, it was reported that the incidence of dry eye increased due to the duration of the screen time which decreased the blink rate and increased the evaporation of the tear film.[3]

This study found mild and moderate DES symptoms that were more frequent in women than men, but symptoms of severe DES were more common in men. Several studies have reported different results, where the presentation of women is greater than that of men. The prevalence of DES was greater in women (16.7%) than men (11.4%)[6], other studies by Syawal et in Makassar also reported that dry eye was more common in women than men with a ratio of 2: 1.[7] A population study in Sumatra reported a prevalence of DES in males of 32.7% and 22.8% in females.[8] Sex differences can cause differences at the molecular level to the physiological level that can be observed, in terms of the production of water layers eye, tear stability, number of blinks, even ocular immune function that can trigger DES.[9] Hormonal differences between men and women, including levels of sex hormones (androgens and estrogens), as well as hormonal cycles in women (menstruation, pregnancy, menopause) affect ocular structure and function. Lower levels of androgens in women have also been associated with DES.[10] One of the risk factors of dry eye syndrome is female sex, it is thought to be due to the role of hormones in the stability of the tear film.[11]

The results showed that the average duration of the screen time was very high, which was about 15.8 hours per day. A survey by the Indonesian Internet Service Providers Association (APJII) found that on average internet users in Indonesia (35.3%) access the internet for 1 hour per day, around 9% or 20 million people use the internet excessively (3% use 7-9 hours, and 6% use > 9 hours).[12] Based on the age of internet users, most users in Indonesia are 18-25 years old, which is equivalent to almost half of total internet users in Indonesia. In a study involving 259 smartphone users aged 19-25 years in Jakarta, 28% used the internet < 6 hours, while 72% used the internet > 6 hours per day.[1] Research on medical students in other countries shows that the majority of students (65%) spend 45 hours / week using the internet, the largest percentage is for the purpose of sending messages via email (36.6%), followed by academics (35.2%), pleasure (19.2%), and social networks (10%). [13] The higher screen time in this study is likely due to the online learning system during the pandemic, which encouraged students to spend much more time using computers or other gadgets.

In this study, the screen time was divided into 2 groups, namely < 8 hours and \geq 8 hours based on research by Mehra, et al who reported screen time > 8 hours associated with dry eye symptoms.[14] The results of the study using the OSDI questionnaire showed that students with screen time <8 hours experienced severe DES symptoms, while the duration of the screen time \geq 8 hours showed varied results, ranging from normal, mild, moderate, to severe. Studies by Moon et al concluded that the increased use of visual screen-based technology may be a risk factor for dry eye.[3,15]

Several studies have shown that the presence of symptoms is sufficient to diagnose a dry eye because no single test is specific for an absolute diagnosis of dry eye. However, on the other hand, symptoms alone are not sufficient for the diagnosis of dry eye because many ocular surface abnormalities and tear disorders show the same symptoms as those concluded by Khanal, et al.[16] In this study, the DES sign was not examined, which is a limitation of this study.

Phadatare and Messmer in 2015 put forward the theory that the occurrence of dry eye on smartphone use can be triggered by the activity of the eye staring long at the screen, thereby reducing the blink rate (blink rate), and increasing the length of exposure to the ocular surface, which can lead to instability of the tear film that can cause dry eye complaints.[17,18] A similar point was stated by Moon et al which stated that the reduced frequency of blinking rates during prolonged smartphone use can lead to faster evaporation of the tear film, which may then lead to dry eye.[19]

In this study, there were several limitations, namely limited information about other factors that are likely to affect the results of the study, such as smoking habits, disease history and others. Another limitation is that the type of research is descriptive and cross sectional and the absence of a control group, so that the relationship between screen time duration and DES symptoms and



signs cannot be evaluated. The number of samples that differed greatly between groups with screen time duration < 8 hours and screen time duration \ge 8 hours was also a limitation of this study.

E. Conclusions

From the results of the study, it can be concluded that the average duration of screen time in medical students of UIN Alauddin Makassar is 15.3 hours per day and the subjective examination of DES with the OSDI questionnaire shows that most medical students of UIN Alauddin Makassar experience severe dry eye symptoms. Furthermore, the researchers recommend that students reduce the duration of screen time, starting from non-academic activities, as well as conduct regular DES examinations or when DES symptoms occur. Further studies are needed to evaluate the relationship of screen time duration and dry eve syndrome.

Authors' Contributions

GY: Analysis and interpretation of data, draft manuscript.

UR: Conception and design, draft manuscript, supervision.

MYI: Data acquisition, technical support.

AMFA: Data acquisition, technical support.

References

- Prabowo H, Dewi M, Nadia. Intercorrelation of insomnia, sleep duration, internet use duration, and internet addiction of millennial in Jakarta. DIJEMSS 2020;1(5):775-95.
- Akkaya S, Atakan T, Acikalin B, et al. Effects of long-term Computer Use on Eye Dryness. North Clin Istanb 2018;5(4):319-22.
- Moon J, et al. Smartphone use is a risk factor for pediatric dry eye disease according to region and age: a case control study. BMC Ophthalmol 2016;16(1):188.
- Ritonga HJ. Manajemen Waktu Dalam Islam. Fakultas Dakwah dan Komunikasi UIN Sumatera Utara Al Idarah 2018;5(6):50-5.
- Uchino M, Nishiwaki Y, Michikawa T. Prevalence and Risk Factors of Dry Eye Disease in Japan: Koumi Study. Ophthalmology 2011;118(12):2361-7.
- Moss SE, Klein R, Klein BE. Prevalence and Risk factors for dry eye syndrome. Arch Ophtalmol 2002;.118(9):1264-8.
- Syawal R. Suatu cakrawala baru mengenai patogenesis dan penanganan sindrom dry eye. J Medika Nusantara 2005;26:84-7.

- Lee AJ, Lee J, Saw SM,et al. Prevalence and Risk Factor associated with Dry Eye Symptoms: A population based Study in Indonesia. Br J Ophtamol 2002;86(12):1247-351.
- Matossian C, McDonald M, Donaldson KE, et al. Dry Eye Disease: Consideration for Women's Health. J Womens Health 2019;28(4):502-14.
- Sriprasert I, Warren DW, Mircheff AK, Stanczyk FZ. Dry eye in postmenopausal women: A hormonal disorder. Menopause 2016;23(3):343–351.
- Truong S, Cole N, Stapleton F, and Golebiowski B. Review: Sex Hormones and The Dry Eye. Clin Exp Optom 2014;97(4):324-36.
- Asosiasi Penyedia Jasa Internet Indonesia (APJII). 2017. Infografis penetrasi & perilaku pengguna internet Indonesia: Survey 2017. Jakarta: Asosiasi Penyedia Jasa Internet Indonesia & Teknopreneur.com.
- Singh B, Gupta R, Garg R. Study of medical students and internet usage. International Journal of Scientific and Research Publications 2013;3(5):1-5.
- Mehra D and Galor A. Digital Screen Use and Dry Eye: A Review. APJOO 2020;9(6):491-497.
- Moon JH, Lee MY, Moon NJ. Association Between Video Display Terminal Use and Dry Eye Disease in School Children. J Pediatr Ophthalmol Strabismus 2014;51(2):87-92.
- Khanal S, Tomlinson A, Esakowitz L, et al. Changes in Corneal Sensitivity and Tear Physiology after Phacoemulsification. Ophtalmic Physiol Opt 2008;28(2):127-34.
- Phadatare S, Momin M, Nighojkar P, Singh KK. A Comprehensive Review on Dry Eye Disease: Diagnosis, Medical Management, Recent Developments, and Future Challenges. Advances in Pharmaceutics 2015. Article ID 704946, 12 pageshttp://dx.doi.org/10.1155/2015/704946
- Messmer EM. The pathophysiology, diagnosis, and treatment of dry eye disease. Dtsch Ärztebl Int 2015;112(5):71-82.
- Pazare P, Munjawar N, Singh P. Tears in Newborn Baby. International Journal of Scientific Research 2017;6(8):430-2.



Index

Ħ

A

Ahmad 75 Akbar 47 Al-Abri 83 Al-Busaidi 83 Al-Kalbani 83 Al-Saadi 83 Anissa 47 Ansar 185 Astiarani 31 Azizah 57

B

Bana 121 Barkat 151 Bhatti 169

С

Chaudhary 169

D

Damodharan 161

F

Fadhila 141 Fatima 177 Fatmawati 97

Η

Haider 1 Her 47 Hernawan 141



Ι

Iqbal 75 Izzati 185

J

Javed 1 Jusuf 57

Κ

Kaneez 169 Kazmi 161 Khan 1 Khattak 43 Kristian 31 Kurniawan 31

L

Lee 135 Lin 135

Μ

Mahmuda 11 Malallah 83

Ν

Nadeem 105 Nasution 57

Р

Pramono 31

R

Rashid 105 Ratnasari 11 Ray 161 Rimayanti 185 Saeed 151 Santi 31 Sarfaraz 121 Shah 1 Shahid 75 Shehzad 1 Siddique 43 Sreedharan 161 Sudarso 97 Sulistyani 11 Sultan 1

Y

Yasmin 105 Yen 135 Yustika 185

Ζ

Zaidi 169

